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The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. September 01, 2025
Corporate Relationship Department

1* Floor, New Trading Ring, Ratunda Bldg.,

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

BSE Security Code: 526739
Sub: Corrigendum to the Annual Report for FY 2024-25
Ref: Our Letter dated August 28, 2025 regarding submission of Annual Report for FY
2024-25 pursuant to Regulation 34 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’)

Dear Sir/Ma’am,

With reference to our aforesaid letter dated 28" August, 2025, we hereby inform you that
certain inadvertent errors were noticed in the Annual Report FY 2024-25 after the same has
been dispatched to the shareholders on August 28, 2025 through email.

In this regard, please note the following changes made in the Annual Report FY 2024-25:
1. On page numbers 60, 61 and 96 of this Annual Report, the equity shareholding of

Pioneer Jellice India Private Limited, one of the Promoter companies, should be read
as 24,23,321 equity shares (40.06%) in place of 25,83,619 equity shares (42.71%).
Consequently, the aggregate shareholding of the Promoter and Promoter Group
should be read as 75.00% instead of 77.65% of the paid-up equity share capital of
the Company. This correction does not result in any material change and does not
prejudice the interests of any stakeholder.

The revised Annual Report of the Company along with the Notice of the 64th Annual

General Meeting for FY 2024-25 incorporating the above correction is enclosed herewith

and also available on the website of the Company at:

https://narmadagelatines.com/annual report.html

We sincerely regret the inconvenience caused and request you to kindly take the aforesaid

information on your records.

Thanking You,

Your’s faithfully,
For Narmada Gelatines Limited

MAHIMA g e
PATKAR e
Mahima Patkar
Company Secretary

Encls: a/a

E-mail : swgljbp@sancharnet.in, ngljpp@rediffmail.com, ngljabalpur@narmadagelatines.com —
Web : www.narmadagelatines.com, CIN - L24111MP1961PLC016023 .w..
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#k. NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members,

The Board of Directors is delighted to present the 84th Annual Report on the busingss and operations of the company Namada Gelatines
Limited ("the Company”) aleng with the standalone and consolidated financial statements for the financial vear ended 3 15t March, 2025.

Financial Highlights (¥ lakhs)
Consolidated Operations Standalone Operalions
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
l. Revenue From Operations 18892.07 MLA, 18892.07 18179.56
Il.  Other Incoms 166,25 M.A 166.25 161.09
. Toral Income 19057.32 MLA. 1206/7.32 18340.65
IV, Total Expenses 146778.35 M.A 16778.35 16282.83
V. Profit Before exceptional items and o (I-W) 2278.94 M.A 2278.96 20567 .81
V1. Share of Profit of an Associate
(Refer note-4 to the consolidated financial Statements) 82.00 MN.A 0.00 0.00
VIl Profit Before Tax (V41 2360.96 MLA, 227896 2057 .81
Wil Tax Expenses o58.01 M.A. 558.01 24,83
1%, Profit Affer Taxation (VI-VIID 1802.94 MLA, 1720.94 1532.98
¥, Ofther Comprehensive Income-remeaasurements
of net defined benefit plans (a6 1% MN.A. (64, 19)
Xl. Nef Profit for the year (X-X) 1736.77 M.A 1604.75 1506.64
Operating Performance

During the financial year 2024-25. the revenue from operations increasad by 3.9% from € 181.7%9 crores in the previous year, to T 188.%2
crores, Profit after tax for the yearwas® 17.21 croresvs, T15.33 croresin the previous year,

Earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amartisation (EBITDA) stood at T 26,23 crores (previous year T 22.87 crores), higher
than the previous yveaor by 14.69% and Earmings per share stood of ¥ 28 .45 as compared 7o ¥ 25.34 in 20623-24.

The Consolidated results include proportionate share of profit of India Geloting and Chemicals Limited (1ECL), which has become an
cassociate of the comparny with effect from D5th December, 2024, in view of combined holding of the eguity shares by the company, andits
promaoters pursuant to applicable provision of Companies Act, 2013 and related accounting stfandards Consequently, consolidated
finoncial performance for the full vear s not comparable with the pravious yvear. os the share acguisition occurred In Decemibzar 2024, A
statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Company's associate company in Form Ne, AQC- 1 is provided
Inthe Annexure-\ of this report,

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a dividend of 10.00 (.e. @ of 100%) per Equity Shara of Rs. 10 each of the company (previous year
10.00 per Equity Share |.e. 100%) for the financial yvear ended 315t March, 2025. The total autflow on account of the proposed dividend will
be 604,96 lakhs (previous year 604,96 lakhs).

The said dividend on eguity shares s subject to the approval of the Shareholdars af the ensuing Annual General Meeating (CAGM")
schaduled to be held on 22nd September, 2025.

Record Date
The Record date fixed for determining the entitlernent of Mermbers for payrment of Dividend is Monday, 15th September, 2025.

According to the Finonce Act, 2020, dividend income will be faxable in the hands of the Members w.e.f. Aprl 1, 2020, and the Company is
required to deduct tax at source from the dividend paid fo the Membears al prescribed rates as per the Income Tax Act, 19461,

Transierto Resarves
As permitted under the Act, the Boord does not propose o transfer any amount fo General Resaerve, but has decided to retain the entire
armaount of profit for the financialyear 2024-25in  the profit and loss account.,

Share Capital

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March 2025 was Rs. 604.96 lacs comprising 60,49 ,587 equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each, During the yedr under review, your company has neither issued any shares with differential voting rights nor granted any stock
aptions or sweat equity shares. The Company bas pald lisfing fees for the financlal year 2024-25 to the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., where
its equity shares are listed.

Gwuality initiatives

The Company i committed to the highast lavals of quality for its products and customer services. Dunng the financial year 2024-25, the
Company refained ifs (50 cerification for Quality Management (150 9001:2015), EDEM Certification from European Directorate for the

uclity of Medicines and Heatthcare, DNV Management System Certification for Food Safety Management Svstermn Standard (15O
22000:2005), KOSHER Certification and Halal Assurance System Certification.

Deposits from public
During the vear under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public as defined under Chapter V of the Companies
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Act, 2013, No amount on account of principal orinterest on depaosits from public was cutstanding as on the date of the balanca sheet.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments
The Company has made an investment by acquiing 14.14% stake Le. 10,033,000 equity shares of M/s India Gelatine & Chemicals Limnited,
with the unanimous approval of the Board of Directors, ufilzing the surplus funds of the Company doted 05th December, 2024.

The Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are abo
disclosedin the notes to the Financial Statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In complionce with Saction 135 of the Act. the Company has underfaken CSR activities ond programs, excluding activities undertaken in
pursuance of its normal course of business. Under Sectlon 135 of the Act, the Company was required to spend 734,44 lakhs (2%) of the
dverage qualitying net profits of the lost three financial years on CSR activifies in financial year 2024-25, During tThe year under review, the
Company has spent a total of $34.50 lakhs, Accordingly. the Company has fulfiled its C5R spending cbligation for the financial year 2024-
25,

The Annual Report on CSR contalning the compoasition of the C5R Committes, salient features of the C5R Policy, details of activities, and
other Informafion as required under Companies (Conporate social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure - attached to
this Report, Since the average CSR obligation for the preceding three financial years i.&, financial year, 202 1-22., 2022-23 and 2023-24 was
less than T10 crores, The Impoact assessment report was not applicable for the yvear 2024-25, The C5R Policy may be accessed on the
Company's website at thelink: https:/ www narmadagelatines.com .

Risk Management

The Risk Maonagement Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in () approving the Company’s Risk
Management Fromework and (D) overseeing strategic. operational, financial, iquidity, security, regulatorny, legal, environmental, human
resource, and other risks that have been identified and assessed to ensure that there is a sound Risk Management Policy in place to address
such concerns,risks.

The Audit Committee has exercised additional oversight in the crea of financlal risks and controls. Maojor risks identified by the business and
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions. [he details of the Risk Management Committea. its terms of reference,
key business risks identified and mitigation plans are set out in the Corporate Govermnance Report.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a Vigil mechonism [ Whistle-blower Policy in place fo encourage and focilitate employees to report concerns about
unathical behavior, actual/ suspected frauds and violation of Company’s Code of Canduct or Ethics, The palicy providas for adaguate
saferguards against victimisation of persons who avall the same and provides for direct access to the chalrpersan of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee of the Company oversees the implementation of the Whistie-Blower Policy. no personnel hod been denied access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committes.

The Committee affirms that one cornplaint has been received under the Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism, which has been resolved
during the yearunder review.

Informaticn on Whislle-Blower Policy is availaols on the wabsite of the Company of https://www.narmadageiatines.com and in the
Corporate Governance Heport.

Reporting of Frouds
There were noinstances of fraud or suspected frouds reported during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors o report
to the Audit Committee and / or Board under  Section 1430 12) of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies
CnMarch 31, 2025, the company has no subsidiaries or joint venture companies within the meaning of Section 2063 of the Companies Act,
2013 (CAct’).

During the year under review, Narmada Gelatines Limited acquired a 14.14% equity stake In India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited (1GCL)
While this direct holding is below the threshold prescribed under Section 2(6) of the Act for classifying an entity as an associate company,
IGCL s considerad on associate of the Company, as Narmada Gelatines Limited, along with its promaoters, collectively holds more than 20%
of the equity share capital of IGCL and thereby exercises significant influence.

Nomination and Remunerction Policy

The policy of the Company is to have an gppropriate number of executive and independent directors on the board. The policy of the
Company on directors’ appoamntment and remuneration, ete, as required under Seclion 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is available on the
website (www normoadogelafines.com) and in the Corporafte Governance Report. The remunerction paid to directors s as per the ferms
laid down in the Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company.*

The Company has a Nomination and Remunaration Committee which makes recommendation to the Board with regard to the
appointrment of new Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. This policy on nominaficn and remunerdgtion of Directors, Key Managetrial
Parsonnel and Sanior Management has been formulated in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ond the Listing Regulctions
asamended fromtime to time.

The main objectives of the policy are:

. To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard fo  identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors (Executive
and Non-Executive) and persans who may be appointed in senior management and key managerial positions.

. To determine rermmunerafion based on the Company’s size and finoncial position and trends and procfices on remuneration
prevailingin peer companies and in the industry.
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. To carry out evalugtion of the performance of Directors, as well as key managernial and senior management personnel.
To provide them rewards linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achieverment relating to the Company’s
opercfions.

. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial perscns and to create
competitive advantage.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board of the Company s comprised of eminent persons with proven competence and integrity. Basides the axperience. strong
linancial acumen, slraltegic astuteneass, and leadership qualities, they have a significant degree of commilment lowards the Company
and devore adegudfe fime o the meefings and preparation.

Re-appointment of Directors retiring by rotation

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr, 5. Annamalai (DIN; 00001381) Non-Executive (Nen-Independent) Director of the
Company, retires at the ensuing AGKM and being eligible, sesks reappointrnent. As WM. 5. Annomalai has attained the age of 78 (seventy-
aight) yaars a special resolution in accordance with Regulation 17(1A) of the Listing Regulations seeking the re-appointment of Mr, 5.
Anncmalal forms part of the Nofice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 22nd September, 2025,

In the opinion of the Board, all the directors, gs well as the directors re-gppointed during the year possess the requisite qualifications,
experance and expertise and hold high standards of integrity.

In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board has identified core skills, expertise and competencies of the Directors in the context
ofthe Company s businesses for effective functioning, which are detailed In the Corporate Governance Report,

Attention of Shareholders is invited to the relevant fems of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Notes thereto. Brief resume of
the Diractons proposed to be regppointad. nature of their expertise in specific functional areas and names of companies inwhich they hold
directorship and membership/ chairmanship of cormnmiltees of the Board, as slipulated under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations are
ghven inthe section on Corporate Governancein this Annual Report.

Pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company

During the year under review, the non-executive directorns of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company, other than siting fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of aftending mesatings of the
Board/Committea ofthe Company,

Declaration from directors

The Company has received necessary declarations under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, from the Independent Directors  stating that they meet the prescribed critena for independence. All Independent
Diraectors have affrmed complionce fo the code of conduct for Independent Directors os prescribed in Schedule IV fo the Companies Act,
2013.

The Company has also received from them declaration fo compliance of Rule &(1) & (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
=udlifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, regarding online registration with the “Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs™, for inclusion/ renewal of
theirnamesas in the data bank of Independent Directors.

With regard fo proficiency of the Independent Directors, ascertained from the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the
institute, os notified under Sub-Saction (1) of Section 180 of the Act, the Board of Directors hos Token on record the declarations submitted
oy Independant Diractors that thay are exempt from cppearing in the test. except Mrs. Manimegalal Thangamanl who had cleared the
online proficiency self-assessment fest,

Mone of the Directors of the Company are related inter-se except Mr. 5 Annamalai and WM. 5 Maheswaran, in terms of Section 2077 ) of the
Companies Act, 2013, including Rules thersunder. The Company hos notissued any convertible instruments hence, disclosura in this respect
5 ot applicable.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified for being appointed as directors as specified under Section 1464(2) of the Act and
Rules thera under.

Key Managericl Personnel

Pursuont fo the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ashok K. Kapur, Manoging Director, Mr. Arun Jaiswal, Chief
Financial Officer and Ms. Mahima Patkar, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 315t March, 2025,
Ms. Meenu Sharma, Company secretary have resignad from the office with effect from 28th June, 2024, the Board places on record its
appreciation for her iInvaluable contribution to the Company durng har tenure. Ms. Mahima Patkar (ACS No. 72544) has been gppointed
as the Company Secratary and Cormpliance Officer of the Company with effect from 07th August, 2024, Mr. Mahesh Verma, Chief
Financial Officer, has resigned from the office with effect from 0710 January, 2025, The Board ploces on record its appreciation for his
invaluable contribution to the company during his tanure. Mr. Arun Jaiswal has been appeinted as the Chiet Financial Officer of the
company with effect from 156thMarch, 2025

Board Evaluation

The Nomination & Remunearation Committes and the Board have loid down the manner in which a formal annual evaluation of the
performaonce of the Board, Committeas, Chairman and individual directors has 1o be made, The Board of Directors has carmied out an
annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees. ond individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act, 328! Listing
Regulations and the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securties and Exchange Board of India.

The Board evaluated its own performance, Board Committess as well as the individual director’'s performance after seeking inputs frem all
the directors/memberns and alko on the basis of crtena such as the Boord composition and structure, effectiveness of boord processes,
mformation and functioning. etc.
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The independent directors at their separate meeting reviewed the performance of non-independent directors, the Board as o whole and
Chairman of the Company.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committes reviewed the parformance of individual directors on the basls of criteria
such o3 the contfribution of the individual director to the Board and Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contributionand  inputs in mestings, efc,

Ferformance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the indepandent director being evaluated.
The manner inwhich the evaluation waos cared out s covered In the Corporate Govermnance Report,

Board and Committee Meefings

Iha Booard meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on company 's businass policies and strategias. In case of special and urgeant
business, the Board/Committes’s approval is taken by passing resclutions through circulation, or by calling Board/Committee maetings af
a shorter notice, as permnitted Dy low.

The Company hos complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Board meetings ond
Annual General Maetings. The agenda for the Board and Committee meeatings includas detailed notes on the items to be discussed to
enakble the Directors to rake aninformed decision,

Curing the financial year under review, Sik Board Meetings and four Audit Committee Meetfings were convened and held, the details of
which are givenin the Corporate Govemance Report. Tha infervening gop between two Meatings was within the period prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013,

A detailed note on the composition of the Board and its committess is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.,

Meating of Indepandent Directors

As per proavisions of Schedule [V 1o the Companias Act, 2013, the Independant Directors are required 1o hold at least one mesting in &
financial year, without the attendance of Non-independent Directors and members of management. During the financlal year 2024-25,
the Independent Directors met on 28th February, 2025,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Fursuant 1o the requirement of Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that:

( in the preparation of the annual fincncial statermeants far the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards hawve
been followed along with proper explanation relating to materal departures, if any;

b. appropriagte accounting policles have been selected ond appllied consistently and judgements and estimates made are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of tha profit
of the Company forthe yearended  onthat date;

o proper and sufficient care has been faken for the maintenance of odequate occounting reconds in accordance with the provisions
of the Companias Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for praventing and detecting fraud and other
Irregularities;

d. the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

=3 proper intermal financial contrals have been followed and that such financial controls are adeguate and are operating effectively:

and

7 proper systems fo ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place and were adequate and operafing
effectively.

Related Party Transactions

The transactions with related parties entered into during the tinancial year were on arm’'s length basis and were in the ordinary course of
business. There are no matedally significant related party fransactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other dasignated persons which may have a potent|al conflict with the interest of the Company af large.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred toin Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form ADC-2 are set
outinthe Notes to Financial Statements rarming part of the Annual Report.

Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditors M/s Lodha & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No: 301051, were appointed by the members of the
Company in &1st Annual General Mesting, to hald offica from the conclusion of 615t Annual General meeting for a term of consecutive five
years till conclusion of 66th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027 In terms of the applicable provisions of Section 139(1) of the
Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

In terms of the Nofification issuad by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 7th May. 2018. the proviso requiring ratification of the Auditors
appointment by the shareholders at each AGM has been omifted, Accordingly. the ratification of appantment of Statutory Auditors
wolld not be required of the ensuing AGM ond M/s Lodha & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No: 301051E would
continue to act as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for five yaars upto the conclusion of the &6th AGM to be heald in 2027.

Report of Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditors, M/s Lodha ond Company LLP, Mumbal, Chorfered Accountants, have submitted their Report on the Financial
Staternents of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. which forms part of this Annual Report. The Notes on Financial Statements
referred to in the Auditors” Report for the year 2024-25 are self-explanatory, There are no obsarvations, qualifications, reservations or
adversa remarks in the Auditor’s Report that call for any explanation.
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Cost records and cost audit

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed undear the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companles Act,
2013 are not applicable for the products manufactured by the Company.

Secretarial Auditor and their report

Dr. Asim Kurnar Chattopadbyay, Company Secratary, was appointad as Secretarial Auditor of yaur Cormpany for tha financial vear 2024-25
pursuant to Section 204 of the Companiles Act, 2013 and the Companles (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014,

The Secretaricl Audit Report is annexad to this Report as Annexure - ||

There are no gualifications, observations or advearse remarks of the Sacretarial Auditors in the Raport Issued by them for the financial yaar
2024-25which call for any explanation from the Board of Directors.,

Transfer of Unpaid and Unclaimed amounts to IEPF

Pursuanf to the applicable provisions of the Act, read with the IEFF Authority (Accounting. Audit, Transfer and Refund) Ruies, 2016 ("the
Rules’) as amended, all unpaid or unclaimed dividends which were required to be transferred by the Company to the [EPF were fransfered
to IEPF Authority.

The Company has dlso fransfemed shares In respect of which dividend amount remained unpald/ unclalmed for a consecutive perod of
seven years ormore to l[EPF Authority within stipulated time.,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year, the declared dividends which remained
unpoid or unclalmed for a perlod of 7 years have been transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
established by the Central Government, as detalled in the Corporate Governance Report,

The details of unpaid [ unclaimed dividend and the shares transfered to IEPF Authority are available on the website of the company ot
https: /fwww narmadogelatines.com.

significant and Material Order passed by the Regulators
There are no significant and materal orders passed by the Regutators or Courts or Tibunals impacting the going concem status and the
Company’s operations in future,

Corporate Governance Report

The Report on Corporate Governance s stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015
forms part of the Annual Report, The Managing Director’s declargtion regarding compliance with the Company’s Code of Business
Cenduct and Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel forms part of the Conporate Governance Report, As required by the Listing
Regulations the certificate on Corporate Governance for the yeor ended 315t March, 2025 issued by Dr, Asim Kumor Chottopadhyay,
Company Secretary inPractice, is annexed fo this Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBl {Lisfing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulotions, 2015, detalled review of
operation, performance and future outlock of the Company is presented under Management Discussion and Analysis Report in aseparate
section and forms part of the Annual Report.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to enangy consarvation, technology absorption, forelgn exchange aarnings and outgo, as required 1o be disclosed
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companias (Accounts) Rules, 2014 s annexed (o this Report
as Annexuns - |l

Annual Return
As provided under Section 9203) & 134(34a) of the Act, the Annual Return for FY 2023-24 is available on the website of the Comparny ot
hftps: / fwwiw naormadogelatines.com.

Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of the Company is in receipt of remunearation exceeding the limits prescribed under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014,

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details in respect of directors and employees of the Company as required under Section
197{12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 s annexed to this Report as Annexure - [V,

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
All the employess in the Company are consideraed equal. There is no discrimination between indniduals at any paint on the basis of race,
colour, gender, religion, origin, sexual orientaticn or age. Every Individual is expected to freat his/her colleagues with respect and dignity.

The Company has In place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment af workplace. This policy of the Company s in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women af the Workplace (Prevantion. Prohibition & Redressal Act, 2013, Al employees
{permanent, conlraclual, lemporary and frainees) are covered under this palicy. An Inlernal Complaints Committes s in place o redress
the complaints received regarding sexual horassrment, The following is the summary of the Complaints received and disposed of during the
financialyear ended 31st March, 2025

a)  No, of complaints received during the year; 0
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By  No of Complaints disposed of:0
c)  No of Complaints pending: 0

Disclosure under the Maternity Benefit Act, 19461
Pursuanf fo the requirements under Rule B(5) D of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has complied with the provisions
ofthe Maternity Benefit Act, 1941 in accordance with its infermnal policy, during the year under review.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
There howve been no materal changes and commifments affecting the financlal positlon of the Company which have occumred behween
the end of the finonclal yvear of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report

Appreciation

The Directors wish to convey their deep appreciation 1o all the employees. customars, vendors, Investors, and consulfants/ advisors of the
Company for their sincere ond dedicored services s well as their collective contribution to the Comipany s performaonce.

The Directors also thank the Central and the State Governments, statutory authorities, bankers, and business associates and all the
stakeholders for their confinued interest and valued support.

For ond on baehalf of the Board

5. Annamalai Ashok K. Kapur
Chairman Managing Director

Flace: Jobalpur
Date ; 13" August, 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1) Economy Overview
As of the financial year 2024-25, the global gelatineg market has demonstrated growth, driven by increasing demand ccross various
sectors such as food and beverages. pharmaceuticals, Nutraceuticals. and cosmetics, India. now recognized as the fifth-Jargest
aconomy In the waorld, is also considered the fastest-growing major economy globally.

1. MarketSize and Growth:
The global gelatine market was valued at USD 8.58 billion in 2024 and is projected to reach USD 9.34 bilion in 2025, reflecting o
compound annual growthrate (CAGR) of 8 87% during this period.

Domestic Market:

The domestic demand for Gelatine is showing growth trend as India is strengthening its identity 05 o pharma and Nutraceuticals
manufacturing hub. Collagen also shows great promise in domestic market as the nutraceutical market in India s showing strong
growth, The India’s Gelatine market is projected to register a CARG of 4% to 5% annually over the next few years,

2.  Increasing Consumer Awareness on Health and Wellness
Consumers are becoming more aware of the haalth benefits of gelatin usage. Gelatin, being arch source of collagen. i recognised
for bogsting joint health, skin elasticity, and hair strength. driving its demand In the Nutrcceuticals ond pharmoaceutical sectors.

Gelatin s a natural preduct which is made of hydrolytic degradation of protein frem collogen and its distinctive structure of amino
acids gives it several benefits, itis inthe form of tablets. granules or powdears and has high protein content,

3. Increasing application of Gelatine-

Gelatine finds widespread use invarious sectors:

. Food and Beverage: Gelatine is considered a key Ingredient in food and beverages such as confectionery (gummy candies,
marshmallows. jelies). dairy products (yvogurt, cream chaease, ice cream). desserts and other fuctional food dus to its gelling.
thilckening, and stablizing properties

. Pharmnaceuticals: gelatin is used to monufacture hard ond soft capsules, for coating tablets, and in syrups. it also has maony
biomedical applications. It is used in the manufacturing of scaffolds for healing wounds. Thay effectively mask unplecasant
tostes and odors, making them easier to swallow,

Cosmetics: It s used in cosmetics ond personal care products forits film-forming and as g binding agent in makeup products.
Fhatography: Although digital photography has largely replaced film, gelatineg remains crfical in archival photographic
materials, and fine art photography.

. Mutraceuticals and dietary Supplements: Usedin protein-rich supplements for joint and bone heaalth,

Opporiunities and Threats, Outlook, Risks ond Concems

The country's drugs and pharmaceuficals exports increqsed 8.4 per cent yvear-cn-year in 2024-25, India’s pharmaceutical industry is the
third largest by volume and the 14th largest by value in the world, producing more than 60,000 generic drugs across 60 therapeutic
categones.

High demand for vegan products posing a threat to traditional gelatine

The rise of plant-basad gelatin substitutas. fueled by rising demand for vaegetarian and vegan goods. s one of the primary market barriars.
Tradifional gelatin made frorm anlimal scurces s In danger due 1o this trend, as consumers look for alternafives that take sustalnabllity and
ethicsintoaccount. Furthermore, cultural ond religious prohibitions ore impeding market growth,

Duea to the reduction in global Gelafin price, the price of Gelbone globally reduced significantly during the second half of the year. This
opportunity is being utilized to import/purchase Gelbone, which will help import Gelbone at competitive price.,

segment-wise of product-wise performance
The Company is engaged inonly one segment, namely, manufacture and scle of gelatine and related products ke ossein and di-calcium
phosphate (DCP) and as such there are no reportabile segments as perind AS-108 “Operating Segments.”

Internal finoncial controls and ifs adequacy

The Company’s Infernal Financial Control framework s commensurare with the size and the nature of its operations, These have been
designed to provide reasonable assurance about recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with
applicable statutes, safeguarding assefs from unauthorzed use, executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring
compliance of Corporate Policies

The Company has laid down procedures and policies to guide the ocperations of the business. The Company has a well-defined delegation
of power with authority limits to approve revenue as well as expenditure. Functional heads are responsible to ensure compliance with the
policies and procedures laid down by the board of directors.

The Company has appointed M/s P.E. Singh & Associates, Charfered Accountants to oversee and carry out internal audit of its activities.
The audit is based on an internal audit plan, which i reviewed sach year in consultation with the statutory auditors and approved by the
audit committee. The efficacy of tha infernal chacks and confrol systems are validated by internal auditors, The audit is based on a focused
and nsk based internal audit plan, which is reviewed and approved each year by the Audit Committee of the Company.

The Audit Committee reviews reports submitted by internal auditors. Suggestions to improve any process are considered by the
management and the Audit Committee follows up on corrective actions taken by the management. The Audit Committes alsc meeds the
Company's statutery auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the adegquacy of infernal control systems and keeps the Board of
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Directors informead of its mmajor abservations penadically.

M/s. Lodha & Co LLP., the Statutory Auditors of the Company audited the financial statements included in this Annual Report and have
issLed a report on the intemal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013).

Based on its evaluation (os provided under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clouse 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations). the Audit
Committes has concluded that as of 3 1st March 2025, the Infernal Financial Confrols were adequate and operating effectively.

Hurnan Resources / Industrial Relations
The Company’'s human résources agendad continuas to remain focusad on the development of its employaas, bulding copabilities in the
organization and prograssive employves relations policies, The Company addressad training and developrment needs of its workforce in

technical and behavioural areas by deploving internal ond external faculhy.

Humon copital is of the heort of our company’s success. It can be oftributed through our diversified and competent workforce, capable
leadarship and empowering culture and efficient operational excellence.

Wa aim to provide a safe, dynamic. and trustworthy ervirenment for all our employeaas henceforth. Our people policies are dasigned to
create a future ready workforce, while empowering them and creating an enriching employee experience.

Chur efforts were dlso in conjunction with varous aspects ke Employee health and safety, Training and skill development.

We do not make emploves decisions or discriminate against individuals based on personal characteristics like race, color, age, gender,
raligion, nationality, marital status, sexual odantation, ete, We base ocur employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and
fair frealment and strive to creale anenvironmenl! thal fosters the same. There were no incidents of discriminalion in iscal 2024-25.

We always led emnphasis on employee well-being may it be mentally, physically, ernctionally or socially.

Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation of the significant
contributions mode and the contfinued support extended by cll employees at alllavels to the Company’'s opearafions during the year.

Financial and operational performance
Revenue from operations stood at T 188.92 crores higher than the previous year by 3.9%.5akes volume of gelatine and DCPincreased by 2%
and 1 1% respeactivaly. Average salling prica of gelatine decreqsed by 0.9% but DCP Increqsed by 0.4% as compared to last year,

The contribution of Gelatine sales to the turnover was 74.27%. wheraas thaot of the DCP sales turmnover was 25,45% during the year under
review,

Materlal consumed in fiscal 2024-25 increased by 5%, which is due to Higher cost of Raw material, power and fuel cost reduce by 15 % due
to decrease In the coal prices and consumption. Employee cost stood of B.56% (8.21% previous year) of revenue from operafions. Other
expanses ware /.29% of the revenue from operations during the year under review.

Profit before exceptional items and taxes stood at T22.7% crores, higher than previous year. Growth led by better vield and lower
consumpiion of power and fuel.

Frofitaffer taxat$ 17.21 crores, which is higher than the previous financial yvedar.

Earnings beforeinterast, toxes and depreciation and amartisafion (EBITDA) stood af  246.23 crores, higher thon the previous yeor by 14.69% .
Dilured Earnings pershare stood of T 28.45 as compared to # 25,34 in 2023-24.

The financial highlights for the year 2024-25 are as follows: (T lakhs)

2024-25 2023-24 Variance %
Revenue from Operations 188G2,07 18179.66 3.90
Profit before fax 221896 206781 10.74
Profit after taxation 1720.94 1532.98 12,26

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 9y



%

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Significant changes in key financial ratios
In gccordance with the Listing Regulations, the Company is required to give details of significant changes in the key financial ratios. During
the year, the significant changes in financial rafios of the Company, which are more/less than 25% as compared o the previous year are

summarnzed below:
Sr.No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Variance (%) Remarks
| Current Ratio {in times) 2 55 A.65 A%
2 Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) 0.11 0.00% 100%
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in timeas) 3.33 0.004% 100%
4 Return on Equity Ratio (56) 1507% 15.12% -0.30%
5 Inventory Tumover (no. of days) 74 /0 9.46%
& Debtors Turnaver (no. of days) 45 42 £.14%
7 Payables Turnover (no. of days) o0 45 11.55%
8 MNet Capltal Turnover {in times) 3.95 248 2%.25% Company has availked
Credit Facilities like CC
Lirnits & Term Logn (Mo
such faclities were
availed during the
FY 23-24)
& MNet Profit Margin (%) 0.03% 8.36% 8.04%
10 Return on Capital Employed (%) 16.08% 15.12% 6.38%
1 Market Price per equity share (T} 332 50" 333.35° 0.13%
12 Earnings per share () 28.45 20.34 12.27%

as arn 31st Mareh, 2024 and 315t Mareh, 2025

Cautionary Statement
ertain staterments made in the Management Discussion and Analysls Report relating to the Company's chjectives. projections, outlock,
expeactations. estimates and others may constitute forward-locking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Actual results may differ from such expectations whether expressed or implied. Several factors could make significant difference to the
Company’'s operations. Thase include raw material availakility, import and exports of row material and finished goods, economic
conditions, affecting demand and supply, government regulations, changes in taxation, natural calamifles, on which the Company does
naf howve any direct control.
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Annexure - 1tothe Board's Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Brief oulline on C5R Policy of the Company

The Company is focused on activities contributing to the social and ecanomic developrment of the communities inwhich it cperates andin
doing so, bulld a befter, sustainakle way of life for the weaker sections of the soclety and raise fhe humaon developmeant index In the
surrounding areas.

During the yearunderreview, the Company’s confributions fo the community were in the areas of protection of environment, promotion of
education, Ivelihoad, promoting health care including preventive health care, providing water, sanitation and rural development and
contributions to other social davelopment crganisations, The Company abo support and partnered with several NGOs In community
development and health initiatives, Some of tha social activifies camed out by the Company during the yearweare as under:

Environment
The Company has dene planfation in 22 acres approx. of land at three spots adjacent fo river Narmada at Bheraghat, Jabalpur and also
maintaining the same since [ast seven years,

The Company carfied out plantation of trees, maintenance of green belts and gardens.

The Company and its employees regularly promote and participate in projects for cleanliness of river Narmada through cleaning banks,
puffing up flex, banners etc.,

Education

Education remains one of the focus areas of social developmeant and the Company supports academics at all levels. The Company
provided contribution to varnous schools, frust/socielies engaged in providing assistance to poor children for their education such as
Vivekanod Public School, Arva Vidya Sabha, Friends of Tribal Soclety, Narmada Vied Vigyon Vidyolaya, Drearn Foundation, Sohorm walfare
sociaty, Navothanam Walfare, The Company also providas scholarships to poor gils of the locality and neary villages.

Healthcare
Company supported to Virat Hospice Brahmrishi Samit for Treatment of Cancer Patients.

Eradication of hunger & Poverty
The company had donated funds to ISKON society and the Indian Red cross Society for accomplishing their mission of feeding the poor,

Rural Development
Contribbution towards the Anganwadi ot Bhedaghat and nearby villoges for the uplifftnent of villaogers.

Swachata Abhiyan
The company has contributed lowards the promaotion of Cleanliness-Jal Ganga Sarvadhn Abhiyan.

Brief outline of the Company s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and areference to the
wab link to the C5R policy and projects or programmes

The main objective of the C3R Policy Is fo lay down guidelines for the Company to make CSR a key business process for sustainable
development for thie society. It aims ot supplementing the role of the Eovernment in enhancing welfare rmeasures of the society based on
the immedicte and long term social and environmental conseguences of their activities.

The Company shall constantly strive to ensure strong corporate culture which emphasizes on Iintegrafing C3R values with business
objective. It shall also pursua initiatives related to quality management, environment preservation and social awareneass, in the areds as
detailed below:

() Promoting hedlth care including preventive healthcare and sanitation and making availale sofe drinking water;

(i  Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing voo ational skills especlally among children, women,
elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects:

iy Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecologlical balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforesiry, conservation
of natural resourcas and maintaining of sail. qir and water;

vy  Contribufion to the Prirne Minister’'s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Cenfral Government for socio-economic
developrment and relief and welfore of tha Scheduled Castas, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward closses, minorities and womean;

(v}  Rural development projects:
(viy  Promote and parficioate in projects for cleanliness of Narmadariver,;

{viiy Promote education of gil child and the underprvleged by providing academic suppaort, assistance to schools, sponsorships for
eradicating illiteracy;

{vii} Ermmphasis on regular health checks and medical aid/ health care facilities with special focus for tha mother and child aswell as the old
aged persons of surroundings and making available of safe drinking water:

() Promote and sponsor vanous sports activities and games organized by local gram ponchayat;
(x} Promote andsupport iocal religious and culfural programimes;

iy Otherareaqs as may be notified by the Governmeant from fime to tims;

(il any activities or subjects specified in Schedule Vil of the Act,
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2.  Composition of the CSR Committee:
5l. MName of Director Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of Number of meetings of
No, Diractorship CSR Committee held CS5R Committee aftended
during the tenure during the tenure
1 Mr. 5. Annamalal MNon-Executive — Non-indepaendent ] 1
Director (Chairman)
2 Mr. 5. Maheswaran Mon-Executive - Non-iIndependent I | (WVE3
Director
3 Mr, Ashok K Kapur Managing Director ] 1
4 Wir. B. Vijayadural Mon-Execufive - Independent Director 1 1

OVC) - attended through video conferancing facility

3.

Wab-link where Composition of C3R committee, C3R Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of
the Compoarny

The prajects undertaken are within the broad framework of Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013, Details of the C5R policy and
projects or programs undertaken by the Company are available onlinks: hitps:/ fetesw. narmodagelatines.com.

Details of iImpact assessment of Uil projects carmed out In pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companiles (Conporate Social
respansibility Palicy) Rules, 2014, f applicanle (attach the report), - Not applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsioility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial vear, it any.

5l. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be setoff for the
MNo. preceding financial years (in ) financial year, if any (n ¥)
] 2024-25 F0.04 lakhs £ 0.04 lakhs

Average net profit of the company as per section 133(5) : ¥ 1723.29 lakhs

(o) Two percent of average nef profit of the company Qs per section 135(5) T 34.46 lakhs

(b} Surplus arising out of the TSR projects or prograrmmes or activities of the previous financial years: 0.04
(c) Amount required 1o be set off for the financlal yaar :  0.04lakhs

lotal CSR obligation for the financial year (fa+/b- /o) ¥ 34.46 lakhs

(a) C5R amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in 7)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred fo Unspent Amount transfermred to any fund specified under

Financial Year (in®) CS5R Account as per section 135(6) Schedule Vil as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of transter Name of the Fund Amount Date of fransfer

34.50 lakhs Mil Ml il il Ml

(b} Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the linancial year: Mil
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Details of C5R amount spent against other than ongoing projects tor the financial year:

al. Name of the Project Itemn from Local Location of the project Amount Mode of implementation
No. tha list of cirad spant for
activities in  (Yes/No) the project
schedule VI (¥ lakhs) Direct Through implementing
to the Act (Yes/No)
State District Name C5R
registration
number
1.  Fnancial support by paying fae
for poor stucents, free education,
welfare & livelihood of poor children (i) Yes M.F. Jabaolpur 5.61 Yes - -
2. Supporting activities like free quality
aducation, capacity building of
teachers, enrching learming (il Yers M.FP Jabalpur 3.50 Mo Friends  CSRO0001898
opportunities for children, effective of Tribal
school governance Soclety
3.  Promoting Uteracy gy Yers Gujrat  Anmedabad 050 No Dreamnm  C5RD0O00O7125
Foundation
4,  Promofing Literacy (i Yes M.P. Jabalpur 2.26 Mo sohom  CSRD003 1238
Welfare
Soclety
5. Promofing Ureracy (il Vg M.P Jabalpur 0.50 Mo Vandan CSRO00B5178
Punarvas &
Anusandhan
Kendro
6. Promofing Lireracy (i Yes Jabalpur 0.20 Mo Naisoch CSRO0048470
Hamor
Kalpana
Mahila
Mandal
7. Promoting Literacy (i) Mo M.P. Jabalpur 0.75 MNo AM of  CERODD03273
Sewa
8. Eradicafion of Hunger & Poverty i MNo M.P. Jabalpur &.a0 MO ISKOM  CSRO000S241
9, Eradication of Hunger & Poverty ) MNo M.F. Jatalpur 2,00 Mo The CSRO0O070710%
Indian
Red Cross
Sociaty
10. Environmental sustainaility, (v} Yes M.F Jabalpur 5.49 Yes - -
ecological balance, protection
of flora and fauna, ogro forestry-
Tree plantation, protection and
maintenance
11 Promofion of cultural activities ) Yes M.P. Jabalpur 0.15 Yes - -
12  Promotfion of sports activities (il Yes M.P Jabalpur 0.30 Yes - -
13  Promaotion of Healthcare activifies ] Yies M.F. Jabaolpur 1.85 Yeso - -
14 Swachata Abhivaon (i Yes M.E Jabalpur 1.00 Yes - -
15  Rural Development 00 Yes M.F Jabalpur 1.560 Yes - -
Total 29
()  Amount spent in Administrative Overheods 1.60 lakhs
(e) Amount soent on Impoct Assessment, If applicable Ml
(fi Total amount spent for the Financial Year T 34.50 lakhs (8b+8c+Bd+ 8e)
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any il
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SI. No. Particular Amount (7 lakhs)
(o Twa percent of average net profit of the company as per section 13303) 34.46
(i Total amount spent for the Financial Year 34.50
(il Excess amount spent for the financial year ({03 0.04
() aurplus arlsing out of the CS5R projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, If any 0.04
(vl Armount available for set off in succeeding financial years  ((Hid-{hv)] 0.08

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount fransferred to any fund specitied  Amount remaining
No. Financial Year fransferred to  in the reporting under Schedule VIl as per section 135(4), to be spent in
Unspent CSR Financial Year (in T) il any. succeeding
Account under financial
section 135 (&) years
(in®) (in %)
il Ml il Ml Ml Ml MMl

(b) Details of C5R amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

5l. Project|D MName of Financial Project Total amount Armount Cumulative Status of
No, the Project Yearin duration allocated spentonthe amount the project
which the forthe projectinthe spentatthe Completed/
project was project {in?) reparling end of Ongoing
commence Financial Financial
Year(inT) Year (inT)
il il Ml Ml Mil NI Ml Ml

10, Incase of creation or acouisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through C5R spent in
tha financial year (asset-wise details)

{a} Dataof creation or acauisition of the capital asset(s) : Nane
(b} Amount of C5R spant for creation or acquisition of capital asset | NIL

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered. their address ete. : Not
Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (ncluding complete address and location of the capital asset) | Not
Applicable

11.  Specify tha reason(s). it the company has failed to spend two per cant of the average net profit as per Saction 135(5) : Not Applicable

5. Annamalai Ashok K. Kapur
Chairrnan - C5R Commitree Managing Director

Flace : Jabalpur
Date: 13" August, 2025
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Annexure-ll to the Board's Report

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FORM No. MR-3

FORTHE FINANCIALYEARENDED 31siMarch, 2025
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A (1) of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

Narmada Gelatines Limited, CARAVS, Room MNo. 28,
15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur- 482 001

| have conducted the secretaricl audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good comporate
practices by Narmada Gelatines Limited, (CIN L24711MP1961PLCO16023) (herginalter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in g manner that provided me o reasonaible basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutony compliconces and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company and diso the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorzed representatives durlng the conduct of
secratarial audit, | hareby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the aqudit parlod covering the financial year ended on 3 st
March 2025 complied wilth the statulory provisions listled hereunder and also thal the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-rmechanism in place to the extent, Intha manner and subject to the reporting made herelnafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained oy Narmada Gelafines Limited for
the financialyear ended on 315t March 2025 according to the provisions as may be applicable to the company of;

I The Companies Act, 2013 and any Amendments thereof (hereinafter collectively refered to as the "ACT") and the Rules made
fhereunder;

Il, The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 195460 SCRA Jand the rules made thereundear;
., The Depositores Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framead thereunder;
IV,  Foreign Bxchaonge Manogement Act, 1999 and the rules aond regulations made thersunder;
V. Thetfollowing Regulations and Guidelinags prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):
a. Thesecurties and exchaonge Boord of Indic (Substanfial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulkations, 201 1;
. The Securtiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
o2 The Securties and Exchange Board of Indla {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulafions, 2015 and
amendrnents thereof (hereinafter collectively refared to as "Listing Regulations™);
d.  The Securlies and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Lishing of Debl Securities) Regulations, 2008; Naot Applicable during the
pencd undear revienw:
&  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations. 2018;
f, The Securfies and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Swedat Equity), Regulations, 2021; Not
dppiicable during the period under review:

g. The Securlties and Exchange Boord of India (Reglstrars to an ssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, Not applicoble
during the pericd under review as the company is not acting as a Reglstrar and Share Transfar Agent:

h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not applicable during the period
under review,

3 The Sacurities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations. 1998. Not applicable during the period under
review;

Jo The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, and

K. The Securlties and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lsting of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preferences Shares)
Regulation, 2013. - Notapplicable fo trwe company durdng the perod undear review.

V1.  The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 along with Food Safety and Standards Rules 2011,

Vil Pollution Confrel Act, Rules ond Notificofion issued thereof;

Vill.  LegaiMetologyaAct. 2008andRulesmade thereunder.

X, ThekactoresAct,1948andRulesmade thereunder:

A ShopsandEstablshmentAct, 1953

¥l ThebBmployees Provident Fund and Miscelaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Rules made thereunder;
.  Industricl Employment (Standing CrdenAct, 1944,

¥l  The Matermnily Benefils Act,1961;

A, The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

XV,  ThePaymentof Bonus Act, 1965

XV, The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

AV Tha Employment Exchange{Compulsory Notification of Vacancies)Act, 1959;

YN The Payrment of wages Act, 19346, and amendments thereof and other applicable Industrial and Labour Laws.
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| have also exarnined compliance of Secretarial Standards on Board of Directors (55-1) General Meetings (55- 2) made effective 15t July
2015 and Dividend (55-3) made effective 1stianuary, 2018, Secretanial Standards on Report of the Board of Directors made effective 1st
October 2018 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of Indig.

During the pericd under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
menficned aoove.

| further Report hat:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Execufive Directors, Non- Executive Directors and
Independent Directors, There were no changes in the compaosition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review,

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings. agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and asystern exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda itemns before the
meating and for meaningful participation at the meating. Video conference facilities/ other audio-visual meaans are used as and whan
required tofacilitfate the Directors at other locations to panicipate in the meeting.

Majerity decisions cared through while the dissenting member's views, If any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. Howsver,
no such case has arisen during the period under review,

| further report that, there are adeguate systems aond processes in the Company commenswiate with the size ond operations of the
Company to moniter and ensure complionce with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

It may be noled thal | have conducied online verificalion & examination of records, as lacilitated by the company (where ever required),
for the punpose of issuing this Report,

Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
Prachsng Company Sacretary
FCS 2303, CP 880
Paer Raviaw - 6375/2025
Unlgue ldenfification No. [1985WBO 15800
UDIM :: FOD2303G000156996

Date: 20" Aprl 2025

ANNEXURE "A"

(TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF NARMADA GELATINE LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2025)

To,
The Memiears,
Marmada Gelatines Limited, CARAVS, Foom Mo, 28,

15, Civil Lines,
Jobalpur- 482 001

My Report for the finoncical year ended 3 1sthiarch, 2025 of even data s 1o be read along with this lettear.

l. Maintenance of secretarial record is the respensibility of the management of the Company. My responsibllity is to express an opinion
onthesea secretarial records based onmy audit,

Il. |have followed the audit praclices and processes as were approprale o oblain reasonable assurance aboul the coreciness of the
contents of the secretarial records, The verfication was done on test basis fo ensure that comect facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and prachices, | followed provide a reasonable bass for my opinion.

. Ihave not verified the corectness and appropriatensass of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Comgany.

Y, ‘Wherever reguired, | have obtained the management repraesentation about the compliance of laws, ules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

W, The complionce of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, nules, regulations, standords Is the responsibility of
managameant. My examination was limited to tha verification of proceduras on tast basis.

V1.  The Secretarial Audif Report s nelther an assurance ds 7o the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectivenass with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
Practising Company Secretary

FCS 2303, CPBBD

Faear Review Cerlificate No . -&375/2025

Unlgue ldentfification No. [1985WBO 15800
Date: 20™ April, 2025
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Annexure -lll tothe Board's Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
(Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
A,  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. Steps laken orimpact on conservatlion of enargy:

-  Replacemeant of old inefficient maotor with new energy efficient motors and instaliation of temperature confrollers to reduce
the steam consumptlon in gelatin production.

= Modification of Extraction faonk and replocement of Stearn Radiators oy hotwater o reduce steam consumpfion.

2. steps taken or utilising alternate sources of enargy; The solar plant within the Factory premisas, s set for commissioning onby
DISCOM confirmation is awalting.

3. Caopitalinvestment an ensrgy conservation equipment (Solar Plant): Rs. 7.04 Crores
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
1. Efforksinbriel made towards technology absorplion:

2. Efforts are belng made 1o Improve the quality/ quantity of Gelatine production with suppaort from Promoter company-
Productionimproved from 5.3 MT perday to 6.7 MT perday on year to years.

Benefits derived as o resuit of above efforts:

o Imported technology (mported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) : Not applicable as
no technology imported

(ay Technology

() Yearofimport

(c) Hastechnology been fully absorbed:

(i Ifnot fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, reasons thereof and future plan of action
4. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

FOB value to exports: 16,61 lakhs A47.99 lakhs

Expenditura in foreign exchange

- Import of spare parts 45.94 lakhs 46,99 [akhs
Traveal for export promotion 0.45 lakhs 0.74 lakhs

- Others (subscription) 2,921 lakhs 17.00 lakhs

5. Annamalai Ashok K. Kapur

Chairman Managing Director

Flace : Jabalpur
Date ;13" August, 2025
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Annexure - IV to the Board's Report

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014

i The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director. Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial yaar

2024-25, ratio of the remunearation of each Dirsctor to the medion remunearation of the employess of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the

Company are as under,
Sr.  MName of Director/KMP and Rermunearation “% Increase in Ratio of Comparison of the
No. Designalion of Director/KMP Remuneration remuneration of Remuneration of
for financial year in the each Director KMP against the
2024-25 Financial Year to median performance of
(T lacs) 2024-25 remuneration of the Company
employees
Mon-Executive Director
1. & Annamalai - Director
5. Maheswaran - Director
3. B Vijoyadurgi-
MNan-Execufive - Independent Dirsctor - - -
4. Marimnegalal Thangarmani -
Non-Executive - Independent Director
5. K Krshnamoorthy-Diractor-
Non-Execufive-Independent Director
Executive Director & KMP:
6.  Ashok K Kapur - Managing Director 06.26 5.67% 16.6%
7. Mahesh Verma - Chief Fnancial Officer” 15.94 8.65% Mot Applicable
8. Arun Jalswal-Chief Financial Officers 021 MNA Mot Applicable  Proiit aftertax
Q. Meenu Shamna - Company Secretony” 0.59 MA Mot Applicable ::iﬁa:; "; ﬁ;;fiﬁ%
13,  Mahima Patkar- Company secretany# 2.53 MNA Mot Applicable  year 2024-25

*1. Mr. Mahesh Verma Cedsed to be the Chief Fnancial Officer w.e.f. January 07th 2025; and #hr. Arun Jaiswal were Appointed as the

CFO w.e.f. March 15, 2025

*2. Ms. Meenu Sharma Ceased to be the Company Secretary weef, Jung 28th 2024; and #Ms. Mahima Patkar were appointed as the
Company Secretary w.e.f. August 07, 2024.

Ihe Non-Executive Directors of the Company are only entitied to sitting fees as per the statutory provisions, the details of which are provided

inthe Corporate Govemnance Report.

il. Ihe medianremuneration of employeeas of the Company during the financial yeaar 2024-25 was ¥ 3. 72 [akhs,

ii. Thepercentageincrease inthe median remuneration of employees in the financial year was 7.20%.

v, Therewera 198 parmanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 315t March, 2025.

v. Relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance: The Profit after tax for the financial year
endead March 315t 2025 increased by 12.26% and the average remuneration increased by 7.24%. Percentage increaseas for various
categories are granfed based on market trends and performance critena.

vi.  Comparison of Remunaration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) agalnst the performance of the Company: The tolal remuneration
of Key Managerial Perscnnel increased by 6,%3% whereas the Profit after fax increased by 12.26%.

vii.  ay  Marlafions in the market capitalisation of the Company: The market capitalisation as on 315t March, 2025 was T 19400 lakhs, 03
compared to$ 201646.301akhs as on 3 15t March 2024.
by Price Eamings ratio of the Company was 11.70as ot 315t March, 2025 as compared to 13, 146 as at 315t March, 2024,
vill.  Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel in the financial year 2024-25 was
9@ A0% whereas the managerial remuneration for the sorme financiol year was increased by 5.67%.

ix.  The key parameters for the varnable component of remuneration availed by the directors are considerad by the Board of Directors
bosed on the recormmendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees as per the Rermuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

K. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in
excess of the highest paid director during the year - None of the employees are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the highest
paid director.

¥l.  Theremuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Manageral Personnel and othar ermployees.
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Annexure - V fo the Board's Report
Form AOC-01

(Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Company

Part "B": Associate Company

5.No. Name of Associate Company

India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited

1. Latest Audited Balance sheet date
2 Date of acquisition/incorporation
3. ahares of Associate held by the company on the year -end
Equity Shares
§ Number of Shares
Il Armount of Investment in Associate Company
Il Extend of Holdings
4, Description of how there is significant Influence
Reason why the financials of Associate is not consalidated

MNet waorth attriibutable to shareholding as per the [Gtest
Audited Balance Sheet (T In lakhs)

7 Profit/Loss Tor the year
I Conslderad in Consolidated® (7 In lakbhs)
li. Nat Considerad in Consolidated”® (T In lakhs)

315t March, 2025
05 Decamber, 2024
1003000

1003000
4115.31
14.14%
shareholding

242502

82.00

Notes: Associate Company have been determined based on the Accounting Standards,

5. Annamalai Asholk K. Kapur
Chairman Managing Director

Place : Jabalpur
Date : 13" August, 2025
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is the implementation of best management practices, compliance of laow and voluntary adherence to ethical
standards which are inevitable for achieving organizational efficiency, enhancing shareholders value and discharge of soclal
responsitlity. The principle of good corporate governance is 1o ensure faimeass in all fransactions within and outside the company with
investors, customers, employees, partners, competitors and the society of large.

The concept of corporate governance primarity hinges on complete transparency, integrity and occountabiiity of the management, with
anincreasingly greater focus on investor protection and public interest. Good corporate governance is on essential port of well-managed.
successiul business enterprise that delivers value to shareholders.

Fovernance practices may vary but the principles are generic and universal, viz. commitment of the Board in managing business ethically
and in a fransparent manner with the profit objective balanced by long term value egquitably for all stakeholders. With increasing
complexities in business orgonizations, sound governance practices are indispensable to build and susfain trust,

Zood govemance enhances the confidence, frust and enfthusiasm of Its stakeholders. For ensuring sound comporate governance
practices, the Government of India has putin ploce aframewaork based on the stipulations contained under the Companies Act, Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} Regulations, Accounting Standards, Secretarial Standards, efc.

The Company I8 committed to un its business in o legal, ethical and fransparent manner with dedlication that prevails throughout the
organization. This report sets out the compliance status for the Company with the reguirements of corparate governance for the financial
year 2024-25.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Relationship
with
Stakeholders

Compliances

Fairness and
excellences

Intergity and
transparency

The company is committed to focus on long term value creation and protecting stakeholders’ interasts by applying proper care, skill and
diligence to business decisions, The Company has established systermns, procedures and policies to ensure that its Board of Directors 15 well
infarmed and well equipped to discharge its overall responsibilifies and provide the Management with the strategic direction catenng to
exigency of long-term shareholder's value,

The corporafe governance structure in the Company assigns responsibllities and entrusts authority among different parlicipants in the
organization viz. the Boord of directors, the senlor management, employees, etfc. The company continuously endeavours fo improve upon
these aspects on an ongeoing basis and adopts innovative approaches for leveraging resources, converting opportunities info
achievements through proper empowerment and motivation, fostering a healthy all-round growth and development to take the
Company fonward,

Your Company is In compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance as sfipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of
India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 ("Listing Regulations”), In addition to complying with the statutory
requirements, effective govemance systems and practices fowards improving fransparency, disclosures, Internal confrol and promction of
ethics atwork place have been institutionalized, The following codes and policies have been adopted by the Company:
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Code of Conduct

Code of Internal Procedure and Conduct for Insider Trading
Whistle Blower Palicy

Related Party Transactions Policy

Corporate Social Responsibilify Policy

sexual Horassment Policy

MNomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees
Board Performance Evaluation Policy

[Zisk Management Palicy

Policy for determination of Materiality of any event

Policy on presernvation of documents

Anti-Conuption and Anti-Bribery policy

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors along with its commiffeas provides leadernship and guidonce to the Manogement and directs and supervises the
performance of the Company., thareby enhancing stakeholder value. The Board has o fiduciany relationship in ensuring that the rights of all
stakeholders are protected, Your Company has an engaged and well-informed Board with qualifications and experence in varous arecs,

The members of the Board are from diverse backgrounds with skills and experience In different sectors llke technology. finance, legal,
power and general management, With o view fo hove a more focused attention on various focets of business and for befier
accountability. the Board has constituted the following committeas viz. Audit Committes, Stakeholders” Relationship Committes.
Momination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Monagement Committee, Corporate Social Responsiblity Committee and Complaints
Committes pursuant 1o Sexual Harassment Policy of the Company.

The Company Secretary is primarily responsible for ensuriing complance with applicable statutory reguirements and is the interface
between the management and regulatory authorities for govermance matters, The Compary Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that
the proceduras are followed and regularly reviewead and thaf all relevant informafion, defails ond docurmends are made avdailable to the
Directors and senior management for effective decision-making.

Composition of the Board

As on 315t March 2025, Company's Boord comprised of six members which includes one Executive Director, three Non-Executive
Independent Directors (including one Woman Director) and two Non-Executive Non-independeant Directors. The profile of Directors canbe
found at the website of the company at hitps:/ /www narmadagelatines.com.  The composifion of the Board is in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations enjoining speciflied combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors with afleqst one
Women Director and one half of the Board comprising of Independent Directors as laid down for o Board with the Non-Executive
Independent Director as the Chairman (related to prometer).

Category No.ofDirectors %afiololnumbercidiectons — NesEmcuue s
Execufive Directors | 17% Directors

{including
MNon-Executive Independent Directors _weman
(including woman director) 3 500% director). 3%
Mon-Exaecutive Non-independant Directors 2 33% Won Executive

Mon Independent

Total 6 100% Directors, 33%

Details of Directors altendance and other Directorships/Committee memberships

As required by Regulation 246 of the Listing Regulations and declarafions/disclosure recelved from the Directors, none of the Directoris a
memer of more than ten Board committees (considerning only Audit Committes and Stakeholders” Relationship Committes) or Chairman
of more than five Committees across all public imited Companies disted or unlisted) in which he/she s a director. None of the Director of the
Company senves as Director in more than seven listed Companies, and as iIndependent Director in more than seven listed Companies and
in case he/she i serving as a Whole-Time Director in any listed Company, does not hold the position of Indepeandent Director in more than
three lsted Companles.

All Directors have informed about thelr Directorships, Committes Memberships/Chalimnanships including any changes in thelr positions.
MNone of the Directors of the Company are related inter-se except Mr. 5 Annamalai and Mr. 5 Maheswaran, in terms of Section 2(77) of the
Companies Act, 2013, including Rules there under. The company has not lssued any convertible instruments hence, disclosurs inthis respect
is notapplicable.
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Details of attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and atf the last year's Annual General Meeting together with particulars of their
Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership of Board Committees as on 31" March 2025, are as under:

Name of Directors Category# Attendance at Directorships and Chairmanship/ Share-
Memberships of Board Commiftees  holding
in Indian Public Companies inthe
Board Meetings AGM  Director- Committee Committee company
24092024 ships® Mamber- Chairman- (equity share
Held Atended “:of ships® ship” of ¥10
attend- per share)
ance
Mr. § Annamalai MI&MNED &  6{2WVC) 100 Yes 2 - - il
M. 5 Maoheshwaran MNI&MED & SlVC) a0 ¥es 2 - - il
M. K Krishnamoorthy [ &  6(VC) 100 Yes 2 2 2 Mil
M. B Vijoyadurai (D] & 6EVCY 100 Yes 2 2 il
NI Ashok K. Kapur ED & 6 100 Yes 1 | 1050
Mrs, Manimegala Thangamani o & olVC) a0 Yes 1 | - il

WC-attended through video conference
L Independent Director; NI Non-independent Director; NED: Non-Executive Director; ELD: Executive Directar

"The above includes only directorship held in companies whose eguity shares are listed on a stock exchange and doeas not include any
Alternate Directorships aond Directorships of Foreign Companies, Section 8 Componies and Privote Limited Companies.
Memberships/Chairmanships of anly the Audit Commiftees and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committess of listed Public Umited Companies
have been considerad.

Name of other listed entities where Directors of the company are Directors and the category of Directorship

Name of Director MName of listed enfities in which the concermed Director is a director Category of Directorship
M. 5. Anncmcial India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited NI & MNED

Mr. Maheswaran India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited NI & NED

Mr. K Krishnamoorthy MPIL Corporation Limited )

M. B. Viloyadural India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited |

Number of Board Meetings and dates
Minimurm four Board meetings are held every year (one meeting in every calendar quarter). In case of any exigency/emergency.

resolutions are also passed by circulation.

During the financial year 2024-25 the Board of Directors met six fimes on 21" May 2024, 07" August 2024, 04" November 2024, 4" December
2024. 12" February 2025, and 28" February 2025,

The maximum gop between any two consecutive meetings was less thon one hundred and twenty days, as stipulated under the
Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards. In all Board meetings during the financial year
2024-25Video Conference facility wos clso provided to the directors.

MNecessary guorum was presentin all the Board meetings.
Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors

The Board of directors of the Company are professionals, possassing wide experience and expertise in thelr areas of function, viz. Sales &
Marketing. Infernational Business, General management and leadership, Fnancial & risk management skills and Technical, professional
skills and knowledge including legol, governance and regularony aspeadcts. In terms of requiremeants of the Lisfing Regulations, the Boord hos
identified the following skills/expertise /competencies of the Directors as on 31"March, 2025
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The specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Beard members have been highlighted and given in the table below:

Director Area of experise
Company's Behavioural Leadership Sales & Boardand Financial Technical & Legal/
business & skills Marketing Corporate Professional Corporate
Industry Governance laws
M. K Krishnarmoorthy v v v v v v
M. Ashok K. Kapur v v v v v v v v
M. S Annamalal v v v v v v v v
M. S Maheswaran v v v v v v
M. B Vijoyvodurai v v v v v v v
Mrs, Manimeagaolai
Thangamani v v v v v v v

Prolile of Directors
Detoiled profile of all the Boord members s gvdilabie on the Company s website at www.narmadagelatines.com

A brief profile of Director being appointed/re-appointed, nature of their expertise In specific functional areas and names of companies in
which they hold directorships, memiberships/chairmaonships of Board Committees and their shareholding in the Company, if any, are
provided below,

Director(s) retiring by rotation

M 5. Annamalal (DIN: 00001381), aged about 78 years, 5 o Bachelor of Technology (Chem Engg.). He has vast experience in successfully
managing Chemical Industries over o period of S decades. In 1973 he was appointed as the Managing Director of Pondion Chemicals Ltd
(PCL). which s the largest producer of Potassium Chlorate in India.

He is also on the Board of India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited, Pioneer Jellice India Private Umited, Sree Ayyanar Spinning and Weaving
Mills Private Limited, Pondian Chemicals Limited, Mepco Industries Limited, The Metal Powder Compony Limited, Asia Match Compony
Private Limited, Asholk Matchas and Timber Industries Private Limited, Niranjan Sankar Enterprisas Private Limited, Plonaer NF Forgings India
Frivate Limited.

He doesnot hold any shares of the Company as on 3 15t March 2025.

As Mr. 5, Annamaolai hos aftained the age of 78 years, therefore in complionce with the provisions of Regulafion 17(1A) of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirermeants) Regulations 2015, members approval is required by passing a
Special Resolution, forre- appointment of Mr. 5. Annamalal as a director iable to retire by rotation,

Board Frocedure

The Agenda and Notes on Agenda for Board Meetings are circulated to Directors in advance to enable them to fake informed decisions.
The information pertaining to mandatory items as specified In the Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws.
along with othar business issues. Is provided 1o the Board, os part of the agenda. All moaterial information Is incorporated there into faciitate
meaningful and focused discussions at the maeting. Where it is not prachcable fo attach any document to the agenda, it is tablad before
the meeting with specific reference to this effect on the agenda. In speclal and exceptional circumstances, any other maftters are
discussed with the permission of the Chairmaon of the Boord meeting. A video confarencing facility is provided fo faclitate Directors to
parficipate Inthe meatings.

Recording minutes of proceedings at Board and Committee meelings

The Company Secretary records the minutes of proceedings of Boord and Committee meetings. Draff minutes are circuloted to members
of the Board/! Committees for their comments and are finalized by incorporating the comments of the Directors. The minutes are enteredin
the Minutes Book within 30 days from the conclusion of the meeting.

Post-meeting follow-up mechanism
Management takes actions on the decikions and directions arising out of the discussions of the Board/Committees Meetings. Important
decisions taken at meetings of the Board/Committees are communicated promplly to the concermed departments/divisions,

An action taken report on decisions/minules of the previous meealing(s) is ploced al the succeeding meeting of the Board/Board
Committess for review and follow-up.

Compliance

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meeting(s), s responsible for and is required to
ensure adharence fo ol applicable lows and regulations, Including the Companles Act, 2013 read with rules issued thersunder, as
applicable and the Secretanal Standards recommended by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the financial year 2024-25, information as mentionedin Part A of Schedule |l of the SE8I Listing Regulations, has been placed before
the Board for its consideration. The Board of Directors is provided with all the information and update on the subjects detailed under and
have complete access to any informafion within the Company.
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Annugl cperating plans ond budgets and updotes

Capital budgets and updates

Suarterly/annual financial results of the Company

Mirutes of meetings of board, audit cormmitiee and other cornmittees of the board
Show-cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materally important

Infarmation on recrultment and remuneration of senior offlcers just below the level of board of directors, including appaintrment or
rernoval of Chief Anancial Officer and the Company Secretary

Fatal orserious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems

Any material default in financial obligations to and by the company, or substantiol non-payment for goods sold by the cormpany

™ Any issue, which involves possible public or product liakility claims of substantial nature, including any judgemeant or arder which mary
have passed strictures on the conduct of the company or taken an adverse view regarding ancther enterprise that can have
negative implications on the company

™ Significan! labour problems and their proposed solutions

- Any significont development in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of
Voluntary Retirement Scheme, efc.,

. Sale of matenal nature of investrments, assets, which s not in the normal course of business

. Non-complionce of any regulatory, statutony or listing reguirements and shareholders service such as non-payment of dividend,
delay in share trarsfers, etc.

Suarterly complionce cerificates which includes non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and
shareholders service

Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors

Proposals reguiring strategic guidance and approvals of the Board of Dirsctors

Related party transactions

Formafion and reconstitution of Board Committees and their ferms of reference

Declarations by Independent Directors

Disclosures of interast of Directors and their shareholding

Appointment and fiking of remuneration of Statutory Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee
Appointment of Infernal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors

Discussion on reports and observations of Internal and Statutory Auditars

Dividend declaration

Making of loans and investment of surplus funds

Froposal for major investmeants, merger, amalgamations

Borrowing money, giving guaranfeas or providing security in respect ofloan

lssue of securties, shares, debenlures

Independent Directors

The Companies Act.2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2016 (" the Listing Regulations”) define
anindependent director asa personwho, including his/ her relatives, is or was not a promoter or employae of key managenal personngl of
the company or its subsidiaries. The person and his / her relatives should not have a material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
company or its subsidiares, during the three immediate preceding financial years or durlng the current financial year, apart from receiving
remuneration as an independent director.

& & & & & B
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Independent Directors of the company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Act and rules thereunder. [he Independent
Directors have confirrmed that they meet the criteria of independence lald down under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)()
of the Listing Regulations and that they are not aware of any circurmstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipoted, thot
could impair orimpact their ability to discharge their duties with an objectve Independent judgment and without any external influence.
The Board of Directors have faken on record the declarafion and confirmation submitted by the independent Directors after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same,

Inthe opinion of the Board, the Independeant Directors, fulfil the condifions of independence specified in saction 14%(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation146(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regulrements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of
the management.

Formnal letters of appointment have been issued 1o the Independent Directors and the terms and condifions of their apoointment are
disclosed on the company s website abwww narmadagelatines. com.

Tenure of Independent Directors

Inaccordance with Section 1491 1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy was appointed as independent director with effect
from 21.09.2021 who shall holds office for first term of & consecutive years i.e. from the date of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held
onZ1"September 2021 Up to the conclusion of 65" AGM of the Campany ortill 2 17September, 2024, whichever is earlier,

Mr. B Vijayadurai and Mrs. Manimegalai Thangamani were appoinled as independen! direclors of the company with effect from
14,07.2023 by the members of the company af the 62" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 25" September 2023 who shall hold office
for first term ot 5 (five) consecutive years till 13.07.2028.
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Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

Independeant Directors of the Company met separately on 28" Fabruary 2025 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and
memcers of the Management, In accordance with the Listing Regulations. following matters were, interdalia. reviewed and discussed in the
meating, as required under Schedule IV 1o the Act (Code for Independent Directors) and Regulation 25 (4) of the Listing Reguldafions,

At the said meeting. the Independent Directors, Infer-alia, considered the following:

. reviewed the performances of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as o whols;

. reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company taking inta consideration the views of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors,

™ Assassed the guality, quantity and fimeliness of flow of Information between the Company Management ond the Boord that s
necessary for the Board to effectively and recsonably perform their duties,

Allthe Independent Directors were present af both the Meetings. The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction on the performance of
the non- Independent directors in the functioning of the company, on the performance of the Chairman of the Board and performance of
the Board as awhole,

Directors' Familiarization programme:

The Company has an orlentafion process/Tamiliarization programme for its independent and other directors that includes brilefing on their
role, responsibilities, duties, and obligafions as o member of the Board, noture of business of the Company, plant vistt, manufactunng
process, quality, safety maasures in place, CSR activities etc., matters relating to Corporate Governance, Code of Business Conduct, Risk
Management, Compliance Programs, Infemal Audit, ete. and introduction fo senlor management team. This provides insights into the
Company fo enable the Independent Directors 1o understand the Company’s busingss in depth that would facilifate their active
participationin managing the Company,

As a process, when o new independenl director is appointed, o delalled Appointmenl Lefler incorporating the role, duties and
responsibilities, rermuneration and performance evaluation process, Code of Conduct and obligations on disclosures, is issued for the
acceptance of the Independent Directors,

Efforts are made to continually update the Independent Directors on all important developments within the Company and regulatory
changes viz. sharing important developments in the industry, the company’s intermnal environment and external environment, industrial
relations, updates on demand and supply situation for the Company s products, etc,

All new directors appointed on the Board go through an orlentation process/famillarzation programme, The details of fralining and
familiarization program are provided in the Corporale Governance Report and also available on the websile of the company ol
whww. narmadogelatines.com

Directors and Board Performance evaluation

Pursuant ta the provisions of the Companias Act, 2013and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements).2015,
the Board has carried out the annual perfarmance evaludation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of
the working of its Audit Committes, Nomination ond Remunerafion Cormmittes and other Committesas.

Pursugnt to applicable provisions of the Companias Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board. in consultation with its Nomination
&Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework containing. inter-alia, the process, format, altributes and criteria for
pearformance aevaluation of the entire Board of the Cormpany, its Cormmittees and individual Directors, including Indepandent Directors
The frameawork s monitorad, reviewed and updated by the Board, in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration Committea.
based on need and new compliance requirements. Evaluation of the Board and its Cormmmittess Is based on varlous aspects of thelr
functioning. such as, adeguacy of the consfitution and composition of the Board and its Committeas, matters addressed in the meatings.
processas followed at the mesting. Board's focus, regulatory compliances and Corporate Governance, stc.. ara in place, Similarly, for
evaluation of individual Director's performance, varous parameters like Director's profile, confribution in Board and Cormmiftee meetings.
execution and performance of specific duties, obligations, regulatory complionces and Governance, etc, are considerad.

Further. the parformance of Chairman. Executive Directors and Independent Directors are evaluated on certain additional parameters
depending upon their rales and responsibilities, Sirmilarly, criteria for evaluation of Independent Dirgctors include effective deployment of
knowledge and expertise, commitment to their roke towards the Company and various stokeholders, high ethical standards, aodherence to
applicable codes and policies, effective participation and application of objactive independeant judgemeant during meaatings. etc,

Accordingly. the annual performance evaluation of tha Board, its Committeas and each Director was carriad out for the financial year
2024-25 by the Board on parameters such as level of engagement and contribufion, independence of judgement, safeguarding the
interest of the Company and its mincrity shareholders, etc, was camied out, The performaonce evoluation of the Independent Directors was
carred aut by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors.
The Directors expressed their safisfaction on the performance of all the directors and board In the functioning and their contribution
towards tha growth of the company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Ine Board has constituted six committeess, namely Audit Commitfes, Momination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committes and Complaints Committees, The Board is
authorized to consfitute additional functional Commiftees, from time to fime, depending on business neecs. Durlng the year dll
recommendations mads by tThe committfess were aporoved by the Board.,
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committae has baen constituted b.y tha Board in compliance with the requiraments of Section 77af the Companias Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.

The Audit Committes assists the Board In s responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing and
reporting procices of the Compoany andits complionce with the legal and regulatory reguireaments.

The Committee’s purposea is fo overses the accounting and financial reporting proceass of the Company, the gudits of the Company's
financial staterneants, the appointment. independence, performance and remuneration of the statutory auditors, the performance
of internal auditors ond the Comparny’s risk monagement policies. The Audit Commities may call for the comments of the ouditors
about internal control systems. the scope of audit, including the obsarvations of the auditors and review of financial statement before
thelr subrmission to the Board. The Audit Committes shall have authority to Invesfigate any mafter within the ferms of reference or
referred to it by the Board.

The tarms of refarence of the Audit Commitiee cover all the areas menticned under Section 177 of the Act and Reguloation 18 read
with Part C of Schedule Il to the Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee. inter-alia. are asfollows:

. Reviewing the financial reports and the disclesure of its financial infermation fo ensure that the fincncial starerments reflect atrue and
fair position and that sufficient and credible information is disclosed in the reports.
- Recommending the appointrment and removal of infermnal and external auditors, fixation of audit fee and other payments.
. Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report, including gquartery /half yearly financial information.
. Reviewing with management fhe quarterly and annudl financlal statements before submission to the Board focusing primarly on:
- Any changesin accounting policies and practices;
< Major accounting entfries based on exercise of judgment by management;
- eralifications in dralt audit report;
- Significant adjustments arising out of qudit;
. The going concerm assumption;
- Complionce with accounting standards;
- Complionce with sfock exchange and legol reguirements concerning financial statements:
- Approval or any subsequaent modiflcation of fransactions of the company with related parties;
4 Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies;
- Disclosure of contingent liabilities:
- scrutiny ofinter-corporata leans and investments:
- Vialuation of undertakings or gssats of the company . wheraver it is necessany;
- Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.
- Reviewing with the management. andinternal auditors the adequacy of internal finonclal controls and risk management,
™ Reviewing the adeqguacy of internal audit function, including the audit charter, approval of the audit plan and its execution,
coverage and frequency of internal audit.
Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up theraon.
. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the infernal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or imegularity
or a failure of internal confrol systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board,
] Locking info the reasons for substantial defaults in payments to the shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
craditors,
™ Tareview the functioning of the Whistle Blowermechanism.
. Approval of gppointrmeant of the CRO (l.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any ofher person heoading the finonce function or
discharging that function) after assessing qualifications. experience and background, etc. of the candidate,
. Recommendation of the Policy on Related Party Transactions.
™ Camy out such other funchions as may be specifically refemred to the Committee by the Board of Directors or other Committes of
Directors.
During the financial year 2024-25 Audit Committes met four times on 21" May 2024, 07" August 2024 .04" November 2024 and 12"
Februany 2025, The time gop between two consecutive meefings was less than 120 days, as is required under Regulation 1 7(2 and
18(2)a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirerments) Regulations, 2015.
Necessary quonum was present at all the above Meetings.
The Audit Commilttee Meetings are altended by the Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and authorized representatives of the
Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors. The Company Secretarny acts as the Secretary fo the Audit Committee,
The chairman of the Audit Committee was presant af the Annual General Meeting of the company held on 24" September 2024
through Video-Conferencing.
Allmembears of the Audit Committes have accounting and financial management knowledge and expertise.
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Composition and Atendance during the year

Asof 317 March 2025, the Committes consists of 3 (three) mambars. all are Non-Executive Independent Directors. The members of the
Audit Committee have relevant experience in financial matters as well as have accounting or related financial management
expertise ond are considered financially literate as defined In Regulation 180130 of the Listing Reguldations, The Chairman of the Audit
Committes has expert knowledge in accounts & finance, coporate lows, and governance mattars,

The composition of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the company and the details of the mesatings aftended by its
members durng the financial year ended 31" March 2025 are as under:

Director Category Status Date of Meetings Yo Of
21.05.2024 07.08.2024 04.11.2024 12.02.2025 atlendance

Mr. B Vijayadurai MNEID Chairman (AP (AR V) {AP) 100

M. K. Krishinamaaorthy NEID Mamber VC) V) (W) (VC) 100

Mrs. Manimegalai

Thangamani MEID Memar (W) V) V) (LOA) a0

(VCiattended through video conference; (AP) — attended in person; LOA-Leave of absance; NA- Not applicable; Non-Executive
Independent Director (NEIL), Non-Executive Director (NED)

Internal Controls
The company has a formal system of internal contro! which examines operational effectiveness to ensure rellabllity of financial and
operafional. information and all statutory fregulatony complionces.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Thea Nomination and Remuneration Cormmittee (NRC) has been constituted by the Board in compliance with the requiremeants of
section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulaficn 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 201 5.

The broaa terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are asunder:

e [O dentify persons who are gualified 1o become directors and who may be gppointed in senior management In accordance
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal,

s [0 carmy out anevaluation of every director’ s perfarmance,

& loformulate the criteria for determining gualificotions, posifive otfributes, ond independence of adirector,

e [0 recommend to the Board a policy relafing to the remuneration for the directors, key managernal personnel, and other
employees,

s Toidentify persons who are gualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior managemaent in accordance
with the criteria laid down, recommend fo the Board their appointment and remowval,

« locamyoutanevaluation of every director’s performance,

s Toformulate the criteria for determining qualificalions, positive attribules, and independence of adirector,

Composition and Atendance during the year
As on 31st March 2025, the Nominagtion and Remuneration Committee consists of 3 (Three) Non-Execufive Directors, of which 2 (twao)
Diraectors are Independent Directors. Mr, BVijayadurai s the Chairparson of the Committes,

Tha chairperson of the committes attendead the Annual General Maating of the Company hald on 24th Saptember 2024 to answer
the shareholders’ queries.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Committee meton 21° May, 2024, 07" August, 2024, 04" Novemnber, 2024 and 28" February 2025,

The compasition of the committes and the detalls of meetings attendead by its members during the financial yeor ended 317 March
2025, are given balow:

Director Category Status Date of Meatings % of
21.05.2024 07.08.2024 04.11.2024 28.02.2025  aftendance

M B Vijayadurai MNEID Chairrman CAF) CAF) V) Ve 100

Mr. S Annamala NED Member (AP (AP) WC) (VC) 100

Mr, K. Krishnamoaorthy NEID Member VC) (V) (Ve (V) 100

(VC)-attended through video confarence; (AP-aftended in person; LOA-Leave of absence; NA-Not applicable; Non-Exacutive
Independen! Director (NEID), Non-Executive Director (MED)

Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remunearation Committes has adopted a policy which, interalia, deqls with the manner of selection of the Board
aof Directors. Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. The Policy is avallable on the company’s
wiabDsife(www . narmadagealatines.comy).

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

@D



%

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Remuneration of Directors:

During the year under review. there was no pecuniary relationship or transactions between the Company and any of its Non-
Executive Directors. apart from sitting fees, commission (if any) and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of
oftending the mestings of the Company.

During the Finoncial Year 2024-25, the Company did not odvance any loan to any of Its directors or companias and firms In which
directors are interested,

a) Non-Executive Director's compensation and disclosures

The Mon-Executive Directors, including Independsant Directors, are pald sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and
Commifttees of the Board, The Company pays sitting fees of T 20,000/- per meeting to the Non-Executive Directors for attending
Meetings of the Board, 10,000/- per meeting for altending the Audit Committee Mealing and T 10,000/- per meeling for altending
Morminafion and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholder's Relationship Committee Meeting ond Independent Director's Meeting.

=itfing fees paid to the Mon-Executive Directors during the FY 2024-25 are as defailed below:

Director's Name (Z lacs)
Mr. 5. Annarmalai 1.60
M. 5. Mahaswaran 1.00
Mr. B Vijoyadural 2.20
Mrs. Manimegalai Thangamani 1.40
Mr. K Krishnamoaorthy 2.20

b) Managing Director and Executive Director(s)

The rermuneration paid to the Managing/ Executive Director(s)of the Company is approved by the Board of Directors on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes. Remunearation of the executive directors consists of a fiked
component and a varable paerformance incentive. The Nomination ond Remuneration Committes mokes an annual approlsal of
the performance of the Managing/ Executive Director(s) based on o detgiled performance evaluation, and recommends the
compensation payable to them, within the parameters approved by the shargholders. to the Board tor thelr approval.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee in its meeting held on 14" August 2023 and subject to the
approval of members in the 62 annual general meeting held on 25" September 2023, the Board of Directors re-designated Mr. Ashok
K Kapur as the Managing Director of company w.e.f. 017 June, 2023 and extended the tenure of service to three years, i.e; up to 317
May, 2026, at the remuneration as detalled hereunder:

Remuneration, perquisifes, allowances and benefits: Amount (T)
M Remunerafion:
Bosic Pay 250,000 p.m.
(D Perguisites & Allowances:
HRA/Company Accommadation 50% of the Basic Pay 1,25, 000 p.m.
Conveyance Allowance 15,000 p.m.
Special Alowance 30,000 p.m,
Co.’s contfribution to Provident Fund (12% on the basic as per the Company s rules) 30,000 p.m,
Total 4,50,000 p.m.
Leove Traveal Allowance One-month basic pay
Medical reimbursement of actual axpenses / allowance for saelf and family One-menth basic pay
Parsonal Alowance 1.00.000 p.a.

Anrwal increment: 10% on the Basic pay,

Performance based bonus/incentive:  On achieving an EBITDA (Before other income and interast income) of T 20 Crores - § lakhs
an the On EBITDA above T 20 crores, an addifional 1% of the EBITDA above T 20 crores

The aggregate value of the salary and perquisites paid for the year ended 31*March 2025 to Mr. Ashiok K Kapur (Managing Director)
wis T 66,24 lacs, Basidas this, the Managing Director is entifled to gratuity and encashment of leave at the end of tenure of service.
The agreement with the Managing Director is for a period of 3 years from the date of appointment i.e. up to 31st May 2026 and the
same can be tferminated by either party by giving three months” notice inwrting.

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee
The constitution of the Stakeholder’'s Relationship Commitiee meets with the requiremenls of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 20 of the S5EBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015,

The Commitree specifically looks Info the varnous aspects of inferest of shareholders, debenture holders and other securlty holders.
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In terms of Section 178 (5) of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the terms of reference of the Stakeholders
Relafionshio Committes are as under;

e Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related o fransfer/transmission of shares,
non- receipt of annudl report. non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new /duplicate cerificates, general mesfings atc,

s Reviewof measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by sharehaolders.

e [Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of vanous services being rendered by the
Reqgistrar & Share Transfer Agent.

e [Review of the varlous meaosures and initiatives taken by the listed anfity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants fannual reports fstatutory nofices by the shareholders of the company.
Recommend methods to upgrade the standard of sgervices fo investors.

s Monltorimplementation and compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct tor Prohibition of Insider Trading.

e Camry out any ofther function as is referred by the Board from time fo fime and /or enforced by any statutory notification/
cmendment ormodification as may be applicable.,

. Ferformsuch other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties,

As on 315t March, 2025, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of 3 (three) Directors comensing 2 (hwo) Non-Executive
Indepeandent Director, 1 (ona) Executive Director. Mr. K Krishnamoorthy, independent Director s the Chairman.

Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy the Chairman of the Committes attended the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 247
september, 2024 through video conference faclity fo address the shareholders gueries.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Committes met on 12" February 2025, The Committee oversees the stotus of investors
grievances. During the year, one complaint was received from the shareholder which have been resolved 1o the satisfaction of the
complainants and no investor complaint was pending af the beglinning or af the end of the year.

The composlition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committes and the detalls of the meetings attendead by ifs members during the
financial year ended 317 March 2025 are as under:

Director Calegory status Date of Meeting % of aftendance
12.02.2025

Mr, K. Krishnamoorthy MEID Chairmman (W 100

Mr. Ashiok K, Kapur EL Member {AP) 100

Mr, B Vijayadurai MNEID Memiber (AP 100

WVCrottended through video conference; (AP} - aftended in person; LOA-Leave of absence: NA- Mot applicable; Non-Executive
Independent Director (NEID) . Non-Executive Director (NED). Executive Director (EC)

Narme and designation of Compliance Officer

During the perod under review Ms. Meenu Sharma, Company Secretary was the Compliance Officer fill 287 June 2024 thereafter Ms.
hMahima Patkar, Company Secretary, was the Compliance Officer w.e.f. 077 Aug. 2024 for complying with the requiremmeants of 3EBI
Regulations.

In order to provide efficient services to Investors. and for speedy redressal of the complaints, the Committee has delegated the
power of approving transmission of shares and other maotters ke spiit up/sub-division ond consolidation of shares, issue of new
{duplicate certificates. consolidation and exchange. to Mr, Ashok K Kapur, Managing Director, Mr, Mahesh Vierma (upto 07" January,
2025y, Mr. Arun Jalswal {w.e.f. 158" March, 2025) Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Meena Sharma {upto 28" June, 2024), Ms. Mahima
Patkar(w.e.f, 07" August, 2024), Company Secratary,

Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) Committee
The Company has constifuted a Carporate Soclal Responsibllity (C3R) Committea as requlred under Sectlon 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the C5R Committee broadly comprisas:

e Toreview the axisting TSR Policy and to make it more comprahensive so as fo indicate the activities fo be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013,

e lorecommend the amount of expenditure to be Incured on C5R activities,
« [loprovide guidance on varous CSR activities fo be undertaken by the Company and to monitor its progress.

The Board has adopted the CSR Polley as formulated and recommended by the C5R Committee. The same s displayved on the
welbsite of the Company (wwiw. narmadagelatines.com). The Annual Report on CSR activities for the year 2024-25 forms o part of the
Board’'s Report,

As an 31" March 2025, the Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR) Commilttee comprised of 4 (four) Directors comprising 1 (one) Non-
Executive Independent Director, 1 (one) Executive Director and 2 (hwo) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. Mr. 5 Annamalal,
MNon-Executive Non-independent Director is the Chairmnan, Mr. 5 Annamalai the Chairman of the Committee attended the Annual
General Mesting of the Company held on 24" September 2024,
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During the finoncial year 2024-25, the CSR Committee met one time on 21" May 2024, The composition of the C5R Committes and the
details of members’ participation at the meetings of the Committee are asunder:

Director Category Status Dateof Meeting % of attendance
21.05.2024

Mr. § Annamalai MNED Chairman (AP 100

Mr. 5 Mahaswaran MED Member (VC) 100

Mr, B Vijayadurai NEID Member (AP 100

Mr, Azhok K, Kapur ED Member (AF) 100

(VC)-attended through video conference; (AP)— attended in person; LOA-Leave of absence; NA-Mot applicable; Non-Executive Independent
Director (MEID), Non-Executive Director (NED); Executive Director (ED).

5.  Risk Management Commitiee
The Risk Management Committee of the Company has been constituted to frame, imglement and monitor the Risk Management
Plar for the Company. The Committes is responsitle for reviewing the Risk Management Plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major
risks Identtfled by the businesses and functions are systematically addressaed through rmitigating actions on a continuing basls.

Business Risk Evaluation and Manogement is on ongoing process within the organisation. The Company has a robust risk
management framework to identity, monitor and minimize risks os also identify business opportunities.

The objectives and scope of the Risk Management Committee broadly comprises:

o Owversight of risk monagement performed by the executive management;

Reviewing the Risk policy and framework in ine with local legal requirerments and SEBI guidelines;

Reviewing risks and evaluatas freatment including initioting mitigation actions and ownership as per a pre-defined cycle:
Drefining framework for idenfificafion, assessrment, monitoring, and mitigation and reporting of risks:

Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the Committee shall review risks trends, exposure, potential impact analysis and mitigation
elan.

During the financial year 2024-25, the committes met on 31"March 2025,

The composition of the Risk Management Commiftee and the details of members’ paricipation at the meetings of the Committes

are as under;
Director/Members Category Status Date of Meeting % of
31.03.2025 attendance

Mr. S Annamalal Mon-Executive Non-Independeant Director Chairman (VT 100
M. Ashok K, Kapur Managing Director Mermber (AP 100
M. Sudhir K. Shrivastave Factory Manager Mermber (AP 100
M. 5. Bhattacharya .M. Operafions Mernber (LOA) 100
M. VN Tripathi Manager Maintenance Mernber (AR 100

VCy-attended through video conference:{AP)-attendedin person: LOA-Leave of absence: NA-Not applicable.
(1) M VN Tipathl was appointed as the Member to the Risk Management Committes w.ef 01.01.2025 and during his tenure 1
{one) mesting was held.

6. Complaints Committea
The Cormparny has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The policy of the Comparny is in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Wormen at the Workplace (Frevention, Probibition & Redressal) Act, 20013, All employees
{permaneant, contractual, temporary and traineas) ara coverad undar this policy. An Internal Complaints Committes ik in ploce to
redress the complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The compaosilion of the Commiltes is asunder:

Director/Members Category Status

N, Ashok K. Kapur Managing Director hgirmnon
Dr. Sushma Rajput Prasiding Officer Member
Dr. Kalpana Mishra From NGO Member
W, Sudhir K, Shrivastava Factory Manager Mamber

No complaint was received by the Company during the financial yeor ended 31" March 2025
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CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

In compliance with Regulation17(5) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and the Companies Act, 2012 the
Board of the Company has adopted the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics ("the Code’). The Code is applicable to all Directors and Senior
management personnel of the Company. The Code, while laying down in delail the standards of business conduct, elthics and
govermnmance, center's on the following theme:.

Ihe Company's Board of Directors and Senior Managemenit Personnel are responsible for conduct of the business, and are committed 1o
setting the standards of conduct contained in this Code and for updating these standards, as appropriate, to ensure their confinuing
relevance, effectivensass and responsiveness fo the needs of investors and all other stfakeholders as also to reflect corporate, legal and
regulafory developments. All The Board members and Senior Management of the Company as on March 31, 2025 have affirmed
compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct in accordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A copy of the Code has been put on the Company's website (www . narmadagelatines.com). The Code
has been circulatad to Directors and Management Parsonnel, and its compliance is affirmed by them annudally, A declaration signed by
the Managing Director of the Company to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for ifs Directors and employees of
the Company is given below:

Compliance with the Code of Conduct

| Ashok K. Kapur, Managing Director of the company, hereby declare thot the company hos adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board
Mermbers and

Senior Management, In ferms of Regulation 17(5) of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the
Board Members and Senlor Management hove affirmed complionce with the said Code of Conduct of board of directors and senior
management,

Dorta: 247 May, 2025 Ashok K Kapur
Flace ; Jabalpur Managing Director
GEMERALBODY MEETINGS

Location and time where the lost three AGMS were held, whether any speclal resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs. The last three
Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

AGM  Year Venue Date &Time Special Resolutions
=1 2021-22 Hotel Narmada Jacksons,  Thursday, 22nd Septemioer, MNone
South Civil Lines, 2022 at 11:30 am

Jabalpur - 482001
G2 2022-23  Hotel MNarmada Jacksons, Monday, 25th September, i Re-appointment of Mr. Ashok K Kapur s the

South Civil Lines, 2023 at 12:00 noon Managing Director,
Jabtalpur - 482001 i Appointment of Mr. 5 Annamalal as Director of the
COMPAny.
i}  Appointment of Mr. 5 Maheswaran as Director of
the company.

v}  Appointment of Mr. B Vijoyadural as Independent
Director of the company.

Vvl Appointment of Mrs. Manimegalai Thangarmani as
Independent Director of the company.

63" 2023-24  Hotel Narmada Jacksons, Tuesday, 24th September, Re-appointment of Mr. 5. Maheswaran as Non-Executive
South Civil Lines 2024 ot 12:00 noon Mon-Independent Director
Jabalpur - 482001

Extraordinary General Meeting:
No Extraordinary General Meeting of the members was held during the financial year 2024-25,

Postal Ballot

During the yvear ended 217 March 2025 no resolution was passed through postal ballot, Cumently, no resclution is proposed to be passed
through postal balle!. However, il required, the same shall be passed in complionce of provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Lisling
Regulations or any other applicable lows.

AGM via Video Conferencing / Other Audic Visual Means

Tha Ministry of Corporate Affairs "MCA" has vide its Ganeral Circular Mos, 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 1772020 dated April 13, 2020, and
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the lotest being 9/2024 dated Septemibzer 19, 2024, (Collectively refemed 1o as "MCA Circulars” )
has permitted the companies to hold their Annucl General Meeting CAGNM") through Video Confaerence ("WC") of through Other Audio
Visual Means ("OVAM), without the physical presence of the Maembers at a common venue, In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, ("the Act "), the Securfies and Exchonge Board of India (Lsting Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents)
Regulafions. 2015 ("SE8I Listing Regulations”), and Sacratarial Standard-2 on Genaral Meeatings (55-2" issued by the Insfitute of Company
Secretaries of India and MCA Circulars, the &4th AGM of the Company i being held threugh VC/CAVM on Monday, Sept. 22, 2025, ot
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11:00 a.m. {IST). The proceadings of tha AGM are deemed 1o be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company situated at CARAVS R
Mo, 28, CivilLines, JABALPUR, Madhya Pradesh, India, 482001,

Remote e-voling and E-voling at the AGM

Ine company has amanged e-voting and Rermote E-voting Facilities for the shareholders 1o vote on the resolutions to be passed at the
ensuing AGM. The Company has fixed Monday, 15" September, 2025 as the cul-off date for determining shareholders entifled 1o
participate in the e-voting process. The facllity for e-voting will alsoe be avallable ot the AGM, and the shareholders who have not casted
their votes by remote e-voting can exercise their votes ot e-voting during AGM.

DISCLOSURES

Compliance with mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all the applicable maondatory requirements of the Lsting Regulations during the financial yvear 2024-25.
Guartarly compliance report on Corporate Governanca, in the prascribed format, duly signed by the complionce officer is submitted
regularly with the 3tock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

Furthier, In line with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) (Third Amendment) Regulations, the Company has alse filed
the Integrated Corporate Governance Report in the format specified by SEBI within the prescribed time lines.

Related Party Transactions
The Company has farmulated a Palicy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions, in
accordance with Relevant provisions of Companies Act 2013 and Listing Regulations.

All Reloted Party Transactions are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the transaction. All transactions enterad info with Related
Parties as defined under the Companias Act, 2013 and Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements).
Regulations, 2015, during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basls and as per the
provisions of 3ectlon 188 of the Companles Act, 2013,

There were no materially significant fransactions with related parties during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest of the
Company. Attention of the Sharehaolders is drawn to the disclosures of fransactions with the related partles set out In Notes on Financial
Staternents, forming part of the Annual Report,

The Policy has been disclosed on the website of the Company at www . narmadagelatines.com.

Strictures and Penalties

The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. No other strictures or penalties hove been imposed on the
Company by Stock Exchanges or the Securnities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} or any statutory authority on any matters related to
capital markets during the last three years, except during the year 2021-22 there was a delay in compliance with Regulation 17(1) of SEBI
{Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requiremeants), Regulation, 2015, for which penalty was imposed on the company, the same wds rmade
good on 19" November2021,

CEO & MD/CFO Cerfification

The CEO & MD and the CFO have issuad cerificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation17(8) SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015 certifying thot the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement, and these statements represent a true
and fair view of the Company s affairs. The said cerdificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Repart.

Vigil Mechanism,/ Whistle Blower Policy

The Company believes in conducting ifs affairs In a fair and fransparent manner by adopting the highest standards of professionalism,
honesty, inftegrity and ethical behavior, Any acfual or potential viclation of these principles and the Company’'s Code of Conduct for
Employees woluld be a matter of serious concern for the Company.

Employees have a role and responsibility In pointing ouf such violations. This Whistle Blower Policy 5 formulated to provide a secure
environment and 1o encourage employeeas of the Company to report unethical, unlawful or impropar practices, acts or activitias In the
Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse persennel action against those employees who report such
practicesin good faith and no personnel had been denled access o the Audit Committee.

The Committee offirms thot one complaint has been received under the Whistle-Blower Policy/\Vigil Mechanlsmm during the year under
reniew  same s being resolved,

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading practices

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company had adopted the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading and Code of Comorate Disclosure Practices (which includes Policy on Determination of Legitimate Purpose). All the Directors,
employeas and third parties such as auditors, consultants, etc, who could have access to the unpublished price sensitive information
of the Comgany are governed by the said Code.

The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading lays down guidelines advising the Management, staff and ofther connected persons,
on proceduras to be followed and disclosuras to be made by tham while dealing with the shares of the Company, and while handiing any
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, caulioning them of the consequeanceas of violalions. The Company Secrelary is responsible for
implementation of the Code.

The mading window is closed dunng the fime of declaration of results and on the cccumrence of any mafericl events as perthe code. The
Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices is hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.narmadagelatines.com.

All Directors and designoted employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.
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Curing the year under review the Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Insider Trading Regulations
and has verlfied that the systems got iIntermnal controls are adeguate and operating effectively.

Legal Compliance Reporting
The Board of Directors reviews in detail, on a quarterly basis, the report of complionce with respect to all lows and regulations opplicaoble to
Ihe Company.

The Company has developed a very comprehansive Legal Compliance System. Any non-compliance is serflously taken up by the Board,
with fixation of accountakbility and reporting of steps taken for rectification of non=-compliance

Recommendations of Committee(s) of the Board of Directors
During the year, all recommendations of Committee(s) of the Board of Directors, which are mandatordly required, were accepted by the
Board.

Mean: of Communication

The guarterly, hall-yearty and yearly financial results of the Company are sent to Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved by
the Board. The quarterly f annual results are generally published inaf least one English language natlonal dally newspaper circulating Inthe
whaole or substantially the whole of India (Financial Express / Hitavada) and in one regional daily newspaper circulating in Madhya Pradesh
such os, Navbharat, Deshbandhu, Dainik Bhaskar, Nai Duniya and Patrika.

Pursuant to the MCA circulars and SEBI Circular, the Annual Report for FY 2024-25 containing the Notice of AGM was sent through emcil to all
those Members whose emdail |Ds were registered with the Company/ Depository Parficipants.

Annual reports, quarterty rasults, shareholding pattern. notices, press release, stock exchange disclosures and other important information
of the Company are also posted on the BSE websile and the Company s website waavw narmadagelalines. corm.

Maonagement Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

Communication related to Dividends and updation of records
The Company issues vorious communication such as reminder letters to sharehaolders for claiming unclaimed dividends, updation on PAN,
Bank details, signature, and other details. and nolice before transfarring shares are iable to fransfer to IEPF.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Cenire (the ‘Listing Centre’)
BSE's Listing Centre I5 o web-based gpplication designed for corporates. Al pericdical compliance filings like shareholding paffemn,
corporate Govaemance report, media raleases, ameng others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre,

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a cenfralised web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this systemn are
Centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by
investors of actions taken on the complaint and its cument status.

GEMERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION

() Company Registration Details: The Company is registeraed in the State of Madnya Pradesh, India. The Corporate dentity
Number (CiN)allotred to the Company by the Ministry of Conporate Affoirs (MCA) is
L2411 TMPI1961PLCD 16023

gy 64" Annual General Mesting Monday, 22™ September 2025 at 11:00 a.m.
Venue: Hotel Narmada Jacksons, South Civil Lines, Jabalpur-482001

(i Financial Year: Apdl 1 to March 31

(v)  Financial Calendar 2024-25: First Quarter Results 07 August 2024
Second Quarter Results o 0" November, 2024
Third Quarter Results 12" February 2025

Results for the guarter, and
Annucl Results for the year

ending on 31" March, 2025 24" May 2025
v)  Cut-off date: 15" September 2025
(vil) Dividend payment date: Dividend as recommeanded by the Board of Directors. If approved at the Annual General

Meeting will be paid after 237 September 2025 to those sharehaldens whose names appear
on the Company's Register of Members on 15" September 2025

(villy  Listing of Shares and ofher Securnties; Bombay Stock BExchange Limited (BSE) Phiroze Jesjeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-01
() Stock Code: scrip Code: Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) "526/39" Company Symibol, SHAWGGELTIN

(¥} Stock Market Data: The monthly high/low morket prices of the shares during the yvear 2024-25 at The Bombay
Stock BExchange Limited (BSE) were s under:(T per share)
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Month High Price Low Price Trading Volume
Apr-24 414.70 327.80 43915
hMay-24 434.80 365.55 P399
Jun-24 407.00 352.00 43630
Jui24 40495 376.30 48688
Aug-24 415,00 360,20 73632
Sep-24 414.00 365.20 125686
Oct-24 388.95 330.00 &7 446
MNow-24 366,00 332,65 53395
Dec-24 449.40 360,00 2394615
Jan-25 395.95 335.00 66551
Feb-25 357.95 301.00 44614
PMor-25 352.70 308,25 54244
(Source BSE website)
. Share price performance compared with broad based
BSE
Company's Share Price As onl.04.2024 359.90
As on 31.03,2025 332.90
Change 7.50%
BSE Sensax As on 1.04,2024 73.968.62
‘As on 31.03.2025 77 690,69
Change 24.56%
. Parformance of Share price in comparison to the BSE Sensex
Stock Price Vs Sensex Movement
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» Registrar & Share Transfer Agants
C.B. Managemeant Services Pvt. Lid

Rosoi Court Sth floor

20, Sir R N Mukherjes Road.
KOLKATA — 700001

Tel No : 033-4011 4700
Email : rfa@cbhbmsl.com.
Websife ; www.cbrmsl.com
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Dividend declared on equity share for the last five years

Year Rafe of Dividend Per equity share Dividend Payout flacs)
2019-20 100% 10.00 &04.96

2020-21 100°% 10,00 604,96
2021-22 100% 10.00 0496
2022-23 (Interim Dividend and

Final Dividend paid) 1000% 100.00 6045 .59
2023-24 100 10.00 &0 b

x Details of Public Funding Obtained inthe last three years
The Company has not cbiained any public funding in the last three years.

. Share transfer system
In terms of Reguiation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations. a5 amended from timea to tima. securities can be transfered only in
dematernalized form with effect from April 1, 2019, excep! in case of request received Tor fransmission or ranspasilion of securities.
Mermbers holding shares in physical form are reguested fo consider comnverting their holdings to dematericlized form. Transfars of
aquity shares in elactronic form are affected through the depositarias with no involverment of tha Company.

. Demcoterialization of Shares-Procass

With effect from April 01, 201% 52BI has barred physical transfer of shares of listed companies and mandated transfers only through
demat. However, investors are not bared from holding shares in physical form. We request shareholders whose shares are in physical
made 1o dematerialize thelr shares. Shareholders holding shares in dematenialized mode have been requested to register thelr email
address. bank account detalls and mobille number with their depository participants. Those holding shares In physical mode have
been requested to furnish their Permanent Account Number (PAN). emall address, bank account details and moblle number with the
Company’s Registfrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA), ot rfa@cbmsl.com. Updating all the relevont Information will enable
shareholders to receive dividends and cormmunications on time.

For convenience of shareholders, the process of getting the shares dematernalized is given hersunder:

a) Demataccount should be openad with a Depository Participant (DP).

by Shareholders should submit the Dematerialization Reguest Forrm (DRF) along with share cartificates in onginal, to their DP,
¢} DPwill process the DRF and will generate a Damateriglization Request Number (DRN).

ey DP will submit the DRF and onginal share certificates to the Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA), which & C, B, Management
Senices Pvi. Lid.

a) RTA wll process the DRF and confirm or reject the request to DP fdepositaries.

i Upon confirmation of reguest, the shareholder will gat credit of the equivalent number of shares In his demalt account
maintained with the DF,

. Listing Fees
Annual listing fees for the year 2024-25 have been paoid to the Bombay Sfock Exchange Limited (BSE) where the securities of the
Company are listed.

In compliance with the Listing Regulations /SEBI Guidelines:

. A Practicing Company Secretary carries out the Reconclliation of Share Capital Audit as mandated by SEBl, and reports on the
reconciliation of total Issued and listed Capital with that of total share copital admitted /held in dematericlized form with NSDL and
COEL and those hald in physical form, This audit is carried aut on a quartery basis and the report thareof & submitted to the Stock
Exchange, where the Company’s shares are listed and s also placed before the Board.

. Shareholding pattern and financial results (guarterly) and the Annual Reportsiannually} are being uploaded on
wiww listing Dseindia.com.

" A Practicing Company Secretary carries out a Due Diligence survey, pertaining to share transfers, fransmissions, etc. annually and
necessary cerlificate to that effect is issued and the same is fled with the Stock Exchanges in compliance with #Regulation 40(9) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligotions and Disclosure Reguirements) 2015,

#omittad w.e.f. 12" December, 2024 vide SEBI (LODR) third Amendments Regulations, 2024,
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. Distribution of Shareholding
Range (Mo. of shares) shareholders Equity Shares
Nos % to Total Nos, % to Total
Shareholders shares

Upto 500 268 94.26 44974 735
501-1000 238 3.09 185709 3.07
1001-2000 100 1.30 147054 2.43
2001-3000 14 0.41 g20e0 0.81
3001-4000 14 0.18 ABRXT 0,91
A001-5000 12 D16 54938 0.91
S001-10000 26 0.34 181493 3.00
1000 1andabove 20 0.26 4204502 81.07
Total 7711 100.00 6049587 100.00

. Dematerialisation of shares as on 318t March, 2024

Category No. Shares %o P &?a?-
Demat 4014715 9,42
Physical 34872 0.58
Total 6049587 100

Diemait

=2

. Shareholding patiern of the company as on 31st March, 2025

Category Noof  No. ofshares % holding
shareholders
Promoters 2 4697489 75.00% Diectars (Relalives0.02%  Clearing Cofporation
MRIs 100 8796 0.44% s e SI0%
Indicn Institutions 1 450 0.07% rusu 0.01%
Nationalised Banks Nil 0 0.00% e
Domestic Companies 42 83204 1.38% Pakinensvp I
Limited Liability Partnership 3 76 oo | T fair"“""“
Public Shareholders 7254 1305792 21.55% Matia "'3 :;:'I-‘;' Banks
Directors/Relatives ] 1050 0.02% I"M"DIET-';L“W
IEFF 1 24334 0.40% MRk 0.64%
HUF 154 54244 0,905 F—
Clearing Conporation 1 150 0.00% 5%
Trusts 1 400 0.01%
Total 7560 6049587 100.00

Note:Difference in the Numbxer of Shareholders In distrloution of shareholding and sharenholding pattem due to merging of
Shareholders as per FAN,

™ Registered Office:
‘Carays’, Room No. 28
15 Civil Lines, Jobalpur-482001(0M.P.) Ph.: (0761) 2678627

. Address for Correspondence To the Company:
Narmada Gelatines Limited
28 Caravs. 15 Clvll Lines, P.CQ. Box No .21, Jabalpur-482001

To the Registrar & Share fransfer Agents:

C.B. Management Sarvicas Pvt, Lid

Rasol Court 5th flaar, 20, Sir R N Mukhense Road, KOLKATA — 700001
Tel No: 0233-4011 4700

Email: ra@chmsl.com, Website: www.clbmsl.com

. Plant Location
Meergaon]. Bheraghot Road. Jabolpur, M.P.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25




%

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Transfer of Unclaimed amounis to Investor Education and Profection Fund

As required under Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act. 2013, al unclamed/unpaid dividend, delbenture infarest as well as
principal armount of debentures as at March 31. 2025 remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date they
became due for payment, have been transfered to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Cenfral
Govarnmeant,

The Inveastors are advised to claim the unencashed equity dividend money for thea years 2017-18 1o 2023-24 lving in the unclaimed
accounts of the Company before the due dates (as indicated in the Notes to the Notice),

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has fransfenead to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, unclaimed dividends
as detalled hereunder:

Equity Share Unclaimed Dividend 2016-17: 1 85,094/

Transfer of Equity Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund

In terms of Section 124 (§) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule & of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
{Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2014, {as omended from fime to fime) shares on which dividend has not beenpaid or
claimed by a shareholder for a period of seven consecutive years or more shall be credited to the Demat Account of Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) within o period of thirty days of such shares becoming due to be so fransfered. Upon fransfer of
such shares, all benefits (like bonuses, atc.), if any, accruing on such shares shall also be credited 1o such a Demat Account and the
voling rights on such shares shall remain frazen till the rightful owner claims the shares. Shares which are fransferred o the Demal
Account of IEPF can be claimed back by the shareholder fram IERFF by following the procedure prescribed under the aforesoid rules.
Therefore, itis in the interest of shareholders to regulary claim the dividends declared by the Company.

During the financial year 750 eguity shares of the Company were transferred to the [EPF. Relevant details of such shares is available on
the website of the Company www narmadagelafines.com.

Certificate from a Company Secretary regarding disqualification of Directors

The Secretaricl Auditors of the Company Dr, Asim Kumar Chottopadhyay have issued a cerfificate that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the
Board/Minlstry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutony authorty. The same is annexed herewith as a part of this report.

Certificate on Corporate Governance

Compliance certificate from Dr, Asimm Kumar Chattopadhyay, Practicing Company Secretary, confirming compllance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements),
Regulations, 2015, is ataochead to the Directors’ Report forming part of the Annual Report,

CEQ/CFO Cerlificate

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer provide annual certiflcation on the financial reporting and intermal controls to
the Board in Terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligaficns and Disclosure Requirernents), Regulations, 2015, The Whole-Time
Director and the person heading the Accounts function also give quartery certification on the financial results while placing the
financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015, The annual certificate for the financial year ended 31"March 2025, given by the Managing Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company is published hereunder:
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To,
The Board of Directors Narmadao Gelatines Lid. Jabalpur

Sub: Compliaonce Cerlificate for the yeor ended 31sf March 2025 as per Regulafion 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Regquirements), Regulations, 2015.

3ir,

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief:

A, That we haove reviewed financial statements and the ¢ash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowladge
and belief:

1. these statermnents do not contain any materially untrue staterment or omit any materdal fact or contain statements that
might be mislieading;

2. these statements fogether présent a frue and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with exishing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. That, ro the best of our knowledge and bellef, no fransactions were entered into by the company during the year which are
fraudulent, llegal or violative of the company s code of conduct,

C.  That we accep! responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal contrals for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveneass of Internal confrol systems of the company pertaining to financlial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal confrols, if any, of
whichwe are aware and the steps we have faken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

0. Thatwe hove indicored o the auditors and the Audif commitres:
1. Significant changes ininternal contral over financial reporting durng the yvear, ifany.,

2. Significant changes In accounting policies durng the yvear, if any, and thaf the same hove been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements; and

3. Instances of significant frauds of which we have become aware and the involvement thergin, if any, of the management
or an employee having a significant role in the company s internal control system over financlal reporting.

Thanking you,

/- /-

Ashok K. Kapur Arun Jaiswal
Managing Director Chisf Financial Officer

Place: Jobalpur,
Craxte: 24" Mayy, 2025

COn behalf of the Boord of Directors

5. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur
Chairrnan Managing Director

Place : Jabalour
Date: 13" August, 2025
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ISSSUED UNDER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
Ta The Members of Narmada Gelatines Limited

| have examined the compliance of the condifions of Corporate Governance by Narmmada Gelatines Umited (CIN
L2411 TMPI19ST1PLCO16023) ('the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March 2025, gs stipulated in The Securities and Exchonge Boord of
India (Listing Cbligations And Disclosure Requiremenls) Regulalions, 2015 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Chligations And Disclosure Reguirements) (Amendrment ) Regulations, 2018 and other Amendment thereof (herainafter collectively
referred to as ” Listing Regulations™)

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to review
of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
@overnance. Itis neither an oudit nor an exprassion of opinion on the fingncial stotements of the Company.

In my opinion and 1o the best of my Informafion and according to the explanations given 1o me. and the representations mada by tha
Directors and the management, | cerlify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporale Governance as slipulaled in
Listing Regulations during the year ended 3 1st March 2025.

| state that such complionce is neither an assurance as to the future viobility of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conductad the affairs of the Company.

Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
FCSNo. 2303.CPBED

P No. =63/3/2025

Date 1 20" April 2028

UDIN : FOO2303G000156985

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE REGARDING DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant fo Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)() of SEB] (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguiremeants) Regulations, 2015)

The Members,
MNarmada Gelatines Limited, Caravs, Reom N, 28,
15 Civil Lines, Jabalpur - 482 001

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms returns and disclosures recelved from the Directors of Narmada Gelatines Limited
(CIN L2411 TMP 1941 PLCO18023) and hoving registered office ot Caravs, Room No. 28, 15 Civll Lines, Jabalpur - 482001 (hereinafter refered
to as "the Company”)} produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate. in accordance with Regulation
34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause {103 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

Ir iy opinlon and fo the beast of my information and according to the verfications (Including Directors Identification Number (DIN)) status
at the portal www. rmoca.gov.in as considerad necessary and expdanations furnished to me by the Company and its officers, | hereby certify
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as staled below as on the Financial Year ended 315l March, 2025 has been
debared or disqualified from being appointed or confinuing as Directors of the Companies by the SEBI, MCA or any such other Statutary
ALthority,

Sr. No. DIN Name Designation Date of Appointment
1 Q2797914 Kailasom Krishnamoaorthy Ciractor 21/09/2021

3 Q0124807 Ashok Kumar Kapur Managing Director O1/06/2009

4 Q0001381 Annamalal Sankaralingam Director 14/07 /2023

o Q0143044 sankaralingam Maheswaran Director |40/ ..f 2023

6 07403509 Bolasubramanian Vijoyadural Director 14/07/2023

.T" iDEEd 123 "r:ﬁr::n'i'rnegralu i--mungﬂmuh'i- _If}'iFeé’rDr ! 14fﬂ?f?ﬂ23 :

Ensuring the eligibility for appointment / continuity of every director on the Board Is responsibility of the Management of the Company. My
rasponsibility is to express an opinion basad on my verification, This certificate netther an assurance as 1o the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
FCSNo, 2303.CPBRD
PR Mo, -6375/2025

Date : 20" April 2025
UDIM : FO02303=000156963
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of
Marmada Gelatines Limitfed

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We hove audited the accompoanying standalona financial staternants of Narmoda Gelatines Limited Cthe Company™. which comprises
of Balarnce Sheet as at March 31. 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income). the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial stotements including a
summany of matenal accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Im our opinion and o the best of our information and according fo tfhe explanations given to us, the oforesoid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 132 of the Act recd with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. ('Ind AS") and other accounting principlas generally accepted in India, of the state of aifairs of the
Company asat March 31, 2025, Ifs profit (Including other comprehensive Income), changes in equity and Its cash flows for the year ended
on thot dote,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In gcccordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Qur responsibiiities
under those Standards are further descrbed In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ananclal Staterments section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(IC Al together with the ethicol requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules madea thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ather ethical responsitilifies in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and ﬂpﬂrﬁﬁ!lﬂfﬁ T pmvlcﬂe 1 basis for our audit r::lf:llﬂll:}r"l on the
standalons flnancial statements.

Key Audit malters
Ky audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, wera of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the curment period, We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Infermation Ofher than tha Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’ sreport thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informmation. The Other information comprises the information included in the
Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board report but does not include tha standalone financial statements ond our auditor's report
Ihereon. The reports are expecled to be made available o us after the dale of this auditor’s report.

Cur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not exprass any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial stafements, our responsitility s to read the ofther information and, in doing so,
consider whather the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated.

When we read the repaort, if we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement therein, we are required fo communicate the matter to
those charged with governance,

Management responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
standaolone financicl stotements that give a true aond fair view of the finoncial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive incomes), changeas in eguity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accourding Standards specified under Secfion 133 of the Act. This responsibiity also ncludes
maintenance of adegquate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularifies; selection and application of approprlate accounting pollcles;
making judgrnents and esfimates that are regsonable and prudent: and design, implementation ond maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls. that ware operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completenass of the accounting records. relevant fo the
preparation and presentafion of the standalone financial statements thot give a tue and fair view and are free from matenal
misstotemant, whether dus to fraud or error,

In preparing the stondalone finoncial stotements, managemeant is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to confinue as o going
concem, disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concermn and using the going concermn basis of accounting unless
management eltherirtends fo liguidate the Company or to cease cperaftions, or has no reglistic alfernative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are clso responsible for oversesing the Company s financiol reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Cur objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the standalone financial statermnents as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud oreror, and to lssue an auditor's report that Includes our opinlon, Reasonable assurance s a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an oudit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matenal misstatement when it
exlsts, Misstatements can arise from fraud of erarand are considered material if, individually or in the aggregote, they could recsonably be
expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 3As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the cudit,
We also:

. Identity and assess the risks of maternal misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,. design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufliclent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The rsk of not detecting a rnatenal misstraternent resulting from fraud is higher thon for one resulfing from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal control

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the oudit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circurnstances. Under Section 143(3)(0) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our oplnion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial confrols systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies uwsed and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriatenass of managerment’'s use of the golng concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obfained, whether a matericl uncerainty exists related fo events or condifions that may cost significont doubt on the
entity's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to drow altentionin
our auditor’s report 1o the relafed disclosurss in the standalone financlal staternents or., if such disclosures are inadequate, o modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audt evidence olbtained up 1o the date of our auditor s report,. Howeaver, future events
or condifions may cause the Company 1o cedse o continue as a going concerm.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financlal statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standaolone financial statements represent the underdying fransactions and events in o manner that cchieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that individually or in aggregate makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a recscnably knowledgeable user of the standalons financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in () planning the scope of cur audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (i) to
avaluate tha effect of any identified misstatements In the standalone financial staterments.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the cudit and
significant audit findings. Including any signiflcant deficiencies in infernal contral that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a starement that we howve complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relafionships and other motters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our
independence, andwhere applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the standalone financial staterments of the current penod and are, therefore, the key audit maftars. We deascribe these mafters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremsly rare clrcumstances, we
determineg that o mofter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseqguences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companias (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "A’ a stafement an the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Crder,

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

{a} We have sought and obtalned all the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
neceassary for the purposas of our audit,

(b} Imour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books,

(c) The Balancesheeat. the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprahensive income). Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash How dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{cd) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Secfion
133 of the Act read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a Directorin terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

(N With respect to the adecuacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company ana the operating
effectivensss of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin Annexure "B,

gy  With respect 1o the offher matters 1o be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requiremants of Section 197(16)
of the Act, in our opinion and to the bast of our infermation and accordng to the explandations given to us, the remunaration
pald by the Company toits directars durlng the year s In accordance with the provisions of Section 197 ofthe Act.

(h} With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’'s report in accordonce with the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, inour opinion and to the bast of our information and according to the explanations given ta us:

. The Company hos disclosed the impact of pending ligations on its financial performaonce in its standalone finoncial
statements. (Refer note no 36 1o standalone financial staterments)
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i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including dervative confracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

li. There has been no delay In fransfering amounts, required 1o be fransferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company

v, (a) The Management has represented that, fo the best of ifs knowledge and bellef, no funds (which are material elther
Individually or in the aggregafe) have been aodvanced or loaned or invested (either from borowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company fo or in any other person or entity. including forsign
entity {"Infermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whather, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identifled in any rmanner whatsosver by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ullimate Beneficianas”) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ulhmate
Beneficlares.

(&) The Manoagement has represented, thot, to the best of its knowledge ond balief, no funds (which are maoterial either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity. including foreign
entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, thot the Company shall,
wheather, directly or indirectly. lend to orinvest in other parsons or enfities identified in any manner whatsocaver by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢} Basedonthe audit procedures that have been considered redasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation under sub clause () and (D of Rule 11(e) of
The Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under (Q) and (b) above, contains any material
misstatemeant. (Refer Nole no. 50 (v) & (vi) to the standalone financial statements)

v. The dividend poid by the Company during the year is in accordonce with Section 123 of the Act, As stated in note 45(c) to
the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final dividend for the year 2024-25
which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing annual general meeating. The proposed dividend declared is
inaccordance wirth Secfion 123 ofthe Act o the extent it applies to the declaration of dividend.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its
account books for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit frall (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant fransactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any Instance of the audit trall feature being fampered with, The Company is in
compliance with the preservation of audit frall as per the statutory requirements for record retention,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. - 301051/ E300284

R. P. Baradiya
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 24, 2025 Membership Mo, 44101

UDIN; 25044101 BMIVNCASS58

Annexure "A°"
Referred to in "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the members of Narmada Gelatines Limited for
the year ended March 31, 2025:

Cnthe basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the auditing standards generally
accepted in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we state that;

I, =

In respect of Compdny's Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets:
A, The Company has mainfained proper records, showing full parficulars including quantifative details ond sifuation of PPE and
relevant details of right-to-use assets.

B. The Company hasmaintained proper records, showing full particulars including quantilalive delails of intangible assels.

As explained to us, the Company has a phased program for physical verification of all the PPE over a perod of three years. Inour
opinion. the frequency of verification is reasonable considering the size of the Company and nature of its PPE. Pursuant to the
program of the physical verfication of PPE, physical verification of certain PPE has been carried out dunng the year and on the
asis of our examination of the records of the Company no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explandtions given to us and on the basls of our examination of the records of the Company.
the fitle deeds of immovable properies disclosed in the standalone financial stafements included under PPE are held in the
name of the Company

The Company has not revalued any of its PPE (ncluding right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year, Hence
reporfing under Clause 3()(d} of the Crderis not applicable to the Company.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, and on the basls of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, neither any procesdings have been initioted during the year nor are pending as af March 31, 2025 for holding any
banami property under the Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made theraunder and hance,
reporfing under Clause 3(i){e) of the Crder s not appllcable to the Company. (Refer Note no. 50 {1} fo the standalone fincncial
staoteaments)
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(a} The inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the vear, except for goods in
fransit. The coverage and proceduras of physical verification of the inventoanes followed by the management are reasaonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of It's business. Goods in transit have been veritied by way of
subsequent receipt/confirmations. As per the informafion and explanations given 1o us and on the bosis of examination of
records of the Company, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed on physical
verification ofinventores as compared to book records.

(b} Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of infermation and explanations given to us. the guarterly returns or statements
filed by the Company with banks in respect of working capital are in agreemeant with the books of account of the Company.

In respect of Investment in, provided any guaranfes or security or granted any loans or advances in the nofure of loans, secured or

unsacured, to companies, firms, Limited Liakility Partnerships or any other parties:

(a} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basls of our examination of the records, the Company has
niot provided any loans or ogvancas in the nature of loons or guarantee or provided security to any other entity ond hence
reporting under clause adii){a) is not applicable to the Company,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company.
invastmeant made are in the ordinary course of business and accordingly in our opinion, prima tacie, not prejudicial to the
Company's intersst, The Company has not provided any guaranteas, gliven any security and granted any loans and advances
in the nature of ioans and guarantee.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinafion of the records of the Company,
the Company has not granted any loans or advances In the noature of loans and hence reporting under clouses 3], (d). (e)
and (f) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.,

According to the informaticn and explonafions given 1o us and on the bosis of our examinction of the records, the Company has

complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, fo the extent applicable with respect to the Investments made during

the year, The Company has not provided any loans, guarantees and securities to parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the

ACT,

According to the information and explandations givan to us and on tha basis of exarmindtion of racords, no deposits or amounts which

are deemed to be deposits have been accepted by the Company within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant

provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules. 2014 {as amanded). Hence, reporting under Clouse 3(v) of
tha Order s not applicable to the Company,

According the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records

under clause (d) of sub-section 148 of the Act. Accordingly. the provisions of Clause 3 (vi) of the Crder are not gpplicable to the
Company,

{a) According 1o the informalicn and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, The Cormpany is
genarally reqular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services 1ax, provident fund, employees” stafe
insurance. income tax, sales tax, custom duty, duty of excise, value added tax. cass and other statutory dues during the year with
the appropriate authorifies. No undisputed armounts payable inrespect of the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at
the lost day of tha financial year for g peried of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(b} According to the information ond explanations given to us, fhere ara no stahutory dues menticned in Clause vii (@) which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

Name of the statute Nature Amount Period towhich Forum where dispule
ofdues Tinlakhs the amount relates is pending
The Central Excise Act, 1944 Exclse Duty 240.88 2000-03 High Court, Jabalipur
Madhya Pradash VAT Act, 2002 VAT 3.76 2012-13 Deputy Commissioner, Jabalpur
MP Land Revenue Code, 195Y Land levenue [ax 2597 201/7-18 Commissioner, Jobalpur
The Income tax Act, 1961" Incorme Tax 7.85 AY 2013-14 Commissioner Appeaals

"Also, refer note no. 34 (i} to the standalones financial statements

wiil.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company ., there were no

arnounts to be recorded in the books of account fnat have been surendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assassments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1941). Hence, reporting under Clause 3(viil) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

{0} Bosed on our gudit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the Company hos not defautted in
tha repayment of loans or othar borrowings orin the payment of interast thereon to any lender.

() Onthe basis of information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or othar lender.

(c) In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has applied ferm loan for the
purpose forwhich it was obtained.

{d} Onanoverall examination of the standalone financial staterments, in our opinion, the Company has not utilized funds raised on
short term basis for long term punposes,

{e) Boased on our gudit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or peson on account of or fo meet the obligations of its associate, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
ey of the Orderis applicable o the Company.
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() Based onour audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanaticns given to us, during the year the Company has
not raised any funds on the pledge of securities held in its associate, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3000 of the Order is
applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company has not ralsed any money by way of Inftial putlic offer or further pubdic offer (ncluding debt instrument) during the
year and hence, reporting under Clause 3(x) of the Crder is not applicable to the Company,

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly converfible debenfures
during the year orinthe recent past and hance, reporting under Clauss 3060000 of the Orderis not applicabls to the Company,

{a} Durning the course of our examination of the books of account and other records of the Company carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted ouditing standards and based on the information and explanations given 1o us, we report that no
fraud on the Company or by the Company has baen noticed or raported during the year. However, during the year, a whistle
blower complaint was received by the Company dlleging cerfain unethical practices conceming the operafions of the
Company. Asexploined in note 46 of the financial stoterments, on enguiry by the manogement with the support of on external
agency. it was found that the allegations were mere surmise and devoid of any substantial evidence which are legally tenable.
a formal report from the sald agency B awdaited Including thelr suggestions fo sfrengthen the intermal confrol measures,
battarment and smooth functioning ofthe Company.

(b) During the year, no report is required to bea filed with the Central Government under Saection 143 (12) of the Companias Act, 2013
as the individual instance of dlleged unethical practices mentioned in the whistle blower complaint do not exceed the
prescribred imit mentioned in the Act and Rules.

(cy  As part of our cudit procedures performed and according fo fhe information and explanafions glven fo us, we report that we
have taken into consideration the said whistle-blower complaint received and dealt with by the Company during the year,

In our opinlon and according to the Informafion and explanations given To us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence,

reporting under Clause 30di) of the Orderis nof applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, all the

fransactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act and all the details have been disciosad in the

standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standard. Refer nota. 37 o the standalone financial
staterments,

(o According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company’s internal audit system is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b} We hove considered the internal audit repports for the year under audit issued fo the Company during the year and fill date, in
datermining nature, timing and extent of our audit proceduras.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and basad on our examination of the records of the Company, the

Company has not enfered inte any non-cash fransactions prescrbed under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons

connected with them during the yeaar.

(a)} The Company is not required 1o be registered undser section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of Indic Act, 1934, Hence reporfing under
Clause 30 (). (b) and (<) of the Order s not applicable to the Company.

(b} As per the information and explanations given to us and as per the definifion of Group under Core Investrment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there are no Core Investment companies forming part of the group.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial yvear and in the immediately preceding financial yeanr.

There has been no resignation of the statutony auditors of the Company during the year, Hence reporting under Clause 30l of the
Crderisnot applicable to the Company.

According fo the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of the financlal raflos, agelng and expected daotes of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
staterments and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans cnd based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumpfions. nothing has come fo cur attention, which causes us o believe that any materdal uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report indicating that Company i not copable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a perlod of one year from the balance sheet date. We, howeaver, state that this is not an assurance asto
the future viatility of the Company. We further state that our reporfing is based on the facts up fo the date of the audit report and we
nefther give any guarantees nor any assurance that all liabilitles falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will gef discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Thare are no unspent amounts fowards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring o transfer fo a fund specified in Schedule Vil to
the Companies Act in complionce with the second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the sald act. Accordingly. reporting
under clause 3000 of the Order are nof applicable to the Company.

For LODHA & CO LLP
Charlered Accountfanls
Firm registraftion No. - 301051E/ E300284

R. P. Baradiya

Flace: Murmbai Farnar

Late

s May 24, 2025 Membership No, 44101
LDIM: 250441 01BMINVNCAT5E
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Annexure "B"
Referred toin "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" section of our report to the members of Narmada Gelatines Limited for
the year ended March 31, 2025:

We have audited the internal financial contrals over financial reporting of the Narmada Gelatines Umited (the Company ) as of March 31,
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the yvearended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Confrols

The Board of Directors of the Company is résponsible for astablishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the intermnal
control over financlal reporting critera established by the Company considering the essential component of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial Repeorfing issued by the institute of Chortered Accountants of India
{(CAL. Thess responsibilities include the dasign, implementation and mainteanance of adeguate internal financial controls that weare
operating effectively for ensuring the orderdy and efficient conduct of ifs business, Including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets. the pravention and detection of frauds and erors. the accuracy and completenass of the accounting records.
and the fimely preparation of reliable financlal information, as required under the Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility s to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial contrals over financial reporting based on our qudit, We
conducted ouwr audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guldance Mote") and the Standards on Auditing deemed o be prescriced under Sectlon 143(10) of the Act 1o the extent applicable fo an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAIl Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical regquirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether cdeqguate internal financlal controls over fincnclal reporting was established and maintalined and if such controls operated
effectively in all maternalrespects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial repofing and thelr operating effectivenass. Our audit of iInfernal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal finoncial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that o moaterial weakness exists. and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenass of internal control bosed on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's jJudgment, Including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the standalone financial staternents, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the oudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit opinion on the
Company’s intemal financial controts systerm over financlal reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's Internal financial control over finoncial reporting is o process designed to provide recsonable ossurance regarding the
reliabdlily of financial reporting and the preparation of slandalone financial staterments for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A Company’'s infernal financial confrol over financial reporing includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assats of the company; (20 provide reasonable assurancs that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
anfity are baing made only in accordance with authorisations of management: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or fimely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the entity’s assefs that could have a material effect on the
standalona financial staternents (4) also provide reasonable assurance by the internal auditors through their intermal cudit reports given to
ha antity from time to lime.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. including the possibility of collusion or improper
management overide of controls, matearial misstaternents due to aror or fraud may eccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation af the infernal financial confrols over findncial reporting to future perods dre sulzject to the risk that the internal financial confrol
ovear financial reporting may become inadequate becausa of changes in conditions, or that the daegree of complionce with the policies or
procaduras may deternorate.

Opinion

In cur opinion, o the best of ouwr information and according to the explandations given o us, the Company has, broadly, in all matenal
respects, an adequate interndl financial controls system over financial reporfing and such Internal financial controls over Tinancial
reporing were operating effectively as ot March 31, 2028, based on the Internal control over financlal reporting crifera establishad by the
Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financlal Reporting ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForLODHA &ECOLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registrafion No. - 301051E/ E300284

k. P. Baradiya
FPlace: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 24, 2025 Membership No, 44101

UDIN: 25044 101BMINNC ARS8
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‘# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakh. unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Notes As at As at
31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plont and egquipment 3 3.297.67 269205
Capital work-in-prograss 4 578.29 47 .81
Intangible assets o = =
Finoncial assets:
Investrent in on associate & 411531
- Other Investrmerts - 940,48
- Loans 7 14,06 Q.09
- Other finoncial assets ] 167.18 166.62
Income tax assefs (net) 4952 43.35
Other non-currant assets 9 63,74 93.29
Total Non-Current Assels 8,385.77 4,012.69
CURRENT ASSETS
Irnventonias 10 A.657.37 4.650.43
Firancial assets:
- Trade receivables 11 2.484.20 2.190.52
- Cash and cash equivalents 12 19.03 561.74
- Bank balances other thaon above 13 2036 1,553.70
- Loans 14 45,98 30.25
- Other financial assets 15 &7.44 105.39
Other cument assets 16 247 53 154,40
Total Current Assets 7.547.91 9.346.43
TOTAL ASSETS 15,933.68 13,359.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 1/a &06.03 005.03
Other equity 17k 11.33%.23 10.28%9.44
Total Equity 11,944,246 10,894.47
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 18 603.08 -
Provisions 19 12,98 21.48
Deferrad tox liobilities (net) 20 A0% 5% 43188
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,032.95 453,
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities:
- Borrowings 21 Ha0.12 -
- Trade payables 22
() Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 251.84 23.85
() Total outstaonding dues of creditors other than 766,85 1.388.43
rmicre and small enterprises
- Other financial lablities 23 142,77 182.10
Other cument liabilities 24 271,20 23723
Provisions 25 128.24 0.42
Current tax llabilitles (net) 26,31 58,26
Total Current Liabilities 2 956.37 2011.29
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,933.68 13,359.12
hMatearial Accounting Policies ¢
Motes forming part of accounts 3-52
The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financicl stoterments
A5 per our report of even date
For LODHA & CO LLP For and on Behalf of the Bodnd
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No, - 301051E/ E300284 8. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur
Chairrman Managing Direclor
E. F. Baradiva DIN: 00001381 CInNOD 26807
Pormer
rMembership Mo, 44101 Arun Joiswal Mahima Potkar
Fliace : Mumbai Chief Fingncial Officer  Comppany Secretary

Late | 24th May, 2025
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‘# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
as at 31st March, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupee lakh. unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Notes Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
INCOME
| Revenue from cperations 25 18.892.07 18,179 .54
] Other income 27 165.25 161.09
Il Total Income (I + I " 19,057.32 ~18,340.65
IV  EXPENDITURE
Cost of matenals consumead 28 11.407.13 10,844 .43
Changes in inventory of finished goods,
work-in-progress & stock-in-trade 29 (423.72) (334.49)
Emnployes beneflits expeanss a0 1.618.21 149195
Finance costs 31 122.05 2591
Depreclation and amoisation expense 32 22223 203.64
Power & Fuel 245565 280725
Other expenses o ) 137681 1,154.14
Total expenseas (IV) m m
V  Profit before exceptional items and tax (Il - V) 227895 2057 81
VI Exceptional tems - -
VIl Profit before fax (V - V) ~ 227896 ~ 2.057.81
Vil Tax Expense
(o) Current tox 20 580.00 525,00
(b} Detered fox (21.99 (0.17)
IX  Profit after taxation (VI - VIl ~1,720.94 ~1,532.98
X  Other Comprehensive Income
Iterms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements (losses) of net defined beneafit plans (66,19 (27.34)
Total Comprahansive Income (IX - X) 1.454.75 1.505.64
Eaming per Equity Share of Face Value of T 10 each
Basic and diluted Earnings per share ) 28.45 25,34
Material Accounting Policies .
Motes forming part of accounts 3-52
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For LODHA & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn, No. = 301051E/ E300284 5. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur
Chairman Managing Director
R. P. Baradiya DiN: 00001381 DIN:001 26807
Partner
Membership Mo, 44101 Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patlkar

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretany
Floce : Mumbai
Date : 241h May, 2025
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‘# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
J1st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

A.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Flace : Mumbai
Date : 24th Meny, 2025

Chief Firmncial Officer

MNet profit before tox 2,278,945 2057.81
Adjustrments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 222.23 203.64
Inferest Income (115.18) C104.44)
Frofit on redemption / fair value of investments (45.47) (56.65)
Finance costs 122.05 2591
Profit on disposal/discard of property, plant and eguiprment {0.60) -
Liabilities no longer required written back (Net) 22.36 201.39 (25.74) 42.72
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,480.35 2,100.53
Adjustments for ;
Increass in trade and other receivalbles (293.468) (244,14)
(Increass) /Decraase in iInventores {46.94) 273
{Increase)/Decredse in loans & cther financial assets (&7.96) 19.90
Increase in ofher curment assets (v3.13) (13.08)
Decrease/(Increase) in other non- cument assets 10.02 (107.51)
Increase in frode poyables 254.07 167.29
Decrease in short term provisions {29.85) (5.04)
Incraasef/{Decrease) in other current llabilities 5.36 (22211 (2B8.94) (178,81
Cash generated from operating aclivitles 2,258.24 1.921.72
Iaxes paid (Net of Refund) (393,99 (464.36)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,704.25 1,457.34
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of property. plant and equigment
(including CWIP and capital advances) (1. 470,01 (179.53)
Purchose of Current/MNon - Current investments (4,115.313 (200.00)
sale of Non - Current investmenits QE0.A8 -
Bank deposits not considered as cash and cash eguivalents {placed) refund  1.529.03 (G19.61)
Interest recelived 20535 (2.890.46) 51.02 (1.248.12)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2,8%0.46) (1,248.12)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Dividend paid including tax thareon (604.96)
Proceeds from Long ferm borrowings - Bank 603.08 S
Net Proceeds from short term borrowings - Banks 6%, 12 =
Armount transferred 1o Investor Education and Protection Fund:
Unpaid dividend amaount £1.69 287
Finance cost pald (122.05) 543.51 (25.91) {23.04)
Net cash from [/ (used in) financing activities (C) 543.51 (23.04)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) (642.71) 186.20
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 661.74 475.54
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 19.03 661.74
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Cash on hand 10.03 7.56
Balance with Banks .00 &34.18
TOTAL 19.03 6561.74
Material Accounting Policies 2
MNotas forming part of accounts 302
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finoncial staterments
As par our repolt of even date
Far LODHA & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Boord
Chartarad Accountants
Firm Regn, No, —301051E/ E300284 5. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur
Chairman ranagng Director
E. P. Barodiya Lol QOO0 381 DINDD1 26807
Fartrer
Membership Mo, 44101 Amun Jaiswal Maohimao Potkar

Caompany Secretary
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<> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(All amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 604,94 &H04.94
Forfaited Shares 0.07 0.07
TOTAL 605.03 605.03
OTHER EQUITY St —r
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total

Capital securities =eneral Retained Comprehensive
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Income

As at 1st April, 2023 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 5,999.84 22.21 8,783.80
Profit tor the yvear - - - 1.532.98 - 153298
Other Comprehensive Incomea for the yvear - - - - {27.34) (27.34)
As at 31st March, 2024 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 7,532.82 (5.13) 10,289.44
Profit for the vear - - - 1,720.94 - 1.720.94
Other Comprehensive Income Tor the year - - - - (66.19) (66, 19)
Dividend Paid - - - (604.94) - {604.94)
As at 31st March 2025 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 8,648.80 (71.32) 11,339.23
Maoteral Accounting Policies 2
Motes forming part of accounts 3-52
The aocompanying notes are an intfegral part of the finangial statements
A5 per our report of evan dota

For and on behalf of the Board
For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. - 30105167 E300284 5. Annamalal Ashok K Kapur

Chairman Managing Director
E. P. Baradiya DN 00001381 CHIMN:00 126807
Partrner
Membarship MNe, 44101 Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patkar

Ploce - Mumbal
Date : 24th May, 2025

Chisf Financial Officer

Company Sacratany
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

o

CORPORAITE INFORMATION

Narmada Gelatines Ltd. was set up in 1961 as Leiner Knit Galatin Company Pvi. Lid. The Company was converted into a Pubiic
Company dand reglstered as Shaw Leiner LUmited In 1949, In the yvear 1979, the name of the Company was changed to Shaw Wallace
Gelafines Limited, and in the yecr 2002, the Company was rencrmead as Narmada Gelatings Limifed. The Company is registerad in
Jabalpur (Madhya Prageash) under Registration number L2411 1IMP1961PLCOT1&023. The Ragisterad office of the Company is ot 28,
CARAVS, 15 Civil Lines, Jabalpur (M.P.}. The Company s engaged in the manufacture and sale of Osseln and Gelatine and has its
manufacturing facility located at Jabalpur (M.P.)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the
Ind AS") as nofified under the Companies (Indian Accourntfing Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Stondards) Amendments Rules 2016 prascribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affalrs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the axlsting standards under Companies (Indian

Accounfing Standards) Rules as issued frorm tirme to time. On August 12, 2024 and September 09, 2024, MCA Isued the Companies

(Indicn Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies {Indion Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rulss,

2024 introducing following changes:

a) Ind AS 117 = Insurance Contracts:; Ind AS 117: Insurance Confracts was infroduced and Ind A5 104: Insurance Contracts was
withdrown. This was aoccompanied with consaguent amendments in other standards.

By Ind AS 116 — Leases: The ameandments clarify accounting treatment for a seller-lesss involved in sale and leaseback
fransactions and infroduced some related lllustrative examples.

The obove standord are effective from April 01,2024, The Cormpany has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its
avaluation has determinad that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Tha Board of Directors approved the Financial Statemeants for the yaar snded 315t March, 2025 and authorsad for issue on 24th May.
2025,

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
ossets and llablities measured ot fair value. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are
consistent with those followed in tha previous year,

Current arnd Non-current classification:
(i}  The assets and liclzilities inthe Balance Sheet are based on current/ non - current classification. An asset as curent when it is:
Q. Expectedtoberedlized orintended to be sold or consumed innormal operating cycle of twelve months
b.  Held primmarily for the purposa of frading
c. Expectedtobe reqlized within twelve months after the reporting perod. or
d. Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a llabilty for at least bwelve moniths affer
thie reporfing period, All other assets are clossified os non-curmant.
(i Aliability is curent when;
0. Expectedto be settledin normal operating cycle
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c. Due fobe settled within fwebse months afferthe reporting period, or
a

Thare is no unconditional right to defer the settlemeant of tha llability for ot least twelve months after the reporting padod, All
other labilifies are freated as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilifies are classified as non-cumrent assets and abilities respectively.

(i) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS, requires the Management to make aestimates and
assumptions considerad in the reported amounts of assets and liabilties (ncluding contingent liabilities) and the reported
income and expenses during the year. The Management belileves thal the estimates used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent ond reasonakble. Future actual results could differ due to these esfimates and the differences batween
the actual results and the estimotes ara recognised in the periods in which the results are known / matarnalise.

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other iterns of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation andimpairment losses, if any. Cosfs include freight, import dufies, non-refundable
purchase taxes and other expenses directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assef, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic beneflits associated with the iterm willl flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

()

derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets: Infangible assets ore stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and
Impairment, iIf any Lossas arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fiked assets
which are camied gt cost or revalued amount are recognized in the Staterment of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method applying the useful lives as prescribed In part C of Schedule 1l 1o
the Companies Act, 2013 except for plant and eguipment, whearein useful life is determined based on internal
technical assessment. The range of estimated useful lives of Property. Plant & Equipment’s are as under:

Category Useful Life
Builldings (including roads) 5- &0 Years
Flant & Equiprment o- 26 Years
Electrical installations 10 Years
Furnifure & Fixture 10 Years
Office Equipment J - b Years
Vahicles 8 Yedrs

The management believes that the useful life as given above the best represent the period over which the management expects fo
use these assets. The Company reviews the useful lives and residual value at each reporting date,

Deapreclation on assets added/sold or discarded during the year is being provided on pro-rata bosis up to the date on which such
assels are added/sold or discarded.

Assets costingup to T 5,000 each are depreciated fully in the yvear of purchase.

Sains/Lossas on disposals/de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with camying
comountand these are recognized in staterment of profit & Loss.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estirmated useful economic life under Straight Line method. Computer software cost is
amortised over a perod of five years.

Inventories

Imvantories Jdncludes Row Matarial, Work-in-Progress, Finlshed goods, Stores & spares, Consumables, Packing Materials) are valued of
cost or net reclisable value, whichaver islower. Net raalisabla valua is the aestimated seling price in the ordinary course of business lass
the estimated cost of complefion and the esfimated costs necessary fo make the sale. Cost of Raw Materlal, SemiHinished and
Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress B determined on weighted averoge baosis ond comprises of expenditure incurred inthe normnal
course of businass in bringing inventarias to thair prasant location including appropriate overheads apportioned on a reasonable
and consistent basis. Obsclete, slow moving and defective stocks are ldenfified ot the time of ohysical verification of stocks and
where necessary, provision is maode for those inventornies. Adequate glliowance is mode for obsolete and siow moving ifems.

Revenue Recognilion

The Company recognizes revenue, whenever confrol over distinet goods or services & fransferred to the customer; Le. when the
customer is able to direct the use of the fransferred goods or services and cbtains substartially all of the remaining benefits. provided
a contract with enforceable rights and obligations exists and amongst others collectabllity of consideration s probable taking into
account customer’s credifworthiness.

Revanue is the fronsaction price the Company expects o be entified to. In detarmining the fransaction price, the Company
considers effects of variable consderation, the existence of significant financing contracts, noncash consideration and
consideration payable to the customer, If any.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods s recognised whan the control of the goods passes 1o the buyer elther at the time of dispatch or
delivery or when the risk of loss fransfers. Export sales are recognized based on the terms of the sale which is when substantial risks and
rewards of ownership are passed fo the customers.

Revenue from sale of goods s net of toxes and recovery of charges collected fronn custorners like transport, packing efc. Provision is
mode for returns when appropriate. Revenue is meosured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable ondis net of price
discounts, allowance for volume rebates and simillar iterns.

Claims [ Refunds not ascertainable with reasonable cerfainty are accountad for, on final setlement and are recognized as revenus
on certainty of receipt on prudent Dasis.

Revanue recognition from sale of "Duty Entitlement Passbook License or Merchandise Exports frorm India Scheme (MEISY is made on
sale of the license afterreceipt of the same rom the office of the Director General of Foreign Trade.

Income from Duty Drawback is recognised onreceipt basls
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(vii)

{wiii)

()

Dividend
Dividand income from invastments is recognised when the shareholder's rght to receive paymeant has bean aestablished (provided
that it s probable that the economilc benefits will flow o the Company and the amount of Income can be measuraed reliably)

Interestincome

Interest income from a financial asset s recognised when it i probabkle that the economic oenefits will flow o the Company and the
amount of Income can be measured reliably. Interest income B accruied on a time basis, by reference 1o the principal outstanding
and at the effective Inferest rate applicable, which is the rafte that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the fincncial asset to that asset’s net carryving amount oninitial recognition,

Income from Investment
Income from Investments (other than investments in shares of companies and Mutual Funds) is accounted on accrual basis,

Lividend Income on invesiments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. Inferest income is recognized ona
time proportionate basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate of interest. For all financial instrurnents meaasured af
amortised cosl, inlerest income isrecorded using the Effective inferest rate method fo the net carrving amount of the financial assels.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign curency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the fransactions. Gains and losseas, if
any. on setflemeant or reinstatement of year end closing balances by applying the clasing rates in respect of monetary assets and
rmonetary liabilities not coverad by the forward confracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Mon-monetary fems denominated in forelgn currency are stated at the rote prevailing on the date of the fransaction.

The premium o discount arsing ot the inception of the forward confract enfered Info to hedge the axisting csset / liability. 15
amortized as expanse or income over the life of the contract, Exchange differences on such contract are recognized in the
starement of profit and loss In the reporting perod Inwhich the exchange rates change, Any profit or loss arising out of canceliation or
renewal of such contract are recognized as income or expensa in the reporting peried. Forward aexchange contracts outstanding
as at the year and on account of firm commitment / highly probable forecast transaction are marked to market and the losses, if
any, dre recognized in the statement of profit and loss ond gains are ignored.

Employee Benefits
The Company has the following post-employment benefit plans;

[, Cefined benafit plans such as gratuity:;
i, [Deafined contribution plans such as Provident fund & Suparannuation fund; and
ir. Otheremployee benefits,

(1  Defined benefit plan;

Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses, if any . are fully charged off in the year of payment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of defined benefit
obligations af the end of the reporting pariod less fair value of plan ossets. The defined benafit obligofion is calcuioted annuaily by
actuaries through actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Cradit meathod.

The Company reccgnises the folowing changes In the net defined benefit cbligafion as an expense In the staterment of profit and
lcass:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtalment and non-roufine settlemenits;
and

b. Netinterest expense orincome

The net interast cost s calculated by applying the discount rate to fhe net balance of tha defined banafit chligation and fair value of
plan assets. This costis includedin employes banafit expensea inthe statement of profit and 1oss,

Re-measurement comprising:

0. Re-meosurernent of Actuarial (gains)/losses

b.  Returnon plan assets. excluding amount recognized in effect of asset celling
c. Re-measurement arlsing because of change in effect of asset celling

are recognised in the period In which they occur directly in Ofher Comprehansive Income. Re-measurermeants are not reclassified fo
profit orloss in subseguent periods,

Ind AS 19, Employeas benefits requires the exercise of judgment in relation to varous assumptions including future pay risas, inflation
and discount rates and employee and pensioner demographlcs. The Company determines the assumptions in conjunction with its
octuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with best practice, but the application of different assumptions could have o
significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive ncome and balance sheet, There mcy
e also infer-dependency between some of the assumpfions,

(i) Defined contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or
Informal obligation to pay additional sums. Defined confribution plans comprise of contributions to provident fund. Insurance and
Ermoloyeeas’ Pension Scheme. The Company's payments 1o the defined contribution plans are recognised s expensas durng the
peniod inwhich the employvees perform the services that the payment covers.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(iliy Otheremployee benefits

Q. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the pericd in which the
amployee renders the related services are recognised as aliability at the present value of the obligation as at the balance sheeat
date determined based on an actuanal valuation.

. Undiscounted amount of shorl-term employee benelils expected 1o be paid in exchange lor the services renderaed by
employees are recognised during the period when the employese renders the relaled services.

c.  Expensesincurred towards voluntary retirement scheme are charged fo the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred,
d. Other benstits comprising of discretionarny long service awards are recognized as and when determined.

Current and Deferred tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent It relates to itermns directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income, Current tax is based on taxable profit for the
vear. [axable profit s different from accounting orofit due to temporary differences behween accounting and fax treatments, and
due to items that are never taxable or fax deductible. Tax provisions are inciuded in current liobilities. Interest and penalties on tax
liatilitles are provided for in the tax charge. The Company offsats, the current tax assets and llabilities (on a year on year basis) where
it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends 1o settle such assats and liabilifies on a net basis or to regiise the assets and
labiities on net bass. Defered income 1ax s recognized uwsing the balance sheet approach. Deferred income 1ax assets and
lakliitles are recognized for deductible and taxable femporary differences arlsing between the fax base of assets and llabliitles and
their carrying amount in financial statements., Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that itis probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the cany forward of unused tax credits and unused
Tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tox assets are not recognised whera it is maore likely thon not that the cssets will not be reclised in
the future, The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to dllow all or part of the deferred income tax asset o be utilized
Leferred income tax assats and liabilifies are measured af the tax rates that are expected o apply in the penod when the asset is
realized or the liability is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted af tha reporting
date. Defered tax fems are recognized in correlaflon to the underlving fransaction elther in Other comprehensive Income or directhy
in equity,

Impairment of Assels

The Company assessas at each reporting date whather there s any cblective evidence that a non-financial asset or a group of non-
fincncicl ossetfs are impaoired. F any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss, For the purpose of
assassing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is consldered as a cash generating unit, If any such indication
exists, an astimate of the recoverable armount of the Individual asset/cash generating unit is made. Animpdirment 10ss is calculated
as the difference between an assel's canying amountl and recoverable amount, Losses are recognised in profit or loss and refllecled
in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no redlistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. Ifthe amount of impdairment loss subseguently decreaseas and the decrease can be relafed objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss Is reversed through profit or
l8s.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the Instruments. Financial
assels olher than frade receivables are inilially recognised al fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets camed ot foir value through profit or loss are initially recognised aof fair value, and
transaction costs are expansed in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent mecsuremeant

Finoncial ossefs, ofther than eguity insfruments, are subsequenfly measured af amorlised cost, falr value through other
comprehensive income or fairvalue through profit or loss on the basis of.

a.  theenfity's business model for managing the financial assets; and

b. thecontrachual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset,

(i) Measured at amortised cost:

A financlal asset is measured ot amortised cost, I it s held under the hold o collect business model L.e. held with an objective of
holding the assets to collect confractual cash flows and the contractucl cosh flows are solely payments of principal and Interest on
the principal outstanding. Amortised cost is calculated using the effective Inferest rate (EIRY method by taking into account any
discount or premiurm on acqulsition and fees or costs that are an infegral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisotion is Included in interest
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment cre recognised in the statement of profit and loss, On
derecognifion, galn or loss, If any., B recognised to statement of profit and loss.

(i) Measured ot fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

A financial asset s measured at PVOCL, if it is held under the hold 1o collect and sell business model e, held with an objective to
collect confractual cash flows and selling such financial asset and the confractual cash llows are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal cutstanding. It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value movements recognised in the QCI,
except for interast income which recognised using eftective interest rate method. The losses ansing from impairment are recognised
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in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the OCI s reclassified from the
equity to statement of profit and loss.

(iliy Measured atfairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Investment in financial asset other than equity instrument. not measured of either amortised cost or FVOC] is measured at FVTPL, Such
financial assets are measurad at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income If any,
recognisedin the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments:
Allirvestrnents in equity instrurments, If any classified under financial assets are subsequently medsured af falrvalue,

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost
and at FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between gl contractual cash flows thot are due to an entity in occordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the onrginal effective inferest
rate. This s assessed on an individud! or collective basls affer considering all reasonaible ond supportable inchuding that which s
forward-looking.

The Company's trade receivables or contract revanue receivables do not contain significant financing component and
loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at anamount equal to life fime expected losses |L.e, expected cash shorifall, being
simplified approach for recognition of impairnment ioss allowance.

Under simplified opproach, the Company does not track changes in credit rsk. Rother it recognizes impairment loss allowonce
based on the lifetime Expectad Credit Losses at each reporting date right from its initial recognition, The Company uses a provision
mattix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivalbles

The provision mafrix 5 based on its historically obsarved default rates over the expected life of the frade receivable and is adjusted for
forward looking astimates. At every reporting date. the histarical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than frade recelvables, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all onginated or
ocguired finoncial assets if ar the reporting dgte the credit risk of the finoncial asset has not increcsad significantly since its inftial
recognition. The expected credit losses are meaasured as lifetime expected credit [osses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since s inflal recognition. i, in a subsequent perod, credit guality of the instrurmnent improves such that there s no longer
significant incragse in ¢radit risks since inifial recogniticon, then the Company reverts fo recognizing impairment loss allowance Based
on 12 months Expected Credit Losses,

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in stalement of profit and loss. For equily insfrurments and financial assels
mieqsured at FVTPL, theres is no requirerment for impaoirment festing.

De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or if
transfers fnghts 7o recelve cash flows from an asset, It evaluates if ond fo what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred confrol of the assat,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing Involvernent,

In that case, the Company alse recognises on assoclated llabliity. The fransferred asset and the assocloted liabllity are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has refained.

Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial liakilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instrurnents. Financial
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of fransaction costs for all financial lakiities not caried at fair value through profit or
s,

The Company’s finoncial liabllities includes traode and other payables, loons and bomowings Including bonk overdrafs ond
gemative INstruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities measured ot amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. FAnancial liabilities carrded at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fairvalue with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans & Borrowings
After Inltial recognifion, Interest bearing loans and borrowlngs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method, Gains
ond losses are recognized In profit & loss whan the labiities ore derecognized os well s through EIR amortization procass.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contfracts issued by the Company are those confracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the
helder for a loss it incurs because the specifled debtors falls fo make payment when dus In accordance with the term of a debt
instrument, Financial guarantee contracts are recognized inffially as a liability ot fair value, adiusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantes,
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{xiii)

{(xiv)

(xv)

subsequently, the llability s measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as perimpalimeant regquirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative adjustments,

De-recognition

A financial iability s de-recognised when the cbligation under tha liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liakility s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original liakility and the recognition
of anaw llabillity. The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the staternent of profit and loss.

Dervative inancial instruments & hedge accounting

The Compoany uses derivative financial instrurmments, such as forward foreign exchonge confracts to hedge its foreign currency risks,
such dervative financial instruments are initially recognisad at fair valus on the date on which a derivative contract is sntered into
and are subsequently remeasured of failr value, with changes in falr value recognisedin staferment of profit and loss.

Derivatives are camed os finoncial assete when the fair value is positive and as financial lobilitiss when the falr value s negative. The
Company dasignates thair dervativas as hedges of forgign currency risk associoted with the cash fiows of highly probable forecast
transactions and variable Interest rate risks associated with the borowings.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value ot each balonce shaeet dote, Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants af the
measuremant date. The far value measurement is bosed on the presumption that the fransaction fo sell the asset or fransfer the
liatility takes place either:

s Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

s In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset o lability The principal or the most
aavantagecus market must be accessiole by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a ligbility is measured using the assumptions that maorket parficipants would use when pricing the osset or
liabkility, assurning that market parficipants actin their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset In its highest and best use or by selling It to another market participant that would use the asset inits highest and best
use.

The Company usas valuation techniques that are approprate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ocbsernvable inputs and minimising the use of unobservatle inputs.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technigque:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or llabilities

Lavel Z2: Other fechniques forwhich all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fairvalue are cbservable, either directly
orindirectly

Level 3; Technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data,

For assets and liabilities thot are recognised in the financial statements on a recuring basis, the Company determines whether
fransfers have occurred betweaean levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assefs and liabilitles on fhe basis of the nature,
characterstics and nsks of the assat or labllity and the level of the falr value hlerarchy as explained above.

Provision and Confingent Liabilities

A provigion s recognised when the Company has A present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outtiow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo settle the obligotion in respect of which a relicble estimate can be
made, These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

Lecses

Asalesses;

The Company assesses whether a confract contains a lease, at inception of a confract. A contract is, or contains, a lkease if the
contract conveys tha right to confrol the use of an identified asset tor g penod of time in axchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset, the Company assesses whether:
() the contractinvaleas the use of an ideniifled asset;
(i the Comoany has substantially all of the economic banafits from use of the asset through the pered of the legse; and
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(vl

(ilythe Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

Atthe date of commencemeant of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (ROU" ) and a coresponding leass liability
for all lease arrangements In which it is a lesses, except for leqses with a term of hwealve months or less Ghaort-term leaseas) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense ona
stralght-line basls over the ferm of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are inifially recognized af cost, which comprises The Initial armount of the leose liabkility adjusted for any leqse
poyrmeants mads at or prior to the commeancement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are
subsequently measured atf cost less accumulated depreciation and impadirment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease ferm. ROU assets and
lease llaklities Includes thess options when It s reasonably certaln that they will be exercisad.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-lne basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
Indicate that thelr carying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of iImpairment testing, the recoverable amount (J.e.
the higher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the valus-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the assat doas not
genarate cash flows that are largely independent of thase from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount s determined
for the Cosh Gaenerating Unit (CELUD) fowhich the asset belongs.

The lease liability |5 inifially measured at amortized cost af the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the intarest rate iImplicit in the lease o if not readily determinable. using the incremental barrowing rates in the
country of domiclie of these leqses, Lease llablifles are remeaasured with a coraesponding adjustrment fo the related Aght of use osset
if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liakility and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

Asalessor:

Lease income from opercting leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a sfraight-line basis over the lease
term unless the receipts are structured toincrease in line with expeacted general infiation to compensate for the expectedinfiationary
costincreases. The respactive leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on theirnature.

Bosed on Company's assessment, the confracts enfered into by the Company do nof contain a lease as specified above or they are
either short ferm or low value leases. Iherefore, those have been accounted as per other applicable accounting standards.

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the infernal reporting provided to Chief Cpernating Declslon Maker
(CODM).

The Company has identified its Managing Director as CODM who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments and makes strategic decisions.

(xvii) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calcuwiated by dividing the net profit or loss for the perlod atfricutable to equity share holders {affer
deducting preference dividends. It any. and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the perlod. For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or [oss for the period aftributable 1o eguity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the perod are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive
potential equity shares,

{xviil) Cash and cash equivalents

(xix)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank alances, demand deposits with banks and other shorf-term
highly liguid investments that are readily convertible te known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value where original maturity is three months orless.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit before tax is adjusted for the effect of the transactions of a non-
cosh nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash fiows, The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company
ore segreqafred.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction of qualifying
ossets are capitalized as a part of cost of that asset, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the qualfying
assats for its intended use or sale are complete. Qualifying assets are assafs that necessarily fake g substantiol period of fime to
get ready for their intended use or sale,

Ofher borrowing costs are recognized ds an expensa in the period In which they are incurred,

Excepfional Items

When an item of income or expense within profit or loss from ordinary activity is of such size, nature or incidence that their
disclosure is relevant to explain the perfarmance of the Company for the year, the nature and amount of such items s disclosed
s exceptional ifems.
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold Buildings Plont&  Furniture  Vehicle Office Electrical Total
Land edquipment & Fixfuras adquipment Installations
At cost / deemed cost
Gross Block
Balance as af 1st April 2023 116.92 359.28 2,8456.04 3.50 B8.92 11.84 36.05  3,38255
Additions - - 0242 - 32,43 4,21 246 131.72
Deductions/ Adjustrnent - - 62.05 - - 0.08 - 62.13
Balance as at 31st March 2024 116.92 359.28 2,876.61 3.50 41.35 15.98 38.51 3,452.14
Additions - - 805.25 0.35 Lad a4.13 841.26
Deductions/ Adjustment - - 68,23 - - 68,23
Balance as ot 31st March 2025 11692 35928 31413163 3.85 41.35 17.51 72 .64 422518
Accurnulated Depraciation
Balance as at 1st April 2023 - 83.81 501.76 1.70 411 7.00 18.48 616.82
Additions - 20.40 17573 0.29 291 2.13 2.18 203.64
Daductions/ Adjustment - - 60,36 - - - - &0.36
Balance as ot 31st March 2024 - 104.21 61713 1.99 7.02 2.13 20.66 760.10
Additions - 17,37 195.21 0.30 3.62 2.50 3.24 222.24
Deductions) Adjustrment - - 54.64 - - - - 54.84
Balance as at 31st March 2025 - 121.58 757.50 2.29 10.64 11.63 23.90 227.50
Nat camying armount
as al 31st March, 2024 11492 286507 225948 1.52 34.33 6.84 17.85 2.692.06
Net camying amounf
as at 31st March, 2025 116.92 23770 285613 1.56 30.71 5.87 48.74 3.297 .67
Refiar Note |8 for the details in respect of certain property, plant and eguipment hypothecated/mongaged os security for borowings.
Particulars As at As at
315t March 2025 315t March 2024

4, CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Flant and equipment under installation” &6/8.29 47.81
Building under construction - -

TOTAL 678.29 47.81

"Refar Note 18 for the details in respact of certain property, plant and egquipment hypothecated/mortgaged as security for
borowings.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AGEING SCHEDULE

Particulars Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3years Maore than 3 years Total

As at 31st March'2024

Projects in progress - - - - -
Frojects temporarily suspendad - - - - -
Total - - - - -
As at 31st March 2025

Projects inprogress 678.2% - : = 678.2%
Frojects tempaorarily suspended - - - - -
Total 678.29 - - - 678.29

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Software TOTAL
Gross Block —————— = 4
Balance as ot 1st April 2023 292 2.92
Additions - -
Deductions / Adjustrments - -
Balance as at 315t March 2024 292 292
Additions - -
Deducficns / Adjustrents
Bolance os at 31st March 2025 2.92 2.92
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1st April 2023 2,79 2.79
Armortisation charge for the year 013 0.13
Deductions / Adjustments - -
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Particulars As at As at
Jst March 2025 Jist March 2024

Accumulated amortisation as at 31st March, 2024 2.92 2.92
Armortisation charge for the yaar - -
Deductions / Adjustments - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31st March, 2025 292 2.92
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2024 - -
Met carrying amount as ot 31st March, 2025 - -

—

& INVESTMENTS - NON - CURRENT

Investrmants in Mutual Funds (at NAV) -Unguoted, fully paid-up (Refer Note 39) - Q60,48
Investrment in an associate (Refer Note 400 4.115.31 -
TOTAL 4,115.31 960.48
7 LOANS
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to employees 14.06 9.09
TOTAL 14.06 2.09
8 OTHER FINAMNCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 167.18 166.62
TOTAL 167.18 166.62
b OTHER NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advance 56.72 90,36
Prepaid Expenseas 7.02 293
TOTAL 63.74 93.29
10 INVENTORIES
Raw materials 854 24 1.116.74
Waork-in-progress 1.477.61 1.516.47
Finished goods 1.895.74 1.433.16
Stores & Spares A27.78 S84.06
TOTAL 4,657.37 4,650.43
Refer Note 2(v)
Note: No inventaries written down during the yeor and in the previous year
11 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trode Recelvables considerad good - Unsecured 2484 .20 2,190.52
[rade Receivables which have significant
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 28] 2.81]
Less: Allowances for expectaed credit loss (2.81) (2.81)
TOTAL 2,484.20 2,190.52
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE:

Outstanding for following periods from due dote of payment

Particulars Mot Due Lessthan & months 1-2 2-3  More than Total
dmonths -1 year years years 3 years
As at 31st March'2025
V) Undisputed Trade recelvables - considered good  1.910.17 57200 2.02 - 281 2487.01
i Undizsputad Trode Recelvables -
which have significant increase in credit Risk - - - - - - 5
fit) Undisputed Trade Receivablss — credit impaired - - - - - (2.81) (2.81)
(T3 Disputed Irade receivables - considered good - -
V] Disputed Trode Recelvables -
which have significant iIncrease In credit sk - - - - -
i) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 1,9210.17 572.00 203 - - - 2484.20
Quistanding for lollowing periods from due dote of payment
Particulars Mot Due Less than & months 1-2 2-3  More than Totlal
é months -1year years years 3 years
As at 31st March'2024
¥ Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good  1.627.87  562.465 - - - 281 2193.33
i Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significaont incregse in credit Risk - - - - - - -
i Undisputed Trode Receivables - credit impaired - - (2.81) (281)
(\TH Disputed Trade receivables — considerad good - - - - - - -
W) Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credil Risk - = i
i} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - -
Total 1,627.87 562.65 - - - - 2190.52
Particulars As at As at
J1st March 2025 J1st March 2024
12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balance in curent accounts .00 654,18
Cash on hand 10.03 7.56
TOTAL 19.03 661.74
13 BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN ABOVE
I Dividand accounts 22.30) 20.61
In Deposits accounts 4.06 1.533.0¢
TOTAL 26.36 1,553.70
14 LOANS
Unsecured, considered good
Loon to employees 45.98 30.25
TOTAL 45.98 30.25
15 QOTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Security depaosits 4.48 156.18
Criher Recelvable 6292 -
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.04 90.21
TOTAL 67.44 105.39
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ﬁ"ﬁr NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2025 J1st March 2024

16 OQOTHER CURREMNT ASSETS

Unsecured, considened good

Advances 1o supphars 223.22 101.43

Frepaid 22.6%9 37.06

Balances with government authaorities 1.562 15.91

TOTAL 247 53 154.40
17a EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital;

1,00,00,000 equity shares of T 10 each 1,000.00 1,000.00

100,000,000 9% cumulative redesrmable preference shares of 10 each, 1,000.00 1,000.00

TOTAL 2,000.00 2,000.00

lssued, Subscribed and Paid up

&0.49 587 equity shares of T10 each, fully paid 504,96 604.96

Forfeited shores 0.07 0.07

TOTAL &05.03 &05.03

)

(i)

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital at the beginning and at the end of the

reporting period:

2024-25 2023-24
Parliculars MNo. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity sharas at the beginning of the year &.049.587 &H04,94 & 049 587 S04, Q4
Add ;. shares issued dunng the year - - - -
Less : Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of year 6,049 587 504.94 6,049,587 604.96

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having o par value of ¥ 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entifled fo
one vole per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupess. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of the lquiciation of
the Company the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assefs of the Company in proporion to the

number of the shares held.

(i) Details of shares held by the holding /associate company:

2024-25 2023-24
Particulars Mo.ofshares Amount Mo.ofshares Amount
Pioneesr Jellice India Private Limited 2423 321 242 33 ZERIAG 258,34
Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Limited 2.113.870 211.39 2.113.870 211,39
Total 4,537,191 453.72 4 697 489 446975

(iv) Equity shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of equity shares held is as given below:

2024-25 2023-24
Particulars Mo. of shares Yo Mo. of shares Y
Pioneer Jellice India Private Limited 2.423.321 A0.06 2583619 4271
Ashok Matcheas and Timber Industries Private Limited 2.113.870 34,64 2.113.870 a4.94
Total 4,537,191 75.00 4,697, 489 77.65
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<> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025

(AN omounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

(v) Details shareholding of promoter and % changes in the holdings during the year:

2024-25 2023-24
Particulars No. of shares No. of shares % %ol
chungi
Pioneer Jallice India Private Limited 2 823,321 40,048 2583619 42,71 6.20%
Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Limited 2113870 34694 2113870 394 0.00%
Total 4 537,191 75.00 4 697 AB9 77.65
MNote:

“As per letter dated September 09, 2024, Pioneer Jellice India Private Limited, one of the Promoters of MNarmada Gelatines
Limited (the *Company’), sold 1.60,298 (One Lakh Sixty Thousand Two Hundred and Ninety Eight) equity shares ofthe Company
having a face value of "10 each (representing 2.65% of the total issued and paid-up equity zhare capital of the Company),
through an Offer for Sale (OFS) conducted via the designated wind ow of BSE Limited. The sale was undertakenin accordance
with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/MRD/MRD-PoD-3/P/CIR/2023/10 dated January 10, 2023 on the 'Comprehensive Framework on
Offer for Sale (OF5) of Shares through Stock Exchange Mechanism’. Consequent to the said sale, the shareholding of the
Promoterand Promoter Group hasreduced from 77.65% to 75.00% ofthe paid-up equity share capital ofthe Company.”

(vi) Aggregate numberofshares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the lastfive years

During the last five financialyears, the Parent Company hasnot allotted any bonusshares.

(vii) Issue of shares for consideration other than cash

During the preceding five financial yvears, the Company has not issued any share for considaration other than cash

{viii) Dividend paid and proposed (Refer 45(c))

17  OTHER EQUITY
Parliculars Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Comprehensive
Income
Capital securities General Retained Re-measurement
Raserva Preamium Rasarve Eamings  of the defined
benefit plans

As at 1st April, 2023 7.51 42537 2,329.60 5999.84 2221 8,783.80
Profit for the year - - - 153298 - 1,532.98
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - (27.34) (27.34)
As at 31st March, 2024 7.51 42537 2,429.60 7,532.82 (5.13) 10,289.44
Profit for the year - - - 1.720.94 - 1,720.94
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 2 (66.19) (66.19)
Dividend paid 2 = = (604.96) z {604.96)
As at 31st March, 2025 7.51 42537 2,329.60 8,648.80 (71.32) 11,339.23

Purpose of the Reserves:

Securities Premium: Secunties premium is credited when sharas are ssued af preamium. This will be utiised in accordance with the

provisions of the Act.

General Reserve: The General reserve is created by way of fransfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. This
reserve is utilisedin accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Retained Earnings: [Retained samings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any fransfers 1o general reserve,

dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.
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_{# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
315t March 2025 215t March 2024

18 BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT

From a Bank
Term Loan® 798.08 -
Less: Curmrent Maturities of Long ferm bomowings {195.00)
TOTAL 603.08 -
*Term loan

- Term loan are secured by a first ranking par-passu  hypothecation/ Exclusive charge on the assets crected out of the term loan,
Repayabie in 60 equalmanthly instalments (refer below), Rate of Intererst -8.20% p.a (previous year nil)*

Repayment Schedule
Parficulars Asaf Asal
J1st March, 2025 J1st March, 2024

From Banks:

-2 Years 155,00 -

2-3 Years 195.00 -

3-4 Yeqars 195.00 -

4-5 Years 171.84 -

5-6 Years 41.16

Total outstanding Borrowing 798.02 -

19 PROVISIONS (NOMN-CURRENT)
Pension 1398 21.48
TOTAL 19.98 21.48
20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Defared Tax Liabilities (Net) 405 89 431.88

TOTAL —409.89 _431.88

(i} The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Current income tax charge 580.00 525.00

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (21.967 0175

Income fax expense reported in statement of profit or loss 558.01 524.84

Reconciliation

Accounting profit/ (loss) bafore income tax 2278946 2.057.81

Enacted tax rate in India 25.1./% 2o.17%

Computed tax expense 573.61 517.95

Differences due to

Expoansas not deductible for tax purposas (16.63) 798

Chers 1.03 (110
{15.600 6.88

Current Income Tax expenses recognised in Profit or Loss 558.01 224 .83
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i)

21

Daiemed tax relates to following:

Recognised in Balance Sheet Recognised in Profit or Loss
Particulars As at As at Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose {418.60) (425,19} (6.55) (15.64)
Expenses allowalkle on payrment osis 8.72 8.53 (0.1%9 0.25
Fair valuation of financial instruments - (15.22) (15.22) 15.22
Deferred tax asset [ diabilibhyd {40%.88) {431.88)
Net (income)/ expanse (21.9%) 0.17)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2025 J1st March 2024
BORROWINGS
From Banks
Bank Overdraft (Refer Note below) |.86
Cash Credif Faciity (Refer Note balow) 472.26 -
Current Maturities of Long term bomowings 125.00 -
669.12 -
Bank Overdraft
The overdraft faciiity Is secured against bank deposits
Cash Credit

- Cash Credit 472,26 Lakhs (previous year nil), Primary Securihy-Exclusive charge on entire current assets (present and future).
Secondary Collateral- Nil - 12 months, repayable lumpsum on demand. Rate of Intererst-8. 1 5%p.a (previous year nil).”

TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 251.86 83.85
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 166.85 1.288.43

micre and small enterprises

TOTAL 1,718.71 1,442.28

The Management has identified enferprisas which have provided goods and services to the Company and which gualify undar the
definificn of micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Mediurm Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Accordingly. the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enferprses hos been made in the finoncigl statements based
on information received and available with the Company, which is rélied upon by the auditors, Further in the view of the
management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payvable inaccordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be
matericil,

[ The princlipal amount outstanding s af the yvear end Bl HO
I}  Princloal amount due and remaining unpald - -
iy Interest due on i) above and the unpaid interest . -
i Inferest poid on all delayed poyments under the MSMED Act, - -
vy Payment made beyond the appointfed day during the year - -
vi)  Interast due and payabls for the period of delay other than (iv) above - -
vii)  Inferest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

villy) Armount of further interast remoining duse ond poyable
in succeading veors = =

* It includes amount poyatble in the nature of capital craditors amounting fo 3.73 Lakhs {previous year nil)
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23

Particulars

As at
J1st March 2025

As at

315t March 2024

Trade payables ageing schedule:

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Mot Due Less than 1-2 2-3 Maore than Total
1 year Yecors yeors 4 years
As at 31st March'2025
i Lirkilled - - - E g %
1 Micro and small enterprisas - 251.86 - - - 51.86
iy  Creditors other than micro and small enterprises - 757.80 4.80 4.89 0.64 766,85
vy Disputed dues - Micro and small enterprises = - % % 5 =
vl Disputed dues other than micro and small enterprises * =
Total - 1.709.64 3.80 4.59 0.64 1,718.71
As at 31st March'2024
o Unbiled 24,28 - - - - 24.28
i} Micro and small enterprises - 53.85 - - = 23.85
iy  Creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1.284.73 1.59 0.78 2.04 1.289.15
Ny Disputed dues — Micro and small enterprises - - - - - -
Vvl Disputed dues other than micre and small enterprises - - - - 500 5.00
Total 04.28 1,338.58 1.5% 0.78 7.04 144228
Particulars Year ended Year ended
J1st March 2025 J1st March 2024

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security deposits 8.10 -
Unpaid dividend® 22,30 20.61
Advances from customers 11237 141.49
TOTAL 142.77 182.10
*21.85,096 (P.Y- NIL) Transterred to Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 as at vear
end
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable 271.20 237.23
TOTAL 271.20 237.23
PROVISIONS
(sratuity 116.67 49,66
Compemnsaled absances 1.41 31.11
Pension 10.18 2.65
TOTAL 128.26 20.42
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Manufoctured products (net of rebates and discounts)

i=alatine 1402783 13,780,786

DCP - animal feed grade 4,809,246 4.326.65

Bone meal products 2454 28.47
Other Operating Income

sQle of scrap/Coal ash 12,22 12.57

Export incentives and duty drawback 0.16 0.61

Licbkilities no longer required written back (Net) 10.23 23.95

Miscelansous Income &, 73 &.55
MNET SALES 18,892.07 18,179.56
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

J1st March 2025 315t March 2024

27  QTHER INCOME
mterest income

From banks 98.01 86.39

From cthars 17.17 11518 18.05 104.44
f}hﬂl‘lgﬂ- in fair valuation of current / nen-current
investments in mutual funds 49.47 b Te e s
Profit on disposal / discard of property.,
plant and equipment (Net) 0.560 -
TOTAL 165.25 1461.09

e

28 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Row Moterials:

Opening Stock 1.116.74 1.533.63
Add : Purchaoses 11,146.63 10.427.54
Less ; Closing Stock 856,24 1,116.74
Raw materials consumed 11,407.13 10,844.43

29 CHANGE IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOQDS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Opening Stocks
Finished Goods 1.433.16 1.213.06
Work-In-progress 151647 2949.63 140209 2461514
Closing Stocks
Finished Goods 1.895.74 1.433.14
Work-in-progress 1477.61 337335 151647 284943
Met (Increase) / Decrease (423.72) (334.49)
30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
salarles ond wages 1,360.72 1,.264.56
Confribution to provident and other funds 204.06 196.14
Staff walfare axpensas 53.43 3125
TOTAL 1,618.21 1,491.95
31  FINANCE COSTS
Inferast axpanse on barrowings 1046.79 0.04
Other barrowing costs 15.26 25.85
TOTAL 122.05 2591
32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Depreciation & Amodtisation expense 222.23 203.64
TOTAL T 22223 20364
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

33  OTHER EXPENSE

Consumption of stores and spare parts 126.85 105.7%9
Rates ond taxes (other than taxes on ncome) 10.08 2.59
Effluent expenses 29,74 30.92
Ground water abstraction chorges 2592 25,88
Insurance 26,427 22.25
Repals and maintenance:

- Bullding 0.11 14.93

- Plant and equipmeant &08.04 a24.76

- Other Repairs 13,77 62197 10.04 R, 73
Legal and professional charges 73.57 39.45
Auditors’ remunearation (*Refar note balow) 617 &.44
Freight and delivery charges 118,65 120.11
Commission 1o seling agents 10.05 9.63
Rent 15.846 15,43
Travelling 16,15 15,12
Advertisament 11.68 3.90
Research and Development expenses 13.95 19.15
asundry balances written off 3,59 -
Direcrors’ Fee 8.66 Q.84
Forelgn exchange loss 0.12 0.19
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 34,11 25,22
Miscellanecus expanses 222,85 151.50
TOTAL 1,376.81 1,154.14
Auditors’ Remuneration®
statutory gudit fees (including limited review feas) 4,00 4.00
Tax Audiit 1.00 1,00
Cther certificafion fees 0.07 0.35
Reimburserment of out of pocket expenses 1.10 1.08
TOTAL &6.17 6.44

34 DISCLOSURE PURSUANTTO IND AS - 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"
i} Gratuity: In cccordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratulty, a defined benefit retirerment plan (The
Sratuity Plan®) covering eligible employees. The Gratulty Plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on refirernent
(subject to completion of five years of confinuous employment) . death, incapacitation or termination of employment that are based
on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarnial valuation on
the reporting date and the Company makes annual contribution to the gratuity fund administered by Life Insurance Corporation of
Indic under Group Gratuity Scheme.

The disclosure inrespect of the defined Gratuty Plan are given below:;

A. Balance Sheet

Defined benefit plans

As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Present value of plan llabilities 412,43 J83.58
Fair value of plan assets A02.76 333.92
Asset/(Liability) recognised (116.67) (49.66)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
J31st March 2025 315t March 2024
B. Movements in plan assets and plan liabilities Present value of Fair Value of
obligations Plan assets
As at 1st April 2024 383.53 333.92

Current service cost 20,92 -
Adjustment in opening balance -
Past service cost - -

Interest Cost/incoma) 27,58 24,00
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 0.45
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 2228 -
Actuarial (gaim)/loss arlsing due fo change in demographic assumplions -

Actucrial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 44,56

Employer contributions 5 23.65
Benefit payments (79.27) (79.27)
As at 31st March 2025 419.40 302.75
As at 1st April 2023 340.54 307.94
Cumrent service cost 19.90 -

Adjustrent in opening balance - -
Past service cost . .

Interest Cost/{income) 25.23 22.82
Return on plan gssets excluding interast income - 1.82
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assurmptions 18.32 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising due o change in demographic assurmptions 0.33

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjusiments 10.49 -
Employer contributions - J2.00
Benefit payments (31.28) {31.28)
As at 31st March 2024 383.53 333.92

C. Statement of Profit and Loss
Employee Benefit Expenses:

Current Service Cost 20.92 16.50
Interest Cost .97 241
Post Service cost (vested benefits) - -
Met Actuarial (Gain) [ Loss - -
Interest cost/(income) - -

Total omount recognised in Staterment of profit & loss T 24.49 2231
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:

Actuaricl (Galn) f Loss recognised for the period 66,04 2915
Assat limit effact - -
Return on plan cssets excluding net interest (0.45) (1.B1)
Unracognised Actuarial (Galn)/ Loss from previous period - -
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 66,19 27.34
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

D.

Assumptions

With the objecfive of presenting the pion assets and plan liakilities of the defined benefits plans af their fair value on the balance
shgat, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.
Particulars As at As at

J1st March 2025 J1st March 2024

The significant actuarial assumplions were as follows:
Financial Assumptions

Discount rate 6.7 1% 7. 19%
Salary Escalation Rate
Management Employees 8.00% 8.00%
Nomn-management Employaes 8.00% F00%
Demographic Assumptions
Expected Average remaining working lives of employeaes in no. of years
Management Employees 14 14
MNon-management Employees o o
Mortality Rate IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Urban Urban
Attrition Rate
Management Employees 1% 1%
Mon-management Employees 6% A%
Retirement Age & (]

Adjusted Average Future Services

sensitivity
The sensltivity of the overall plan llabliities to changes In the weighted key assumptions are:
Impact on defined benelit obligation
Change in Increasein Decraasein
assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate +=1% {20,200 22.67
Sclary Escalation Rate +-1% 22.16 20.15)

The sensifivity analyses above have been determined based on reqsonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occuring at the end of tha reporting perdod and may not be reprasentative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensifivity to the assumption, the same method used
to calculate the lability recognised in the baloncs sheat has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparning
the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.

i) Compensated Absences: The Company parmnits encashment of compeansaled absence accumulated by thair employeaas on
refirerment, separation and durng the course of senvice. The liability In respect of the Company, for outstanding bolance of leave ot
the balance sheet date is determined and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation parformed by an independent actuary,

The disclosure in respect of the defined Compensated Absences are given below,

Particulars Year ended Year ended
J1st March 2025 J1st March 2024

Expenses racognised in stotement of profit ond loss 3.44 24,13

Bolance shaet liability 1.41 31.11

iiiy Pension

The retirement banafits pension will ba fixed amount of INR 585 per month for an emplovee only after retiring from the organization
and If service renderad by the employees s 25 years and above at the time of retirement. A pergionar may opt on optionto commute
IMR 34,000 as a lump surm once in ifetime. Affer commutation of pension member won't get any monthly pension. If any employes
expire his/her spouse will get lumpsurn benefit of INR 34,000, thereafter no monthly pension will e payable, Liakility determined and
pravided on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by a independent actuary, The disclosure in respect of pension llability are
given below :

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2025 st March 2024
Expenses / (gain) recognised in statement of profit and loss 410 487
Balance sheet ablity 30.16 31.13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
J1st March 2025 J1st March 2024
35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Estimated amount of confract remaining to be executed on 1.311.46 340.79
capital account not provided for
Less Capital advances paid there against 56.72 50.08
Capital Commitments 1.254.74 340.79
34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Claims not acknowledged as debts (excluding further interest, if any)
Income fox matters®
Excise duty 240.88 240.88
Soiles tond 3.76 3.76
Land revenue cess 14.14 14.14
TOTAL 258.78 258.78
MNotes:
i The Company's pending litigations comprise mainly clagims against the Company, proceaedings pending with tox and other
authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, wherever
required and disclosed the contingent lickilfies, wherever applicakzle, in ifs financial staternents. The Company does not reqsonably
axpect the outcome of thase proceedings to have a matenial impact onits financial statemants.
() ‘“Income tax matter related to assessment year 2013-14, resulted in disputed tax demand of ¥ 7.85 lacs arsen on account of
disallowance of additional deprecation claimed which is a misrake apparent from records against which the Company's
rectification application/appeal is pending. The Management is confident that this disputed demand will get reversed or rectified in
due course and hence, not consideraed as contingent liabilities.
37  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ceased to be the related pariy#
14.07.2023
14.07.2023

Enterprise where the control exists
Jumbo World Holdings Limited
Alfarmaont (Mauritiug) Limited

Relotionship
Uimaote Holding Company
Halding Company

Other related parties - (ceased to be related party w.a.l. 14.07.2023#)

Acsmon Manogement Services Pvt, Lid., Dandvati Investments & Trading Co. Pyt Lid., Frestorm Electronics Corporation Pyt Lid.,
GWL Properties Ltd.. Harshit Finlease & Invastments Pvt, Lid.. Jumba Electronics Corporation Pyt, Lid.. Jumbo Invastments Ltd., Jurmbo
Werld Holdings (India) Pyt Lid., Prima Enterprises Pyt Ltd,, SMN Englneers Lid,, Starfire Investrents Lid., Pious Investments Pwvt, Lid,

Enterprise where the control exisls Relationship with effect from#
Pioneer Jellice India Prvate Limited Associate Co, 14.07,2023
Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Limited Associate Cao, 14.07.2023

Key managerial personnel

M. Ashok Kapur
M. Arun Jaiswal
Ms. Mahima Patkar
hr. Mahash Verma

Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 15.03.2025)

Company 3ecretary (w.e.f07.08.2024)

Chief Financial Officer (Ceased from services to w.e.f 07.01.2025)

Ms. Meenu Sharma Company Secretary (Ceased from services fo w.e.f 28.06.2024)
Non-Executive Directors

b 5. Annamalai®

Mr. 5. Maheswaran®

hir. B Vijayadurnal®

hrs. Manimegalai Thargamoni®

Mr. K Krishnamoarty

M. Prakash M Nene*®*

bAr. Ravindra K. Roje **

Mrs. Drushiti 2, Desai™

M. Gaurang Shah**

"w.e ! 14.07. 2023, " upto 14.07 2023
Refernote 1 7alvi{a)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars of iransaction and cutstanding balances with related parties

Particulars Nature of Transaction Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Transactions with related parties
Pioneer Jelice India Private Limited: Purchase of raw material 1.524.64 1.623.33
(Including GST)
Technical Consultany Service
Sales commission received .72 773
Outstanding Balance with related parlies
Pionaer Jelice India Private Limited: MNat ¥2.21
Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (Remuneration paid)
(M Mr Ashok K Kapur 66.26 63.62
(i Mr. Arun Jaiswal® 0.1 -
(i} Ms, Mahima Patkar*® 293 -
() M. Mahesh Verma®™™® 16.46 15.15
i) Ms. Meenu Sharma®*** 0.54 3.61

“As the Gratuity and Compensated absences are computed for all the employees in aggregate. the amount relating to Key

Managerial Parsonnel cannot ba ingividually be identified.
Mr. Arun Jaiswal Joined wel 15.03.2025%"

Mz, Mahimao Pofkorw.e. f07.08.2025***

Mr Mahesh Verma (Ceased from sarvicas tow.a.f 07.01,2025)***
Ms. Meenu Sharma (Cedsed from senvicestow.e.f 28.06.2024)
Transactions with Non-Executive Directors (Silting fee paid)

Mr. & Annamalai

M S, Maheswaran

hMr. B Vijayaduraol

Mrs. Maonimegalai Thangamani

Mr. Prakash M Nene

M. K Krishnomoorthy

Mr. Ravindra K. Raje

Mrs. Drushti 2. Desaol

Mr. Gaurang shah

MHotes:

.60
1.00
220
1.40

2.20

0.83
0.60
1.31
1.28
0.73
2.26
0.88
0.64
0.80

(I  Noamounts in respect of related parties have been wiritten off [ willten back durng the year, nor has any provision been made
for doubtful debts f receivables during the year, except as disclosed above.,

(i Al related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm’s length basis.

an Key Monagerial Persons who are under the employment of the Compony are entitled to post-employment benefits {(defined
benafit gratuity plan) recognised as per Ind AS 19 "Employes Banafits” in the financial staternents and shor-term employes
benafits in the form of premium paid by company for group health insurance plan. As these employae benesfits are lumpsum
crmounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation/ premium poayment for the Company as a whole, the same 5 not included

above,

38 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit available for equity shareholders 1.720.94 1.532.98
Weighted average numbear of equity shoraes &0,49 587 60 49 587
Morminal value of equity share 10.00 10.00
Eamings per share - Basic: [ Diluted 28.45 25.34

39  INVESTMENTS - NON-CURRENT
Investments in Mufual Funds (at NAV) - un-quoled, fully paid-up

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Particulars Fair Value No. of Total Fair Value No. of Total
Perunit __ Units Value  Perunit  Unifs Value

MNippaon India Short Term Fund- Growth Plan - 51.40 106096 54.54
Nippon India Money Market Fund- Direct - Growth - 3,821.33 2851 108.24
3Bl Savings Fund - Direct - Growth - 40.44 133,386 53.94
ABSL Savings Fund - Direct - Growth - 80620 42977 21755
ICICIPru Ultra Short term fund -Direct Growth - 27.23 1.148972 31288
Mippon India Ulhra Short Durafion Fund - Direct Growth Plan - 403214 2430 106.06
ABSL Savings Fund - Direct - Growth = 20620 21054 104857
Total 960.48
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A0  INVESTMENT IN AM ASSOCIATE
A.  Investments in Equity Shares
As af 31st March, 2025 As of 31sf March, 2024
Particulars Fair Value No. of Total  Fair Value No. of Total
Perunit  Unifs Value Perunit  Unifs Value
Equity Shares of India Gelatine and Chemicals Ltd 10.00 10,032,000 4,115.21 "
Total 4,115.31 -
B. Summarised Financial Infermation of an associate ( India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited)
(i) Summarised Balance Sheet:
Parficulars As af As of
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
MNon-cument assets 10.011.38 2.132.26
Current assets ©.440.82 308,48
MNor-current llabilities 1.233.05 1,453,924
Current liabilities 1 069.05 1.57¢.87
Equity 17.,150.10 15,406.93
Carmying amount of investment 4,115.31 -
(i) Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss:
Revenus 19,852 87 2058397
Cost of moterial consumed 9,128.21 2,083.94
Purchaose of Stock-in-Trade - 14,51
Changes in Inventory, Finished Goods WIRSIT 876,85 (365.58)
Employee benefits expense 1.217.83 1.274.79
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 250.08 525,95
Finaonce costs &r1.77 73.74
Power & Fuel 2,/85.02 2.5902.50
Other expenses 4,029.29 4.171.25
Profit before tax 2,264.84 3,726.45
Less: Tax expense 20,91 B87.60
Profit tor the year 1,738,923 2,838.85
Other comprehansive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 75.17 (8.58)
share of profit for the year 42.00 -
41 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a C5k Committee has been formed by the Company. As part of initiatives under
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company has undertaken projects In the areos of environment [/ river profection,
education, ivelihcod, healthcare, sanitation, rural developrment, promaotion of sports and cultural activities, which are specified in
Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013, The amount spent on the same i given balow;

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(i Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 3444 26,00

(N Amount soent during the year ont

Construction / acquisition of any asset - -

On purposes ofher than above (including administrative overhaed) 34.50 25,22

Balance utillsed from the excess spent in FY -

0.81
(iii} Shortfall ot the end of the year - -
(viTotal of previous years shortfall = =
(v) Reason for shorifall MA MNA
(vidNature of CSR activities Literacy promation, Environment protection,
Health core activities, Erodication of hunger

& poverty
(vii} Detalls of related party transactions in relation to C5R expenditure - -
42 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPEMDITURE
Revenue expenditure
Salaries and wages 13.44 11.26
Other expenses - 1.94

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

@)



‘# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(AN omounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

43

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and abilities are included at the amount af which the instrument could be exchanged in a

current fronsaction betwean willing parties. other than in a forced or liguidatfion sale. The following methods and assumptions were

usad to astimate the fair values:

(i Fairvalue of cash and shorl-term depaosits, trade and other short term receivables, frade payables, other current liakilities, shorl
term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying amaounts largely due to short term maturities of
these Instruments,

(i) Finoncial instrurments with fixed ond varioble interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as inferest

rates and individual credit worthiness of the counter-party. Based on this evaluation. allowances are taken fo account for expected

losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fairvalue of such instrurnents is not matericlly different from their camying amaounts

The Company uses the lollowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
techniques:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prces in active markets foridentical assets or labilities.

Lawvel 2: other fechniques forwhich allinputs which have a significant effect on the recorded falr value are obsernvable, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: technigques which use inputs that have g significant effect on the recorded fair volue that are not based on observable
market data.’

The camying amounis and fair values of financial insiruments by category are as follows:

FVocC] FVTPL Amortised  Total fair Carrying

Note 2(xiil) _ Note2 (xiii) cost value amount
31st March, 2024
Financial assets
IMvestments - 46048 - 950.48 60,48
Trade receivables - - 2,190,852 2,190,852 2.190.52
Cash and cash eguivalents - = &661.74 661,74 &61.74
Bank balancas other than above 1.553.70 1.553.70 1.553.70
Loan - 39,34 39,34 39.34
Cither financial assets - - 27201 27201 272.01
Total - 960.48 4,717.31 5677.79 5677.79
Financial liabilities
Trade payatsles E - 1,442 28 1,442 28 1,442.28
Other financial liabilitles - - 182.10 182.10 182.10
Total financial liabilities - - 1,624.38 1,624.38 1,624.38
31st March, 2025
Financial assefs
Investment in an associate - - 411531 411531 A4,115.31
Trade receivables - - 2.484.20 248420 Z2.484.20
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1903 1903 19.03
Bank balances other than above 26,36 26,36 26.36
Loan - - 60.04 60.04 60.04
Cthears financial assets - - 234,67 234,627 234,672
Tolal - - 6,939 56 6,939 56 6,939 56
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1.272.20 1.272.20 1.272.20
Trade payvables - - 1.718.71 1.718.71 1.718.71
Others - - 14277 142.77 142.77
Total financial liakilities - - 3,133.69 3,133.69 3,133.69

Fair value estimation

For financial instruments megsured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, a three level fair value hierarchy is used that reflacts the

significance of inputs used in the measurements. The hierarchy gives the highest priorty fo unadjusted quoted prices in active markets

foridentical assets orliobiiities (Level | measurements) and lowest priority fo uncbservable inpufs (Level 3 measurements).

The categories used are as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices for idenfical instruments

» Lavel 2: directly or indirectly observable market inpufs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

« Lavel J: inputs which are not based on obsarvable market data,

For assets and liabilities which are carried at fair value, the classification of fair value calculations by category is surnmarised below:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

31st March, 2024

Assets at fair value - 260,48 -
31st March, 2025

Assets ot fair value - - -
Investrments in Egquify Shares Not Carried af Fair Valus

There were no significant changes in classification and no significant movemeants between the fair value hierarchy classifications of
fincncial assets and finoncial labilities during the years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
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a4

RISK MANAGEMENT
Fnancial risk rmanagement objectives and policies ;

The Company’'s finoncial risk management is an infegrol part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’'s
activity expose it to market risk. liguidity risk, commaodity risk and credit risk. The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by
the Risk Management Committes and governed by overall direction of Board of Directors of the Company.

Market risk Is the risk of loss of future earnings, falr values or future cash flows that may resulf from a change In the price of a financial
Instrument. The vaiue of a findnclal instrumeant moy change as a result of changes in the interast rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, equily pricas and other markel changes that affect marked risk sensitive insfrurments. Market risk is attribulable to all marked risk
sensitive financial insfrurments including investrments and deposits . foreign curency receivables, payables ond koans and bomowings.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Risk Management
(i} Credit rigk Caosh and cash eguivalents, Ageing onalysis Credit Credif lirmits and letters of credit
trade receivables, financial ratings and Performance guarantees,

imstruments, fincncial assets
megsured of omortised cost.

() Liquidity risk Borrowings and other iabiliies  Holing cosh flow forecasts  Availability of committed credit
ines and borrowing facilities
(i) Market risk—intersst rale Long-term borowings af sensilivity analysis Interes! rale swaps
variable raftes
(v} Market risk-foreign exchonge Future commercial transoctions Cash flow forecasting Forward foreign exchange
recognised financial assets and  Sensitivity analysis contracts

iabilties not denominoted in
Indican rupees

(v Commodity risk Purchase of Row Material Az par production Procurameant and Inventory
planning and budgeling strategy

CREDIT RISK

‘Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations s agreed. To manage this. the
company periodically assessas the financial reliakility of customers. taking inte account the financial condition. curent economic
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Individual credit limits are set accordingly. The
Company considers the probakbility of default upon initial recognition of asset and wheather there has bean a significant increqse in
credif risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting perlod. To assess whether there 1s a significant increase In credit risk the
company compares the risk of default cccumng on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as of the date of initial
recognition. The company considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Financial assets are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor falling to engage In a repayment plan with the company. The
company provides for overdue outstanding as per the policy approved by the Board of Directors. which are evaluated ona case fo
case basis, The Company's concentration of risk with respect to tfrode receivables is low, os its customer's base is widely spread ocross
the length and breadth of the country and majority of the custormers are with sound financial health.”

The average credit period extended fo customers ranges within 30- 120 days

Expected credit loss for frade recelvables under simplified approach

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

{a) Ageing of irade receivables
From the dafe of invoice

0 - 6 months 248217 2,190.52
& -9 months 2.03 -
Q- 12 months - -

beyvond 12 months - -

TOTAL 2 484 20 2.190.52
(b} Reconciliation of loss allowonce provision - Trade receivables
Dpaning provision 2.481 2.81

Additional provision made = -
Lass Bad debis written off [/ recovered - -

Closing provisions 2.81 2.81
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v

LIQUIDITY RISK
‘Liquuiclity risk is defined as the sk thatf the company willnof be able fo settle ormeeat its cbligations on fimme or at a reasonakle price.

The Company’'s treasury department is responsible for maintenonce of liquidity dncluding quaosi liguidity), continuity of funding cs well
as timely sethement of debts, In addition, policias related to mitigation of risks are overseen by seniormanagement,

Management monitors the Company’'s net liguidity position on the basis of expected cash flows vis a vis debt service fulfilmeant
obligation.”

Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The: table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date .

Confractual maturity patterns of Financial Liabilities ;

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
0-1 year/ 1t 5 Total 0-1 year/ ltas Total
on Demand years on Demand  years
Borowings 1.272.20 - 1.272.20 = = 2
Trade payables 1,718.71 - L7187 1.442.28 - 1,442.28
Other financial iabilties 142,77 142,77 182,10 182,10
Total 3,133.69 - 313349 1.424.38 - 1,624.38

MARKET RISK- INTEREST RATE RISK

Interast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
Interest rates. In order to balance the Company’s position with regards to Interest income and interest expense and to manage the
interest rate nsk, fincance department performs o comprehensive interast rate risk management, The Company s not exposad fo
significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.

MARKET RISK- FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Company Is exposed to foreign exchange rsk fowards honouring of export/ import commitrments. Management evaluotes
axchange rate exposure in this connection in terms of its established risk management policias which includes the use of dervatives
ke forelgn exchonge forward confracts to hedge risk of exposure in foreign curmrency. The company s not exposed to foreign
curency risk ot the respective reporting dafes.

COMMODITY RISK

"Principal [fow Material for Company’s products is Crushed bone, HCL, Lime and Coal as a fuel. The Company sources its major raw
material requirement from domestic suppliers located in various part of India.

The Company effectively manages with avaiiability of material as well as price volatility based on the following:

o [Raow materials are procured from different sources af competitive prices.

e Alternalive scurces are developed foruninferupted supply of raw materials.

« Demand and supply are external factors on which company has no control; however the Company plans its production and
sdles from the experience gained in the past and on-going study and appraisal of the market dynarmics, competition, economic
policies and growth patterns of different segments of users of company’'s products.
specific steps to reduce the gap between demand and supply by expanding its customer base, delivery mechanisms, etc.,
Proper inventory confrol systems have been put In place, The Risk commiftee of the Company comprising meambers from Board

of Directors and the operations has developed and enacted a risk management sfrategy regording commodity Price risk and its
mitigation.'

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS
(a) Capitalrisk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

s scfeguard their ability to continueg ds a going concern, 5o that they can confinue to provide returns for shareholders and
beneafits for other stakeholders, and

e maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

(b) Term loan are secured by afirst ranking pari-passu hypothecation/ Exclusive charge on the assets created out of the term loan.
Cash Credit Primary Security-Exclusive charge on entfire current assets (present and future) & fixed depaosits referred in Note 18
and21.

(c) Dividends
The Company follows the policy of Dividend for any finoncial year as may be decided by Board considerng financial
pearformance of the company and other intfernal and external factors
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Particulars As at As af
415t March, 2025 31st March, 2024

On Equity Shares
Dividends not recognised at the end of reporting period

alnce year end, the directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of T 10.00 per fully paid up equity share. The proposed dividend is
sublect to the gpproval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general
meating. &04.94 &H04.94

44 During the year. the Company had recsived a whistle blower complaint alleging certain unsthical practices concermning the
operdtions of the Company. On endguiry with the support of an external agency. it was found that the allegations were mere surmise
and devoid of any substantial evidence which are legally fenable. A formal report from the agency 8 awaited including their
suggastions to strangthen the internal control measuras, betterment and smooth functioning of the Company.

47 Certain financial assets and financial labilities are subject to formal confirmation and reconciliations. The Management, however, |5
confident that the iImpact whereof, It any, forthe yvear on the financial statemeants will not be maoterial,

48 The President has given his amsent to the Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code”) Iin September 2020. On 13th November 2020 the
Ministry of Latour and Employment relecsed draft rules for the Code, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has
not been nofifled. The Company will assess the impact cnce the subject rules are notified ond will give cpprepriate impact to its
financial statements in the period inwhich the Code becomes effeciive,

49 Financial Ratios
5r. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Variance Reasonforvariance

Numerator Denominator Ratios (%) over 25%
1 Current Rafic Cumrent Assets Current Lickilities 2.95 4.55 45% Company has
{in times) avallad Credit
2 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Borowings Net Worth 0.11 0.00 100% Facilities like CC
(in times) Limits & Term Loan
Mo such facilities
3 DebtSenvice Profit before Tax, Finance Charges + 333 000 100% {w st s -
Coverage Raofio Excepfional Ifems, Long Term Bormowings ]
ety i s the FY 23-24)
(ir times) Depraciation,. scheduled Principal
Finance Charges repoyments
{excludng
prepaymernts +
refinancing)
during the vear
4 Feturn on Equity Met profit affer fax Average Networth 15.07% 15.12% -30%
Ratio (%)
5 Inventaory Turnowver Ma terial & Stores & Average Inventory 74 70 5.48% -
(no. of days) Spares consumed
& Debtors Turnover Average Trade Revenue from
{(no, of days) Receivables including operations 45 42 7. 14%
unbilled revenue
Fi Payables Turnover Average Trade Cost of goods soid 20 43 11.59% -
(no. of days) payables
& Met Capital Tumover Annual furnover Worklng Capltal 3.95 248 8924% -
(N times) {excluding current
maturities of long
termn delbits)
@ Met Profit Margin (%) Nat profit tor Total Income Q03% 8.36% 504% -
the yvear
10 Ketum on Capital Profit affer fax plus Average capital 14.08% 15.12% &.38%
Employed (%) Interest on long employed
term loons and
debentures
1 Returm on Income generated Time weighted 515% 7.68% -32.95% Company sold
Investment (%) from investments averages Investment rritual funds
Notes:
MNetworth = Eguity + other Eguity
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50  Otherstatutory information:

=1

52

1)

Wi

vii)

willy

iy
%)

wi)

The Company does not have any benami property. where any proceeding has been initiocted or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property.

The Company does not have any fransactions with companies struck off.
The Company does not have any charges or satlsfaction which is yet to ba registered with ROC beyond the statuicry period.
The Company has not fraded orinvested in Crypto cumency or Virlual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds to any other persons) or enfity(ies), including foreign entities
{Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Infermedicry shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
antities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the company (Utimate beneficiaries) or (o) provide any
guarantee, securlty or the like to or on behalf of the ulfimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any personis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: a) directly orindirectly lend or Invest in other
persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ullimate beneficiaries) or b)
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Thae Company doas not have any such transaction which is notf recorded in the books of accounts that has been surendered or
disclosed as income dunng the year in the tax assessmeants under the Income Tax Act, 1941 (such os, search or survey or any
other relevant provisions of the Income Tox Act, 1961,

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

The Company s not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or lender during the year,

The quarterly retums or statements of cumrent assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement
with the books of accounts

The Company has used the bomowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken as at
Balonce sheet dote,

The Company is engaged in the manufacture and sale of Ossein and Gealatine. Since all thase segments meaeat the aggragation
criteria a3 per the requirements of Ind AS 108 on 'Operaling segments’, the management considers these as a single reportable
segrment. Accordingly. no further disclosure is required fo be furnished.

Prewvious year's figures have beean re-grouped [ re-classified wherever required to conform to current years' classification,

signatures to note 1 to 52 For and on behalf of the Board
5. Annamalal Ashol K Kapur
Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00001381 LIMN:Q0 1 26807

Place : Jabalpur Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patkar

Date : 24" May, 2025 Chief Financial Offlcer Company Secrefary
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Independent Auditor's Report
To The Members of Narmada Gelafines Limited

Report on the Audit of Consclidated Financial Staterments

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Narmada Gelatines Limited (“the Parent Company”) and an associate
(together referred as “the Group”). which comprise the consolidoted Balonce Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the consolidated
Staterment of Profit and Loss (ncluding Cther Comprehensive Incomea), the consolidated Statemeant of Changas In Equity and the

consclidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yvear then ended. and nofes to the financial statements. Including a summarny of
mdteral occounting policies and other explanctary Information.

In our opinion and fo the best of owr iInfemation and according fo the explanations given to us, the aforesald consolidated financial
statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Achin the manner so required and give o true and fair view
in confarmity with the accounting principles generally accepted inIndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March 2025,
and profit, changes inegquity and its cash flows for the yvearended onthat date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our oudit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur
responsibilifies under those Standards are further described in the Auditars Responsibiifies for the Audif of the Financial Sfatemeants
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
staternents under the provisions of the Act and the [Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsiolifles
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's reporl thereon

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other information comprises the
information included in the Board's Report including Annexuras to the Board report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statement and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informafion and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statemants. our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing
so0, consider whether the other information Is materdally inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or othenwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

Based on the work we hoave performed, if we conclude that there is a matenal misstaterment of this other informatfion, we reguired to
report that fact, We have nothing foreport in thisregard.

Management responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the maoftters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give o true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(Including other comprahensive income), changes In equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles genarally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and ofher imegularities; sselection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and
maintenance of adequate intermnal financlal confrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records. relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view and
ara frea from material misstaternant, whather due to froud orerror.

In praparing the financial statements, managemeant and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
confinue a8 a going concem, disclosing, as applicabke, maftes relafed fo goling concern and using the golng concerm baosls of

accounting unless managemeant either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative butto
doso,

The Board of Directorns are also responsiiole for overseeing the Company’s inancial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our obhjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or erorn, and 1o issue anauditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high
level of assurance, but 15 not o guarantee that an audit conductad in accordance with A5 will always detect a material misstatemeant
when it exists, Misstaterneants can anise from fraud or eror and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate., they could
reasonably be expacted to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolldated finoncial stratements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 3As, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional skephicism throughout the
audit. We also:

™ Identify and assess the nsks of material misstaterment of the financial statements. whether due ta fraud or emor, design and
partorm audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide o
basis for our oplnion, The rsk of not detecting o maferidcl misstatement resulfing from froud s higher than for one resulfing from
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» Ciztain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriatein the
circumstanceas. Under Section 1433300 of the Act, we are ako responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate intermal financial controls system in place and the operating effectivenass of such confrols.

. Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting astimafes and related
disclosures made by the monagement.

. Conclude on the appropnateness of Management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a materiol uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability to continue as a geing conceam. If we conclude that a materal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, If such disclosures are
inadeqguate, 1o modify our opinlan. Our conclusions are based on the cudit evidence obtalned up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or condifions may cause the Company fo cedse To confinue as a going Concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying fransactions and events in a manner thot achieves fair presentation.,

Obtain sufficient cppropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Parent
Company and an associate o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsitble for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such antities included inthe consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independeant auditors. For the othar entity Included In the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditar, such other auditor remains responsible for the direction, supernvision and performance of The audit carred
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

Maternality is the moagnitude of misstatements in the consclidated financial statements that individually or in aggregate maokes if
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
considear quantitative maternality and gualitative factors in () planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work and (i) to evaluale the elfect of any idenlified misstalemeantsin the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings. Including any signiflcant deficlencles In internal control That we Identify durng our auadit,

We also provide those chorged with governance with o staterment that we hove complled with relevant ethical requirernents
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaticnships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
aonourindependence, and where cpplicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The consclidated finoncial statements also include the Group's share of profit affer fax of Rs. 82.00 kokhs for period from 5" December,
2024 i.e. date of acquisition by Parent Company uptil March 31, 2025, as considerad in the consolidated financial staterments. in
respect of an associate, whose financial statement has not been audited by us. The financial staterment has been audited by other
auditor whosea report have been furnished to us by the Management. and our opinion on the consolidated finoncial statement. in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (1 1) of Section 143 of the Act, inso far asit
relates to the aforesoid associate, is based sclely on the report of the ofher guditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated finoncial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremants below, is not
modified inraspect of the above matters with respect to financial statements audited by other auditor.

Reporl on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Asrequired by the Companias (Auditor's Repaort) Order, 20020 (" the Order or CARDY ), issued by the Central Government of Indicin terms

of sub-section {11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "A" a staterment on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable,

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@} We have sought and oblained al the informalion and explanalions which 1o the besl of our knowledge and belie! were
necessary for the purposes of our auwdif,

() In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examinction of those books and records

5] The Balance sheet, the Staternent of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income), Staterment of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this [Repor are in agreement with the books of account.

() Inour opinlon, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounfing Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rula 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014,

() Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 317 March, 2025 taken on records by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 317 March, 2025 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164(2) ot the Act.

(f  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectivenass of such controls, refer to our separare Reportin Annaxure "B,

(@)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the reguirements of Section 197(16)
of the Act, In our opinion and to the best of cur Infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Parent Company toits directors during the yvearis in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
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(h}  With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explandations given to us:

I The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated financial statements, -
Reter Note No. 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

i The Group did not have any long-term confracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

il. There has been no delay in fransfering amounts, required to be transfarred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

. d)} TheMandagement has represented that, 1o the best of its knowledge and beliel, other than as disclosed in the notesto
the accounts, no funds (which are materal either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from bomowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent company or
In any other person or entity, including foreign entity (Cintermediaries”). with the understanding, whether recorded In
writing or ofherwise, tThat the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entifies
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent company (" Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultirmate Beneficlarias.

(b) The Management has represented. that, fo the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes fo
the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Parent
company from any person o entity, including toreign entity ("Funding Parfies™ ). with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in ofher persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ulimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantes, securty or the ke onbehalf of the Ultimate Benaficiaries.

(c) Based onthe audlt procedures that have been corgidered reasonable and appropriate in the circurnstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation under sub clause () and i) of Ruie 11(e) of
The Companies (Audlt and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under (@) and (b) above, containg any materal
misstatement. Refer note S0 () and (vl) to the consolidated financlal statements.

v. The dividend pald by the Parent Company durng the year s In accordaonce with Section 122 of the Act, As stated Innote
458 1o the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company has proposed final dividend for
the year 2024-25 which is subject to the approval of the members ot the ensuing annudl general meeting. The proposed
divicdend declared s in accordancea with section | 23 of the Act to the extent it aoplies to the declaration of dividend.

vi.  Based on our examindgtion, which included test checks, the Group has used accounting software for maintaining its account
books tar the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) tacility and the same has
operated throughaout the year for dll relevant tfransactions recorded In the software, Further, durng the course of our auditwe did
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being toampered with. The Group isin complionce with the preservation of
audit trall s per the statutory requirements for record retention.

vil.  With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companles (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order”/
"CARO™) issued by the Central Government in farms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report,
according to the information and explonations given to us, and based on the CARD reportsissued by us for the Parent Company
and by the ouditor of an associcte, included in the consclidated financlal statements of the Parent Company. to which
recorting under CARD is applicable. we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARD reports except
that obsarvations regarding a whistie-blower complaint have been madae In the report of the Parent Company under Clauss X

of CARO 2020
For LODHA & CO LLP
Charterad Accountants
Firm registration No. — 301051E/E300284
R. P. Baradiya
Mumibal Partner
24" May., 2025 Membarship Mo, 44101

UDIN: 25044101 BMIVNDS393
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“"AMMNEXURE B"
Reporl on the Intermnal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunctionwith our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 3 15t March.
2025, we have audited the intermal financial controls over financlal reporting of Narmada Gelatines Limited ( “the Parent Company ™).

Management's Responsibility for Intermnal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding company. aond an associate, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
assential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Hinancial Contrals Over Hnancial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effaectively for ensuring the ordery  and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence 1o the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errorg, the accuracy and completeneass of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of relioble financialinfarmation, as
recuired under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to exprass an opinion on the Company's internal financial confrols over financial reporting based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting (the
"muidance Note™) ksued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing, Issusd by ICAlI and deermed to be prescribed under Section
143010} of the Act, to the extent gpplicable to an qudit of internal financial confrols, both issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of Indla, Those Standards and the Guldance Note requlre that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit fo obfain reasonoable assurance about whether adequate internal financiol controls over financicl reporting wos
astablished and maintained and if such controls oparated effectively inall matarial respacts,

Our audit involves parforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financicl reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intermnal financial contfrols aver financial reporfing Included
obtaining anunderstanding of internal finoncial confrols over financial reporting . assassing the risk that g matenal weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivensass of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the cuditor’'s judgement, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatermeant of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. whather due to fraud or error.

We balleve that the audit evidence we have obtained i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our audit opinion on the
Company’sinternal financlal controls systerm over financialreporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's infernal financial control over financial reporting is o process designed to pravide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting Includes those policies and
proceduras that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, inreasonable detaill, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permif
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting prnciples. and that receipts and
axpendifures of the Company are being made only In accordance with authoarisatlons of management and directors of the
company; (3) provide regsonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorsed acgulsition, use, or disposifion
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financiol stetements; and (4) also provide reasonable assurance by
the internal auditars through thelr internal audit reports given to the arganisation from time ta time,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal fincancial contrels over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of confrols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of
any evaluafion of the infernal financial contrals over financial reporting to fulure periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
complionce with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinicn, the Parent Company. has broadly, in all material respects. an adeguate internal finoncial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were opearating sffectively as ot 21st March, 2025, based on the
Infernal confrol over financlal reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Infemal contral
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Infemal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of india,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Hrrn registration Mo, — 301051E/ E300284

R. P. Baradiya
Mumbai Partner
24" May, 2025 Membearship No. 44101

UDIN: 25044101 BMIVNDE3RS
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakh. unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Notes As at
41st March, 2025

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froperty, plant and equipment 3 3.297.67
Capital work-in-prograss 4 &478.2%9
Intangiltle assets o =
Financlal assets:
- Invastment In an associate & 4,197 .31
- Other Investrments -
- Loans 7 14.06
Crher financial assets 8 1467.18
Income tax assets (net) 49.52
Other non-current assets 9 63.74
Total Mon-Current Assets 8.467.77
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventores 10 4.657.37
Finoncial assets;
- [rade receivalbles 11 24A84,.X)
- Cash and cash equivalents 12 19.03
- Bark balances other than above 13 26.36
- Loans 14 45.98
- Other financial assets 15 &7 .4
Othar cumant assots 16 247 83
Total Current Assets 7.547.91
TOTAL ASSETS 16,015.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
E€UITY
Equity share capital 17a 605.03
Ofher equity 176 11.421.23
Total Equity 12,026.26
LIABILITIES
MNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 18 603.08
Provisions 15 1998
Deferred tax llabilities (net) 20 A0 .89
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,032.95
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Finrancial linbilitiss:
- BOmowings 21 &b, 12
- Trode payables 22
() Total cutstanding dues of micra and small entarprises @51.86
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other thaon F06.85
micre and small enferprises
- Other financial iabifities 23 142.77
Other cument liabilities 24 271,20
Provisions 25 128.26
Current tax liakbilities (net) 2631
Total Current Liabilities 2,956.37
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,015.68
Material Accounting Policies 2
Motes forming part of accounts 3-50
The gccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statemeants
As pet our report of even date
For LODHA & CO LLP For ond on behalf of the Boand
Chartered Accounfants
Firm Regn. Mo, — 301051k E300284 3. Annamalol Aghok K Kopur
hakrmrcn Managing Director
E. P. Barodiva DIN; 00001381 DN 26807
Partmeer
Membership No, 44101 Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patlar
Floce : Murmboi Chief Ananciol Officer Company Secretany

Date : 24th May, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupee lakh. unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Notes Year ended
3 1st March, 2025
INCOME
I Rewvanue from operations 26 18.8%2.07
i Other income 27 16525
I Total Income (I + II) 19,057.32
IV EXPENDITURE
Cost of matenals consumed 28 11.407.13
Changes in inventory of finished goods,
work-in-progress & stock-in-tfrade 29 (423.72)
Employee benefits expense 30 1.618.21
Finance costs 31 122,05
Cepreciation and ameordtisation expense 32 222 .23
Power & Fuel 245565
Other expenses 33 1,376.81
Total expenses (IV) M— Ii'Ir'B..".'.E
W Frofit betore exceptional tems and tax (I - V) 2278946
VI Exceptional tems -
VIl Share of Profit of an associate 82.00
VIl Profit before tax (V - VI) 2,360.96
¥  Tax Expense
(a) Current tax 20 580.00
(b) Defered fax (21.99)
X Profit after taxation (VIl - VIIl) ~1,802.94
¥l Other Comprehensive Income
Itarns thot will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeaosurements (Josses) of net defined benefit plans (56,19
Total Comprehensive Income (IX - X) m
Eaming per Equity Share of Foce Volua of T 10 each
Basic and diluted Earnings per share () T 29.80
Material Accounting Policies 2
MNaotes forming part of accounts 3-50
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated finoncial stofemenits
As per our report of even date
For LODHA & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firrn Regn, No. — 301051E/ E300284 5. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur
Chairmman Managing Director
R. P. Baradiya Dird: 00001381 DIN:001 26807
Partner
Memibarshio Mo, 44101 Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patkar

Chiaf Financial Officer Campany Sacratary
FPlace : Mumbal
Daote : 24th Moy, 2025
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31st March, 2025

Cash Flow from Operating Actlivities

Mat profit before fox 2.360.94
Adjustrnents for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22223
Interast inCome (115.18)
Profit on redamption / fair value of investments (A4%.47)
Finance costs 122.05
Share of profit of an associate (82.00)
Profit on disposal/discard of property, plant and eguipment (0.560)
Liakilities no longer reguired written back (Net) 22,306 119.3%
Operating profit before working capital changes i,dﬂm
Adjustments for :
Increase in frade and other receivables (293.68)
{Increase) /Decrease in inventories (6.94)
{Increasae)/Decrease in loans & other financial assets (67 )
Increqse in ofher current assets (92.52)
Decrease/{Increqse) in other non- current assets 10.02
Increase In frade payables 254.07
Decrease in shorf ferm provisions (25 84)
Increase/(Decreasa) in other current iabilities 5.37 (221.48)
Cash generated from operating activities 2258 87
Taxes paid (Net of Refund) (553.99)
MNet cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,704.88
Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
FPurchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP and capifal advances) (1.470.14)
Purchase of Currenf/MNon - Current investrmeants (4,115.31)
Sale of Mon - Current investments Q&0.48
Bank depaosits not considered as cash and cash equivalents (placed)/ refund 1.52%.03
interest received 205.35 (2.890.59)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2,890.5%)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Dividend pald including tax thereon (G05.46)
Froceeds from Long term borowings - Bank 603.08
MNet Proceeds from short term borrowings - Banks 64w, 12
Amount transfered to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
Unpaid dividend amaurit (1.6
Finance cost paid (122.05) 543.01
Net cash from [ (used in} financing activities (C) 543.01
Net Increase [ (Decreasa) in Cash and Cash Equivalenis (A) + (B) + (C) (642.71)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 6561.74
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 19.03
Parficulars As al

31st March, 2025
Cash on hand 10,03
Balance with Banks .00
TOTAL 19.03
Matera Accounting Policies 2
Motas forming part of occounts 3-50

The occompanying notes are an integral port of the conscidated fimoncial stoferments
As per our report of even date

For LODHA & CC LLP

Charterad Acoountants

Finm Regn, Mo, — 3010518/ EI00ZE4

R. P. Baradiya

Partre

hermbershic No, 44101
Fiace : Mumbaol

Date ; 24ih Moy, 2025

for and on behalf of the Boord

5. Annamalai
Chgirmgr

CxN: 00001381

Arun Jaiswal

Chied Financial Oificear

Ashok K Kapur
Maoraging Dirgsior
CHMQ0T 26607

Mahirma Patkar
Company Secratary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(All amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at
31st March 2025
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up &H04.94
Forfaited Shares 0.07
TOTAL 605.03
OTHER EQUITY —r
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Capital securities =eneral Retained Comprehensive
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Income

As at 31st March, 2024 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 7,532.82 (5.13) 10,289.44
Profit for the yvear - - - 1,802.94 - 1.802.94
Other Comprehansive Income for the year - - - (&6.19) (66, 19)
Dividend Paid - - - (604.94) 2 (604.96)
As at 31st March 2025 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 8,730.80 (71.32) 11,421.23
Material Accounting Policies 2
Motes forming part of accounts 3-50
The goccomparying nates are an Infegral part of the consalidated financkal staterments
A% pEF oUr report of sven doala

For and on behalf of the Board
For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firrm Regn. No, = 301051Ef E300284 5. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur

Cheirmman Managing Director
E. F. Baradiva CHM; 0001381 CHMGDO 26807
Partrer
Mambarship Mo, 44101 Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patkar

Chidet Financial Offlcer Compary Sacratany

Flace - Murmnbal
Daite : 24th May, 2025
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

m

(i)

CORPORAIE INFORMATION

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statfernents of Namnada Gelatines Limited (hereinafter refered to as ("the
Parent Company™) having CIN L2411 TMP196TPLCO18023 for the yeor ended March 31, 2025.The Parent Company is a public
comparny domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Parent
Company was set up in 1961 as Leiner Knit Gelatin Company Py, Ltd. The Parent Company was converted into a Public Company
ond registered as Shaw Leiner Limited in 1969, In the year 1979, the nome of the Parent Company was changed to Shaw Wallace
Selatines Limited, and in the yvear 2002, the Parent Company was renamed as Narmada Gelatines Limited. The Parent Company 5
registerad in Jabolpur (Modhyao Prodesh) under Registration number L2471 TMP1961PLCO14023. The Registered office of the Parent
Company is at 28, CARAVS, 15 Civil Lines, Jabalpur (M.P.). The Company is engaged in the manufacture and sale of Ossein and
Gelatine and has its manufacturing facility located of Jabalpur (M.P.)

The Parent Company has the following Associate

Name of the Proportion of Mature of Business Date of acquisition
Company Ownership Interest
India Gelatine and 14,14% Manufacture and sale of 056-12-2024
Chemicals Limited Ossein ond Gelating

Harainafter Parent Company and an associate together will be referred as " Group™.

This being the first year of consolidated finoncial stotements in view of this coquisition, disclosure for the previous year is not
applicable

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Complicnce

The financial statements hoave been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounfing Standards (hereinafter refarred to Qs the
Ind A5 os nofified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Stondaords) Amendments Rules 2016 prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
CAccounts) Rules, 2014,

Recent accounting pronouncements

Miristry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing sfandards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules os issued from time to fime. On August 12, 2024 and September 09, 2024, MCA issued the Companies
fIndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024 ond Companiss (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, 2024 introducing following changes:

Q)  Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts: Ind AS 117: Insurance Confracts was infroduced and Ind AS 104: Insurance Confracts was
withdrawn. This was gccompanied with consaguant amendments in othar standards.

B) Ind AS 116 — Leases: The amandments clarify accounting treatment for a seller-lessee involved in sale and leaseback
fransactions and introduced some related lllustrative examples.

The above standard are sffective from April 01,2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its
evaluaton has determined that it does not have any significant impact in s financial statermnents.

The Board of Directors approved the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 ond authorised forissue on 24ih May.,
2025,

Basis of preparation of consolidated linancial statements

These Consolidated finonciol statemants hove been prepored in cccordance with the Indion Accounting Stondards thereinafter
refarred to as the "Ind AS") as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Saction 133 of the Companias Act, 2013 read with
Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accountfing stondards) Rules, 2015 as amended fromtirme fo fime

The financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with the Indian Generdlly Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) on the accrual basis of accounting and historical cost convention except for the certain material itermns that have bean
measured at falr value as reguired by the relevant Ind AS and explained in the ensuing policies below.

The Consolldated financlal statements are presented In Indlan rupees (INR ) which s functional curency and all values are rounded
tothe nearest crone, except otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates & Judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial staternents Is in conformity with the Ind AS, requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilifies (ncluding contingent llablities) and the
reported income and expenses during the year The Manogement believes that the estimates used in preparation of the
consolicdated financlal statements are prudent and reasonable. Future actual results could differ due 1o these estimates and the
differences between the actudl results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known [ materialise

Basis of consolidation
The consolidatad financial statements comprise the financial staterments of the Parent Company and an associate as at 3 1st March

2025, Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other eventsin
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(i)

()

vi)

similar circurmstances, F o member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted In the consclidated financial
statements for lke framnsactions and events In similar cireumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group's financial
staterments in preparng the consolidated financial statements 1o ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

Freghold land is camied ot historical cost, All other items of property, plant and eguipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impadirment losses, if any. Costs include freight, import dutles, non-refundable purchase taxes and other expenseas
directly attibutable to the acguisition of the asset, Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount orrecognised as g
separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benelits assecioled with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the iterm can be measured relicbly. The carmying amount of any component accounted for as o separafe asset i3
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
reporting period inwhich they are incurred.

Intangible assets: Infangible assets are stated at cost of acguisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment, If any Losses
arising from the retirernent of, and gains or losses ansing from disposal of fixed assets which are carmed ar cost orrevalued amount are
recognizedin the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation / Amortisation

Cepreciation s provided on the straight-line method applying the useful lives as prescriced in part C of Schedule | o the Companies
Act. 2013 except for plant and equipment, whereln useful life is determined boased on internal technical assessment. The range of
estimaled useful lives of Properly, Plant & Equipment’s are as under:

Calegory Useful Life

Bulidings {(including roads) 5- 60 Yeors

Flant & Equipment 8- 25 Years

Elactrical installations 10Yaars

Furniture & Fixture 10 ¥ears

Offlce Equipment 3-5Years

Viehicles BYears

The management believes that the useful life as given dbove the best represent the period over which the management expects fo
use thesa assets, |he Group reviews the useful lives and residual value at each reporting date.,

Cepreciation on assets added/sold or discarded during the vear is being provided on pro-rata basis up to the date on which such
assets are added,/sold or discarded.

Assets costing up to R5.5,000 ecch are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

zains/Losses on disposals/de-recognition of property, plant and equipmeant are determined by comparing proceeds with camying
amount and thesa are recognized in statemant of profit & Loss.

Intangible assets are amortised over thelr estimated useful economic life under Stralght Line method. Computer software cost s
amortised over a period of five years.

Inventories

Inventories (ncludes Row Material, Work-in-Progress, Finished goods, Stores & spares, Consumables, Packing Materials) are valued of
cost or net realisable value, whichaver islower. Net realisable value is the estimated seling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of Raw Materlal, Semi-finished and
Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress s determined on weighted average basis and comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal
course of business in bringing inventaries to their present location including appropriate cverheoads apportioned on a reasonable
and consistent basis. Obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks are identified at the time of physical verification of stocks and
where necessary, provision is rade for those inventories. Adequate allowance is made for obsolete and siow moving items.

Revenue Recognition

The Group recognizes revenue, whenever confrol over distinct goods or senvices Is fransferred to the customer e, when the
customer iz able to direct The use of the fransferred goods or services ond obtains substantialy all of the remaining benefifts. provided
a contract with enforceabls rights and cbligations exists and amongst others collectability of consideration is probable taking into
account customer’s creditworthiness.

Revenue is the fransaction price the Group expeacts fo be entitled 1o. In determining the fransaction price, the Group considers
affects of varable consideration. the existance of significant financing contracts. noncash consideration and consideration
porable to the customer, if any.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control of the goods passes to the buyer either at the time of dispatch or
delivery or when the risk of lass transfers. Export sales are recognized based on the terms of the sale which is when substantial risks and
rewards of ownership are passed to the customers.

Revanue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of charges collected from customens like transport, packing etc, Provision s
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()]

made for returns when appropriate, Revenue s measured af the falr value of consideration recelved or receivable and s net of price
discounts, allowance forvolume retbbates and sinnliar iterns.

Clairms / Refunds not ascentainable with reasonable cermalnty are accountad for, on final settlement and are recognized as revenue
on certdinty of receipt on prudent basis,

Revenue recognition from sale of " Duty Enfitlerment Passtbrook License of Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) s made on
sole of the license affer receipt of the sarme from the office of the Director Generdl of Foreign Trade.

Income from Duty Drawbock is recognised on receipt basis

Dividend
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Groug and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interestincome

Interast income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of Income can be medsured reliably, Interest income i accried on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
ond at the effective inferest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
axpactedlife of the financial asset to that asset s net carrying amount oninitial recognition,

Income from Investment
Income from Investmeants (other than investments in shares of companies and Mutual Funds) Is cccounted on accrual basis.

Cividend income an invesirments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. Inferest income s recognized on
time proportionate basis taking info account the amounts invested and the rate of interest. For all financial instruments measured ot
omorfised cost, inferest income Isrecorded using the Effective Interest rate method fo the net canying amount of the financlal assets

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Gains and losses, if
any, on setflement or reinstatement of year end closing balances by applying the clasing rates in respect of monetary assets and
mcnetary liabilities not covered by the forsard confracts are recognized in the starement of profit and loss.

MNon-monetary fems denominated in foreign currency are statred at the rate prevailing on the date of the fransaction.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward confract entered into fo hedge the existing asset / liability, is
cmortized as expanse of income over the lite of the contract. Exchange differences on such contract are recognized in the
staterment of profit and loss in the reporting perod inwhich the exchange rates change. Any profit orloss arising out of cancellation or
renewagl of such contract are recognized Qs income or axpansa in the reporting period. Forward exchange contracts outstanding
as af the year end on account of firm commitment / highly probable forecast transaction are marked to market and the losses, If
any, are recognized in the staterment of profit and [oss and gains are ignored.

Employee Benefits

The Group has the following post-employment bansfit plans:

I Defined benefit plans such as gratuity;

i. Defined contribution plans such as Frovident fund & Superannuation fund; and
li. Otheremployee beneafits,

Defined benefit plan:
Veluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses, if any, are fully charged off in the year of payment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet In respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of defined benefit
cbligations at the end of the reporting perlod less fair value of plan assetfs. The defined benefit obligation s calculaoted annually By
ccluaries through actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the staterment of profit and loss:

Q. Service costs comprising current sarvice costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements:
and

.  Netinterest expense orincome

The nat inferest cost is colculated by applying the discount rate to the net balonce of the defined benafit chiligation and fair valua of
plan assets. This cost is includedin employes benafit expense inthe statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement comprising:

a. Re-mecsurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses

b. Returnon plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset celling

c. Re-medsurernent arsing because of change in effect of asset celling

are recognised in the period In which they occur directly in Other Comprehensive Income, Re-measurements are not reciassified fo
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Ind AS 19, Employees benefits requires the exercise of judgment in relation to varous assumptions including future pay rises, inflation
ond discount rates and employee and pensioner demogrophics. The Group determines the assurmptions in conjunclion with its
actuaries, and believes these assumptions o be in line with best practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a
significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive iIncome and balance sheet, There may
be also infer-dependaency betweean some of the assumptions.

Defined contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, the Group pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal
obligation to poy additicnal sums, Defined contribution plans comprise of contributions to provident fund, Insurance and Employees’
Pension Scheme. The Grpup’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised as expenses during the periodinwhich the
employees perfarm the services that the payment covers.

Other employee beneflits

a. Compensated absences which aré not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the pericd in which the
employes renders the reloted services are recognised as a liakdlity ot The present value of the obligation ds at the baloncea sheet
date determined based on anactuarial valuation.

b.  Undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employeeas ara recognised during the period when the employee renders the related services.

c. Expensesincurmed towards voluntary retirement scheme are charged fo the statement of profit and loss as and wihan incurrad.
d. Other benefits comprising of discretionary long service awards are recognized as and when determined.

Current and Deferred tax

Income tax comprises current and defarad tax, Income tax expensea is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income, Current fax is bosed on taxable profit for the
vear. Taxable profit s different from accounting profit due to femporary differences betweaen accounting and tax freatrments. and
due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible, Tax provisions are included in current liabilities, Interest and penalties on tax
liatilities are provided for In The Tax charge. The Group offsets, the current tax assets and liabiliities (on a year on year bosis) where it
has a legally enforceable right and whera it intends to settle such assets and liakilifies on o net basis or 1o redlise the assets and
liatsilities on net basis. Defered income fax s recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assefs and
iatilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporarny differences arlsing between the tax base of assets and liabllities ond
their carrying amount in financial statements, Deferred income fax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utiized. Defarred tox assets are not recognised whera it s more likely than not that the assaets will not be realised in
the future, The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewad at each repofing date and reduced to the axtent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaliable to allow dll or part of the deferred Income fax asset to be utiized
Daferad income tax assafs and liabilifies are measured af the fax rates that are expected o apply in the period when thea asset is
redlized or the lability & settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting
date. Defered tax items are recognised in correlation fo the underlyving fransaction either in Other comprehensive income or directly

in equity,

Impairment of Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial assef or a group of non-
financial assafs are impaired. If any such indication axists, the Eroup astimates the amount of impairmeant loss. For the purpose of
assessing impalrment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generdtes cash Inflows frorm confinuing use that are kargely
Independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assats s considered as a cash generating unif, if any such indication
axists, on aestimote of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit is made. Animpairment loss is caleulated
as the difference between an asset’s canylng amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected
in an allowance account. When the sroup considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subseguently decregses and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurming after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss Is reversed through profit or
s,

Financial Instruments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instruments. Financlal assets
other than frade receivables are initially recognised af fair value plus transaction costs for all finoncial assets not caried at fair value
through profit or loss, Financial assets caried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognisad at fair value, and frarsaction
costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Subseguent measurement
Finaoncial assetfs, other than eguity instruments, are subseguently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basls of:

a. theentity's business modal for managing the financial assets; and
b. thecontractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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(i Measured at amortised cost:

A financial asset is meacasured at amortised cost, if it is hald under the hold to collect businass modeal i.e. hald with an objective of
hiolding the assets 1o collect confractual cash flows and the contractudl cash flows are solely payments of princlpal and interast on
the principal outstanding. Amortised cost s calculated using the effective Interest rate (B method oy faking into account any
discount or pramiurm on acquisition and feses or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amarisation is included in interast
Income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arsing from Impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. On
derecogniticn, gain of loss, if any, B recognised o statement of profit and loss.

(i) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

A financial asset s measured at BYOCL, if It 15 held under the hold 1o collect and sell business model L.e. held with an objective fo
collect confractual cash flows and seling such financial asset and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding. It is subsequently measurad at fair value with fair value movements recognised in the OCI,
except for interest income which recognised using effective interest rote method. The losses arsing from impairment are recognised
in the statement of profit and |oss, On derecognition. cumulative gain or loss previoushy recognised in the OC| s reclassified from the
eality to statement of profit and loss.

(i) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Investment in financial asset other than equity instrument, not measured ot either amortised cost or VOC! s measured ot FVTPL, Such
financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any,
recognised inthe statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments:
Allirvastments in eguity instrurments, if any classified under financial assets are subsequently measured at fair valus,

The Group recogniseas a loss allowance for Expeacted Credif Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are medasured at amortised cost and
ot FVOCH The credit loss s difference between all confractual cosh flows that are due 1o an entity in accordance with the confract
and all the cash flows that the enfity expects to receive {i.e. all cash shortfalls). discountad ot the crigingl effective interest rate. This is
ossessad on anindividual ar collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable inciuding that which is forward-looking.

The Company’s trade recelvables or confract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and
loss clliowance on trade receivables s measured at anamount equal to life fime expected losses e, expected cash shortfall, baing
simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach. the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
the lifetime Bipected Credlt Losses at each reporting date rght from its Inflal recognition, The Group uses o provision matrl fo
determing impairment loss allowance on The porffolio of frode receivables,

The provision matrix is based onits historically obsarved default rates over the expected life of the frade receivable and is adjusted for
forward looking astimates. At every reporting date. the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Group recognisas 12 month expected credif losses for all criginoted or ocguired
financial assets it of the reporting date the cradit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition,
The expected credif losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantty
since its initicl recognition. If, in a subsequeant period, credit quality of the instrurment improves such that there is no longer significant
increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months
Expected Credif Losses.,

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in statement of profit and loss. For equity insfruments and fincncial cssetfs
rmeasured at FVTPL, there is no requirereant forimpairment testing.

De-recognifion

The Group derecognises o financial asset when the contractual rights fo the cash flows from the financlal asset expire, or it fransfers
nights to receive cash flows from an asset. it evaluates if and fo what extent it has refained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it
hicis naither transtaered nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transterred control of the asset, the Group
confinues to recognise the fransferred asset to the extent of the Company s continuing Invobyement,

In that case, the Group clso recognisas an associoted Bobility, The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured on o
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financlal Liabllities
Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial iabilifies are recegnised when the Group becomes a parfy fo the confractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
labkilities are inifially recognized at fair value net of fransaction costs for all financial labilities not carned at fair value through profit or
leaes,

The Company’s financial liabilifiss includes frade and other payables. loans and bomrowings iIncluding bank overdraffs and
demative Insruments.
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{aciii)

(xiv)

aubsequent medasurement

Financial liabilities megsured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR methad. Financial iabilities cared ot fair
value through profit of [oss are meaasured ot falr value with all changes In falr value recognised In the staterment of profit and loss.
Loans & Borrowings

Afterinitial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amor tised cost using EIR method. Gains
ond losses are recognized in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well os through EIR amortization process.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts lssued by the Group are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the
holder for a koss it incurs because the specified debtors fails fo make payment when dus in accordance with the term of a delbt
instrument, Financial guarantes confracts are recognized inifially as a igbility ot fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the lssuance of the guarantes,

Subsequentty, the llability B measured af The higher of the amaount of loss allowonce determined os per impalrment requirements of
Ind AS 10% and the amount recognized less cumulative adjustmeants,

Da-recognition

A financial lability s de-recognised when the obligation under the llability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liabilty s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an existing liobility are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the orginal liakility and the recognition
of anew liability, The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the staternent of profit and loss.

Derivative financial instruments & hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments. such as forward foreign exchangea contracts to hedge its forelgn currency risks. Such
derivalive financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the dale on which a denvative contract is entered inlo and
are subsequantly remeqsurad af fairvalue, with changes in fair value recognised in staterment of profit and loss.

Darivatives are camied os finoncial ossets when the fair value is positive and as financial liobilities when the fair volue is negative. The
Group designates thair derdvatives as hadges of foreign currency risk assaciated with the cash flows of highly probable forecast
tfransactions and variable Interest rate risks associated with the bomrowings.

Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments. such as, denvafives at fair value at each balance sheet date, Fair valug s the price that
would be recelved fo sell an asset or pald 1o fransfer a liability in an ordery tronsoction between market porficipants at the
measuramant date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the
iakility takes place aither;

e [Inthe principal market for the asset orliability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or llakility The principal or fhe most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fairvalue of an asset of a liability is measured using the assumptions that market paricipants would use when pricing the asset or
latliity, cssuming that market participants act In theireconomic best Interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes info account a market participant’'s abllity 1o generate economic benefits
by using tha asset in its highest and bast use or by salling it to another market parficipant that weould use the asset inits highest and bast
use,

The Group uses valuation technigques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are avallable fo
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obser/able inputs and minimising the use of unobservalzle Inputs.

The Group usas the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the falr value of financial insfrurments by valuatfion technique:
Lewvel 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Other techniques forwhich allinputs which have asignificant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
orindirectly

Level 3: Technigues which use inpuls thal have a significant effec! on the recorded tair value that are not based on observable
market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis, the Group determines whether fransfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-ossessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fairvalue measurerment as a whole) at the end of each reporting perlod.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assels and llabilfies on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or llability and the level of the fair value hlerarchy as explained above,

Provision and Contingent Liabilities
A provision Is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as o result of past events and It 15 probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic beneafits will be required o settle the obligation in respect of which o relicble estimote con be
made, Thase ara reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimatas,
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Confingent Liabllities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes, Contingent Assets are netther recognised nor disclosed in the
financial staternents.

Lecses

As q Lessee:

Ihe Sroup assesses whether a contfract contains a lease. at incepiion of a contract. A confract is. or confains. a lease if the contract
conveys the right o control the use of anidentified asset for a period of Time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a confract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

(y  the contractinvolvaes the use of an identified asset:

(n  the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the pernod of the lease; and
(i}  the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU™) and a comesponding lease licbility for
cll lease arrangements in which it is o lessee, except for leases with a term of twealve months or lass (short-term leases) and low value
leases, For these short-term and low valua leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expensa on a straighit-
ine basls over the term of the leqse.

The right-of-use assets are inifially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
paymeants made at or prior to the commeancement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any legse incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and
laqse liabilties includes these cptions when it is recsonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use gssets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-ine basis over the sharfer of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their camying amounts may not be recoverable, For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (1.e.
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined
for the Cosh Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lagse lickility is inificlly measured ot amortized cost af the present value of the future lecse payments. The ieqse payments ane
discounted using the intarest rate implicit in the lease o if not readily determinale, wsing the incrameantal borrowing rates in the
country of domiclie of these lecses. Lease liabilitles are remeasured with a comesponding adjustment to the related right of use asset
if the Group changeas its cssassmant if whather it will exercise an axtension or g termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balonce Sheet and lease payments have been classified Qs
findncing cash flows.

Asalessor;

Lease income from operating leasss where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on g straight-line basis over the lease term
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation fo compensate for the expected inflationary cost
increases. The respectve leqased gssets ars incliuded inthe balance sheet based on thelr nature.

Bosed on Company 's assessment. the contracis enfered into by the Group do not confain a leose s specified above or they are
erther short term or low value leases, Tharefore, those have been accounted as per other applicable accounting standards,

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in o manner conslstent with the internal reporting provided to Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM}.

The Group has identified its Managing Director as CODM who is responsibie for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments and makeas strategic decisions.

{(xvii) Earnings per share

Bosic eamings per share are calculgted by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atfributable to equity share holders {after
deducting preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period aftributable to eguity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the pariod are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

(xvii)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and chegueas in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-terrm
hlghly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changeas Iin value where origingl maturlty s three months orless,

Cash flows are reported using the indireact method wheraby the profit befora tox & adjusied for tha effect of the transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of Income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are
segregared.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{xix) Borrowing Cosis
General and specific borowing costs that are directly atiributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are capltallzed as a part of cost of that asset, durlng the perloed fill all the activifies necessary to prepare the gualifying assets for Its
intended use or sale are complete. Quclifying assets are assets that neceassarily toke a substanticl period of time to get ready for thair

intendad use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the pericd in which they are incurred.

(xx) Exceptlionalltems
When an Item of income or expense within profit or loss from ordinary activity is of such size, nature or incldence that their disclosure is

relevant to explain the performance of the Group for the year, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed as exceptional items.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(AN omounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold Buildings Plont&  Furniture Vehicle  Office  Electrical Total
Land edquipment & Fixfuras adquipment Installations
Balance as at 31st March 2024 116,92 359.28 287661 3.50 41.35 1598 38.51 3,452.14
Additions - - 805.25 0.35 1.53 34.13 841.26
Deductions/ Adjustrment 68.23 &58.23
Bolance as of 315t March 2025 116.92 359.28 361363 3.85 41.35 17.51 7264 422518
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31st March 2024 - 104.21 417.13 1.99 7.02 2.13 20.66 760.10
Additions - 17.37 195,21 0.30 3.62 2.50 3.24 222.24
Deductions/Adjustment - - 54.84 - - - - 54.84
Balance as at 31st March 2025 - 121.58 757.50 2.29 10.64 11.63 23.90 927.50°
Net m::rrw_.ring amount as at 31st March, 2025 116.92 237.70 2,856.13 1.54 on 587 48.74 3,297.67
Refer Mofte 18 for the detalls in respect of cerfain property, plant and equipment hypothecated/mortgaged as security for
borowings.
Particulars As at
31st March 2025

4. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Plant and eqguipment under installation® 478,29
Building under construction -

TOTAL 678.29

"Refer Note 18 for the details In respect of certain property, plant and equipment hypothecated/mortgaged as security for
Domowings.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AGEING SCHEDULE
Parficulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
As at 31st March 2025

Frojects inprogress 678.29 - - - 67829
Projects femporarily suspendsed - . . . .

Total 678.29 - - - 678.29

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Software TOTAL
Gross Block
Balance as af 1st April 2023 2.92 2.92
Additions -
Dreductions / Adlustments - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 2.92 2.92
Additions - -
Deaductions / Adjustments - -
Balance as of 31st March 2025 2.92 2.92
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as af 1st April 2023 279 2.7%
Armortisation charge for the yeaar 0.13 0.13
Deductions / Adjustments - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31st March, 2024 292 292
Armortisafion charge for the vear -
Deductions / Adjustments -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31st March, 2025 292 292
MNet carrying amount as at 31st March, 2024 - -
MNet carrying amount as at 31st March, 2025 = =
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

& INVESTMENTS - NON - CURRENT
Invastments in an associate (Eauity Shares)

Particulars Face Value Per Share Mo. of Share Total Value
Equity Shares of India Gelatine and Chemicals Ltd 10,00 1,003,000 411531
ahare of profit of an associate 82.00
Tetal 4,197.31

Investment in an associate (Refer Note 40)

Particulars As at
J1st March 2025

7 LOANS
Unsecured, considerad good
Advance to employess 14.04
TOTAL 14,06

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considerad good
security Deposits 167.18

TOTAL 167.18

9 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances 26,72
Prepaid Expenses 7.02
TOTAL 63.74

10 INVENTORIES

Raw mataricls B856.24
Work-in-progress 1.477.61
Finished goods 1.895.74
Stores & Spares 427.78
TOTAL 4,657.37

Refer Nate 2(v)
Mote: No inventories written down during the year and in the previous year

11  TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 2 A84 20
Trade Receivables which have significant

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 2.81
Less: Alowaonces for expected cradit 1oss (280
TOTAL 2,484.20

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 @



_{# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE:

Outstanding for following periods from due dote of payment

Particulars Mot Due Lessthan & months 1-2 2-3  More than Total
&dmonths -1 year years years 3 years
As at 31st March'2025
V) Undisputed Trade recelvables - considered good  1.910.17 57200 2.02 - . 281 2487.01
i Undisputed Trade Receivabiles —
which have significant increase in credit Risk - - - - - - -
i Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - (2.81) (2.481)

(" Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - - -
V) Disputed Trode Recelvables —
which have significant increase in credit Risk = - - - B - -

i) Disputed Trade Recelvables - credit Impaired - - - - & - 2

Total 1,910.17 572.00 2.03 - - - 2484.20
Particulars As at
Jst March 2025
12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balance in curent accounts Q.00
Cash on hand 10,03
TOTAL 19.03
13 BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN ABOVE
In Dividend accounts 22.30
I Deposits accounts 4.06
TOTAL 26 36
14 LOANS
Unsecured, considered good
Loon to employees 4558
TOTAL 4598

15 QTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good

Securty deposits 4.48
Cther Receivable b2 92
intarast accruad on fixed deposits 0.04
TOTAL &67.44

16 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good

Advances to suppliers 223.22
Prepaid 22.69
Bolances with government authorifies 1.62
TOTAL _ 24753
17a EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital:

1,00,00,000 equity shores of ¥ 10 each 1.,000.00
1.,00,00.000 9% cumulative redesmable preference sharas of 10 each. 1,000.00
TOTAL 2,000.00
Issuad, Subscribed and Paid up

60,49 587 equity shares of 10 each, fully paid 604.96
Forfeited shares 0.07
TOTAL 605.03
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ﬁ"ﬁr NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding & the amount of share capital at the beginning and at the end of the reporting

period:

2024-25
Particulars MNo. of shares Amount
Equity shares af the beginning of the year 6,049,587 604,84

Add : Shares issued during the year
Less : Sharas bought back during the year = =

Equity shares outstanding at the end of year 6,049 587 604.96

(i) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Pgrent Company has cnly one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled ta ane vote pershare, The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors is subject fo the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual Genercl Meeting. In the event of the liquidation of
the Company the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to the
number of the shares held.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding /asscciate company:

Particulars No. of shares Amount
Pionheer Jellice India Private Umited 2423321 242,33
Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Limited 2113870 21139
Total 4 537,191 453.72
(iv) Equity shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of equity shares held is as given below:
Particulars No. of shares %o
Pioneer Jelice India Private Limited 2423321 40.06
Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Limited 2,113,870 34.94
Total 4 537,191 75.00

(v) Delails shareholding of promoter and % changes in the holdings during the year:

Particulars Mo. of shares %a

Pioneer Jellice India Private Limited 2.823,321 40.05

Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Limited 2,113,870 24,54

Total 4,537,171 75.00
Mote

“0On September 09, 2024, Pioneer Jellice India Private Limited, one of the Promoters of Narmada Gelatines Limited (the
‘Company’), sold 1,60,293 (One Lakh Sty Thousand Two Hundred and Ninety Eight) equity shares of the Company having a
face value of " 10 each (representing 2.65% of the total ssued and paid-up equity share capital of the Company). through an
Offer for Sale (OFS) conducted via the designated window of BSE Limited. The sale was undertaken in accordance with SEEI
circular no. SEBHO/MRD/MRD-PoD-3/P/CIR/2023/10 dated January 10, 2023 on the ‘Comprehensive Framework on Offer for
Sale {OFS) of Shares through Stock Exchange Mechaniem’'. Conseguent to the 5aid sale, the shareholding of the Promoter and
Promoter Group hasreduced from 77.65% to 75.00% ofthe paid-up equity share capitalofthe Company.®
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(vi) Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the last five years

During the last five finoncial years, the Parent Company has not allotted any bonus shares,
(vil) Issua of sharas for considaration othar than cash

During the preceding five finoncial years, the Parent Company has not issued any share for consideration other than cash
{viii} Dividend paid and proposed Refer Note 45(c )

176 OTHER EQUITY

Parliculars Reserves and Surplus Cther Total
Comprehensive
Income
Capital Securities General Retained Re-measurement
Reserve Fremium Reserve Eamings  of the defined
benefil plans

As at 31st March, 2024 71.51 425.37 2,329.60 7.532.82 (5.13) 10,289.44
Profit for the yeor - - - 1.720.94 - 1.720.94
Other Comprehnensive Income for the vear - - - - (56,19 (66,19
Dividend paid - - - (604.96) - (604.96)
As at 31st March, 2025 7.51 42537 2,329.60 8,5648.80 (71.32) 11,339.23

Purpose of the Reserves:

Securities Premium: Securities premium is credited when shares are Bsued at premium. This will be utiised In accordance with the
pravisions of thie Act.

General Reserve: The Genaral reserve s created by woy of fransfer of profits from retained earnings for appropration purposes. This
resenve is utilised in accordonce with the provisions of the Act.

Retained Earnings: Retained aarnings are the profits that the Company has eamed fill date, less any fransfers 1o general resanve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholdars,

Particulars Asat
31st March, 2025

18 BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT

From d Bank

Term Loon® 798.08
Less: Cument Maturities of Long term bomowings (195,000
TOTAL &603.08
*Term loan

- Term loan are secured by d first ranking par-passu  hypothecation/ Exclusive charge on the assets credated out of the term loan.
Repayable in 40 equal monthly instalments (refer below), Rate of Infererst -8.20% p.a {previous yearnil}'

Repayment Schedule
Particulars Asat
31st March, 2025

From Banks:

|2 Years 195.00

2-3 Years 195.00

J-4 Years 195.00

4-5 Years 171.86

5-6 Years 41.16

Total outstanding Borrowing 798.02
1% PROVISIONS (NOM-CURRENT)

Fension 19,98

TOTAL 19.98

20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Defemed Tox Liobilities (Net) A0 89

TOTAL 409.89
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i)

21

22

(7 The mojor components of Income tax expense are as follows:

Parficulars Year ended
J1st March, 2025
Current income tax charge 580.00
Deferred tax
Relating to orginaflon and reversal of temporary differences (21.9%
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit or loss 558.01
Reconciliation
Accounting profit! (loss) betore income tax 236096
Enocted tox rate in Indio 25.17%
Computed tax expense 594,25
Differences due to
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (16.63)
Oifers 1.03
(15.60)
Current Income Tax expenses recognised in Profit or Loss 578.65
Deferred tax relates to following:
Recognised in Balance Sheet Recognised in Profit or Loss
Particulars As at Year ended
J1st March 2025 31st March 2025
Acceleraled depraeciation for tax purpose {(418.60} (6.5%)
Expenses allowalble on payment basis 8./2 (0. 19
Fair valuation of financial instruments - (15.22)
Deferad tax asset / (iability) (40%.88)
Net (income)/ expense (21.99)
Particulars As at
J1st March 2025

BORROWINGS
From Banks

Bank Overdraft (Refer Note below) 1.84

Cash Credit Facility (Refer Note below) 47226

Current Maoturities of Long term borrowings 195,00

669,12

Bank Overdraft
The overdraft facility Is secured against bank deposits
Cash Credil

-Cash Credit 3472.26 Lakhs {previous year nil), Primary Security-Exclusive charge on entire current assets (present and future).
secondary Collateral- Nil - 12 months, repayable lumpsum on demand. Rate of Inferarst-8. 1 5%p.a (previous year nil).'

TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterporises @h1.86
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 766,85
micro and small enterprises

TOTAL 1,718.71

The Management has identified entferprises which have provided goods and services to the Group and which qualify under the
definition of micro, small and medium enferprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2004.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts poyable 1o such enterprises has been made in the fincncial statements based
on information received and available with the Group. which is relied upon by the auditors. Further in the view of the management,
the impact of interest, if any, that may be payatle in accordancs with the provisions of the Act is not expecrad to be matenial.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
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Particulars As at
Jst March 2025

i The principal amount outstanding Qs ar tThe year end -
i PFrincipal amount due and remaining unpald -
i} Inferest due on (i) above and the unpaid interas! -
Vi Inferest paid on all delayed payments under the MSMED Act, -
vy  Poyment made beyond the appoinfed daoy duning the year -
Vi) Interest due and payable for the perlod of delay other than (v) above -
vil)  Interest accrued and remaining unpaid -

viiid  Armount of furthear interast remoining due ond payable
in succeading years -

* It includes amount payable in the nature of capital craditors amounting to 3.73 Lakhs (pravious year nil)

Trade payables ageing schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due daote of payment

Particulars Mot Due Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years vears 3 years

As at 31st March'2025

}] Unbilled - - - - - -

1}y  Micro and small enterprises - @h1.86 - - - 0h1.86

iy Creditors other than micro and small enterprises = 757.80 3.80 4.5% 0.65 75685
vy Dispured cues - Micre and small enterpnses - . - - i :
v)  Disputed dues other than micro and small enterprises - - - - - -

Total . 1,709.66 3.80 4.59 0.66 1.718.71
23  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Securty deposits 8.10
Unpaid dividend* 22.30
Advances from customers 112,37
TOTAL 142.77
"11.85.094 (PY- NIL) Transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund undear Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 as al yeaar
end.
24 OTHER CURRENTLIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable 271.20
TOTAL 271.20
25  PROVISIONS
Gratuity 116.67
Compensated absences 1.41
Pension 10.18
TOTAL 128.26
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Particulars Year ended
J1st March 2025

26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Manufactured products (net of rebates and discounts)

Gelatine 14,027 83
DCP - animal feed grade 480926
Bone meal products 24.94
Other Operating Income
Sale of scrap/Coal ash 12,22
Export incentives and duty drawback 0.1
Liakilities no longer required written back (Net) 10,93
Miscalloneous income 4,73
MNET SALES 18,892.07

27 OTHER INCOME
Interast income

From banks Q8.01

From others 1717 11518
Change in fair valuation of current / non-cumanit
Invastmeants in rmutual funds A9.47
Profit on disposal / discard of property,
plant and eguiprment (Nef) 0.60
TOTAL 165.25

28 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Row Materlals:
Cpening Stock 1,116.74
Add : Purchases 11.146.63
Less : Closing Stock B856.24
Raw materials consumed 11,407.13

29 CHANGE IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Cpening Stocks
Finished Goods 1.433.16
Work-in-progress | 51647 294963
Closing Stocks
Finished Goods 1.8G5.74
Work-in-progress 1477461 337235
Net {Increase) / Decrease (423.72)
30 EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and wages 1.360.72
Contribution to provident and other funcds 204,06
Staff welfare expenses 53,43
TOTAL 1,618.21
31  FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense on borowings 104,79
Other borowing costs 16.26
TOTAL 122.05
32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Depreciation & Amortisation expense 222.23
TOTAL 22223
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Particulars Year ended
J1st March 2025

33  OTHER EXPENSE

Consumption of stores and spare parts 126.85
Rates and taxes (other than taxes on income) 10.08
Effluent expensas 2976
Ground water abstraction charges 25.92
Insurance 2644
Repairs and mainfenance:

- Buillding Ul

- Plant and equipment &08 .09

- Dther Repairs 13.77 621.97
Legal and professional charges 73.57
Auditors” remuneration ("Refer nole below) &.17
Freight and delivery charges 118.65
Commission to seling agents 10.05
Rant 15.86
Travelling 16.15
Advertisement 11.468
Research and Development expeansas 13.95
sundry oalonces written off 299
Directors’ Fee B.66
Forelgn exchange |oss N
Corporate social responsibiity expendifure 34.11
Miscelloneous expenses 22285
TOTAL _1,376.81

Auditors’ Remuneration”®

statutory audit fees (including limited review fees) 4.00
Tax Audit 1.00
Other cerlification lees 0.07
Reimbursement of out of pocket expeanses 1.10
TOTAL 6.17

34 DISCLOSURE PURSUANTTOIND AS - 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"
) Gratuity: In occordaonce with the gpplicable laws. the Group provides for gratulty, a defined beneafit refirement plan ('The Gratuity
Plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum payment fo vested employees on retirement (subject to
cormpletion of five yvears of continuous employvment), daath. incapacitation or termination of employment that are based on last
drawn salary and fenure of employrent. Liabilities with regard to the Sratuity Flan are determined by actuanal valuation on the
reporting date and the Company makes annual contribution to the gratuity fund administerad by Life Insurance Corporation of India
under Group Gratuity Scheme.
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The disclosure inrespect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below:

Balance Sheet
Befined benelit plans
As at
31st March, 2025
Present value of plan labilitles 419.43
Fair value of plan assets 302.76
Asset/(Liability) recognised (116.67)
Movements in plan assets and plan liabilities Present value of Fair value
obligations of Plan assets
As at 15t April 2024 363.53 33392
Cumrent sernvice cost 20.92 -
Adjustment in opening balance -
Past service cost -
Inferest Cost/(Income) 27.58 24.00
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 0.45
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assurmptions 22.28 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising due to change in demographic assumptions -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arigng from experience adjustments 44.36 -
Emplover contibutions = 23.65
Banefit payments (79.27) (79.27)
As at 31st March 2025 419.40 302.75
Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025
Statement of Profit and Loss
Employee Benefit Expenses:
Cument Service Cost 2092
Inferest Cosf 3.57
Past Service cost (vasted benefits) -
MNet Actuarial (Gain) [ Loss -
Interest cost/(income) -
Total amount recognised in Statement of profit & loss 24.49
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial (Eain) / Loss recognised for the penod bb.H4
Azset it effect -
Return on plan assets excluding net inferest (0.45)
Unrecognised Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss from previous period -
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 56.19
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D.

Assumptions

With the objective of presenting the plan assefs and plon liokilities of the defined benefits plons af their fair value on the balance
shaat, assumplions under Ind AS 19 ara set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date,

Particulars As at
J1st March 2025

The significant actuanal assurmptions were as follows:
Financial Assumplions

Discount rate 6.7 1%
sclary Escalation Rafe
Manogement Employees 5.00%
MNon-monagement Ermployees 8.00%
Demographic Assumptions
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees in no. of years
Manogement Employeaas 14
Non-management Ermployees G
Mortality Rate IALM (2012-14)
Urban
Attrition Rate
Management Employess 1%
Nor-management Employees 6%
Retirermant Age &0

Adjusted Average Future Services

Sensitivity
Ihe sensitivity of The overall plan liakiites fo changes in the weighted key assurmphions are:
Impact on defined banefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate + 1% (20200 22.67
salary Escalation Rate +-1% 22.16 (20.15)

The sansitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and may nof be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key
assumption while holding dll other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used
to calculate the liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assurmptions used in preparing
the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous perod.

iy Compensated Absences: The Group permits encashment of compensated absence accumulated by their employees on
retirernent. separation and during the course of service, The liability in respect of the Company, for outstanding balance of leave ot
the balonce sheet date is determined and provided on the bosis of octuarical valuation performed by an independent actuary.,

The disclosure in respact of the defined Compensated Absanceas are given balow:

Particulars As at

315t March 2025
Expeanses recognised in staterment of profit and loss 3.44
Balance sheet liakiity 1.41
iif) Pension

The ratirament bensfits pension will be fixed amount of INR 565 per month for an employas only atter ratiring from the organization
and if service renderaed by the employees is 25 yvears and above at the fime of retirement. A pensioner may opf on option to commute
INR 34,000 as a lump sum enca in lifetime, After commutation of pension member won't get any monthly pension. If any employas
expire his/her spouse will get lumpsum benefit of INR 34,000, thereafter no monthly pension will be payable, Liability determined and
provided on the baosis of actuarial valuation performed by a independant actuary, The disclosure In respect of pension liakility are
given below

Particulars As at

J1s5t March 2025
Expensas [ (gain) recognised in statement of profit and loss 4.10
Balance shaet liabitity 30,14
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended
215t March 2025

35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Estimated amount of contract remaining lo be execuled on 1.311.46
capital account not provided for

Less Capital advances paid there against 56,72
Capital Commitments 1,254.74

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Claims not acknowladged as dabts (excluding further interest, if any)
Incorme tax matters’

Excise duty 240.88
Soles tax 3.76
Land revenue cass 14.14
TOTAL 288 78
MNofes:

iy The Group's pending litigations comprise mainly claims cgainst the Company, proceadings pending with tax and other
authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending Itigations and proceedings and has made adeguate provisions, wherever
required and disclosed the contingent liabilifies. whersver applicable, In ifs financial staterments. The Company does not reasoncbly
sxpeact the outcome of these proceedings to have a matenal impact on its consolidated financial stataments

(n “Income fox maotter related to assessment yvear 2013-14, resulted In disputed tax demand of ¥ 7.85 lacs arsen on account of
disollowance of additional deprecation cloimed which is o mistake apparent from records agoinst which the Parent Cormpany's
rectification application/appeal is pending. The Management is confidant that this disputed demand will gst reversed or rectified in
due course and hence, not considered as contingent liakilities.

37  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Enterprise where the confrol exists Relationship Ceasad to be the related party#
Jumbo Waorld Holdings Limited Ulfimate Holding Company 14,07 2023
Alfarmaont (Mauritiug) Limited Holding Company 14,07,2023

Other reloted parties - (ceased to be related party w.ef. 14.07.2023#)

Acsrmon Management Services Pvt. Lid., Dandvati Iinvestmeants & Trading Co. Pyt Lid., FHrestorm Electronlcs Corporation Py, Lrd.,
WL Properties Ltd., Harshit Finlease & Investments Pyvt, Lid.. Jumbo Electronics Corporation Pyt Lid., Jumbo Investments Ltd., Jumbo
World Holdings (India) Pvt. Lid., Primo Enterprises Pyt Litd. . SMHN Engineers Ltd., Starfire Investrments Lid., Pious Investrments Pvt, Lid.

Enterprise where the confrol exisis Relationship with effect from#
Pioneer Jelice India Private Limited Associote Co, 14.07.2023
Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Limited Associate Co. 14.07 2023

Key managerial personne|

Mr, Ashok Kapur
M. Arun Jalswal
Mz, Mahima Patkar
hMr. Mahesh Vermao
Mz, Meenu Sharma

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. 5. Annamalai®

M, 5. Maheswaran™

nr. B Vijgyadurgi®

hrs. Manimegalai Thangamani®
M. K Krishnamoorthy

hir. Prakash b Nene™*

Mr, Ravindra K. Raje **

Mrs, Drushti R, Desai®™®

Mir. Gaurang Shah**
w.e.f14,07.2023. “"upto 14.07.2023
Refar note 17alvi{a)

Managing Director

Chief Financhal Officer (w.e.f 15.03.2025)

Company Secratary (w.e.f07.08.2024)

Chief Financial Officer (Ceased from services to w.e.f 07.01.2025)
Company Secretary (Ceased from services to w.e.f 28.06.2024)
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#‘ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars of ransaction and outstanding balances with related parties

Particulars MNature of Transaction Year ended
J31st March 2025

Transactions with related parties

Pioneer Jellce India Private Limited: Purchase of raw matarial {ncluding G5T) 1.524.64
Technical Consuftany Service 24.00
adles commission recelved b.72

Qutstanding Balance with related parties

Fioneer Jelice India Private Limited: Met 921

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (Remuneration paid)

{y M. Ashok K Kapur 66,26

Gy Mr. Arun Jaiswal 0.91

(i) s, Mahima Pathkar 293

{iv) Mr. Mahesh Verma 14.46

(v} Ms. Meenu Sharma 0.56

“As the Gratuity and Compensated dosences are computed for all the employees In aggregate, the amount relaling to Key
Maragerial Personnel cannol be individually be idenlified.

M Arun Jaiswal Joined w.e.f, 15.03.2025*

Ms. Mahima Patkarw.e f 07.08 2025%*

M Mahesh Verma (Ceased from services tow.a.f. 07.01.2025)"""

Ms. Meenu Sharma (Ceased from servicesto w.e.f, 28.06.2024)**

Transactions with Non-Executive Directors (Sitting fee paid)

M. 5, Annamalal 1.40
ME 5. Mohaeswaran 1.00
Mr. B Vijoyadurai 220
Mrs. Manimegalal Thangaman 1.40
Mr. Prakash M Nene -
M. K Krishnamoarthy 2.20

Mr. Ravindra K. Raje -

Mrs, Drushitl [2. Desai -

Mr. Gaurang Shah =

Notes:

() MNo amounts in respect of related parties have been written off [ written back during the year, nor has any provislon been made
for doubttul debts / receivables during the veor, except as disclosed above,

(i} Allrelated party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm’s length basis.

(i) Key Managerial Persons who are under the employment of the Company are entitted to post-employment bensfits (defined
benefit gratuity plan) recognised as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits” in the financial statements and short-term employee
benefits in the form of premium pald by company for group health insurance plan, As these employes benefits are lurmpsum
amaounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation/ premium paymeant for the Company as g whole, the same is not included
above,

38 EARNINGS PERSHARE

Profit available for equity shareholders 1.802.94
Weighted average number of equity shares 6,049,587 5,049,587
Nominal value of equity share 10,00
Earnings per share - Basic / Diluted 2%.80

39  INVESTMENTS - NON-CURRENT
Investments in Mutual Funds (ot NAV) - un-quoted, fully paid-up

As at 31st March, 2025
Particulars Fair Value No. of Total
Per unit Units Vialue

MNippon India Short Term Fund- Growth Plan -
Mippon India Money Market Fund- Direct - Growth -
5Bl Savings Fund - Direct - Growth 4
ABSL Savings Fund - Direct - Growth -
ICICIPru Ultrar Short term fund -Direct Growth -
Mippon India Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Growth Plan -
ABSL Savings Fund - Direct - Growth -

Total -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

40  INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
A.  Investments in Equity Shares

As at 31st March, 2025
Fair Value No. of Total
Per unit Units Value

Equity Shares of India Gelatine and Chemicals Ltd 10.00 1.003.000 411531
Total 4,115.31

Particulars

B. Summarised Financial Information of an associate ( India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited)

41

(i Summarised Balance Sheet;
Particulars As of As aft
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
MNon-current gssats 10.011.38 913226
Current qssets 644082 ©.308.48
Non-currant liabilities 1.233.05 1.453.94
Current abilities 1.069.05 1579.87
Equity 17,150.10 15,406.93
Carrying amount of investment 411531 -
(i} Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss:

Revenue 19.852.87 20583.97
Cost of material consumed ?.128.21 Q083,94
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - 14.51
Changes In Inventory Finished Goods WIPSIT 276,55 (365.58)
Employes banefits expanss 1.217.83 1.274.79
Deprecigtion and amortisation expense 550,08 52595
Finance costs &7.77 73.74
Power & Fuel 2.785.02 290250
Other expanses 402929 4171.25
Profit before tax 2264 84 3,726.45
Less: Tax expense 52591 887 .60
Profit for the year 1,738.93 2,838.85
Cther comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 7517 (8.58)
Share of profit for the year 82.00 -

CORPORAITE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a C5R Committes has been formed by the Company. As part of initiatives under
Comporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company has undertaken projects in the aregs of environment / river protection,
education, livelhood, healthcare, sanitation, rural development, promaotion of sports and cultural aclivities, which are specified in
schedule Vil of the Compoanies Act, 2013. The amount spent on the sarme is given below:

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025
(M Armount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 a4.46

(i} Amount spant dunng the year on:

Construction / acquisiion of any asset -

On purposes other thon above 44,50

Balance utilised from the excess spent in FY

{1ii) Shortfall at the end of the vear -

(iviTotal of previous years shortfall -

(w) Reason for shortfall NA

(vidMature of CSR activities Literacy promaotion, Bnvironment cratection,
Heqlth care activities, Eradication of hunger
& poverty

(vii) Details of related party tTransactions in relation fo Csi expenditure -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended
315t March 2025
42 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Revenue expenditure
Sclaries and wages 13.46

Diher expenses

43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and liakilities are included at the amount ot which the instrument could be exchanged ina

current transaction between willing parfies. other tThon in a forced or iquidation sale. The following methods and assumplions were

used to esfimate the fairvalues:

(i} Falr value of cash and short-term depaosits, trade and other shart term receivables, frade payables, ofher current liabilities, short
tarm loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their camying amounts largely due to short term rmaturities of
these instruments,

(i} Finoncial Instrurnents with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interast
rates and individual credit worthiness of the counter-poarty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for
expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly. fair value of such instruments is not materially different from their camying
amounts.

The Group uses the following higrarchy for detarmining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by voluation
technique:

Leved | guoted (unadjusted) prcesinactive markets for identical assets or linbilties.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, elther directly

of indirectly.

Lewvel 3: technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on obsernvable

market data.’

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category are as follows:

“FVOCI FVTPL Amortised Tolal fair Carrying
Mote 2(xiii)) MNotel (xiii) cost valua amount
Financial assets
Investment in an associate - - A197.31 A,197.31 A 197,31
Trode receivables 2484 20 2484 20 248420

Cash and cash equivalents 19.03 19.03 19,03
Bank balances other thaon above 26.36 26.36 26,34
Loan 60.04 80.04 &0.04
CHhers financial assets 234 .82 234 .82 23462
Total 7.021.56 7.021.56 7.021.56
Financial liabilities

Bonowings 1.272.20 1.272.20 127220
Trode payabhkes 1.718.71 1.718.71 1.718.71
Others 142.77 142.77 142.77
Total financial liabilities 3,802.81 3,802.81 3,802.81

Fair value astimation

For finoncial instruments measured ot foir value in the Bolance Sheet, g three level fair volue hiergrchy is used thot reflects the

significance of inputs used in the measurements. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets

foridentical assets orliabilifies (Level 1 medsurements) and lowest prionty to unobsenvable Inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The categorles used are as follows:

s Lavel 1. quoted prices for idenfical instrurments

« Level 2: directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

« Level 3 inputs which are not based on obsernvable market data.

For assets and liabilities which are camried at fair value. the classification of fair value calculations by category is surmmarised below:;
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

31st March, 2025

Assets at fair value - - =
Investrents in Equity Shares Mot Camred ot Fair Volue

There were no significant changes in classification and no significant moverments between the fair value hierarchy classifications of
financiol assets ond finoncial licbilities during the yvears.
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All amounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

44 RISK MANAGEMENT
Fnancial risk rmanagement objectives and policies ;
The @roup’'s finoncial sk manoagement s an infegral part of how to plan and execute its business stfrategies. The Company’ s activity
axpose it to market risk, liquidity risk, commodity risk and credit rsk. The Company’'s financial risk managemeant pelicy is set by the Risk
Managernent Committee and governed by overdll direction of Board of Directors of the Company.
Market risk Is the risk of loss of future earnings, falr values or future cash flows that may resulf from a change In the price of a financial
Instrument. The vaiue of a findnclal instrumeant moy change as a result of changes in the interast rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, equily pricas and other markel changes that affect marked risk sensitive insfrurments. Market risk is attribulable to all marked risk
sensitive financial insfrurments including investrments and deposits . foreign curency receivables, payables ond koans and bomowings.
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Risk Management
(i} Credit rigk Caosh and cash eguivalents, Ageing onalysis Credit Cradit lirmits and letters of credit
trade receivables, financial ratings and Performance guarantees,
Instrurnents, financial assetfs
measured of amorised cost.
() Liquidity risk Borrowings and other iabiliies  Holing cosh flow forecasts  Availability of committed credit
ines and borrowing facilities
(i) Market risk—intersst rale Long-term borowings af sensilivity analysis Interes! rale swaps
variable rafes
(v} Market risk-foreign exchonge Future commercial transoctions Cash flow forecasting Forward foreign exchange
recognised financial assets and  Sensitivity analysis contracts
labilties not denominated in
Indican rupees
(v Commodity risk Purchase of Row Material Az par production Procurameant and Inventory
planning and budgeling strategy
| CREDIT RISK
'‘Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this. the
Group pernodically assesses the financial reliability of customers. taking inte account the financial condition, current economic
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Individual credit limits are set accordingly. The Group
considers the probability of default upan initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credif risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there s a significant increase In credit risk the company
compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as ot the reporing date with the risk of defoult s of the date of initial recognition.
The company considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor falling to engage in a repayment plan with the company. The company
provides for overdue outstanding s per the policy approved by the Board of Directors. which are evaluated on a case o case basis.
The Company s concentration of risk with respact to frade receivables s low, as its customer s base s widely spread acrass the length
and breadth of the country and majority of the customers are with sound linancial health.®
The average credif period extended to customers ranges within 30- 120 days.
Expected credit loss for frade receivables under simplified approach
Particulars As at As al
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) Ageing of trade receivables
From the date of invoice
0- & months 248217 2,190.52
6 -2 months 203 -
@ - 12 months }
beyvond 12 moniths - -
TOTAL 2,484.20 2,190.52
(b) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables
Dpening provision 2.81 281
Additional provision made - -
Less Bod debfs written off / recovered - -
Closing provisions 2.81 2.81
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§ TO CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
mounts in Indian rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquiclity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to sefttle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price.

The Group’s treasury department s responsible tor maintenance of liguidity (neluding quast lquidity), continuity of funding as well as
fimely seftlerment of debits. In addition, policies reloted to miflgation of risks are oversesn by senior monagement.

Management monitors the Group's netliquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows vis A vis debt service fulfilment obligation,
Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides detail: regarding the remaining confractual maturities of financial liabilities af the reporting date.

Confractual maturity patterns of Financial Liabilities :
Particulars As at 31st March 2025

0-1 year/ 1to s Total
on Demand  years

Borrowings 1.272.20 - 1.272.20
Trade poyables 1.718./1 - 1.718.71
Cther financial licbilities 142.77 - 142.77
Total 3,133.69 - 3,133,469

MARKET RISK- INTEREST RATE RISK

Inferest rate sk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. In order to balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manogs the
interast rate risk, finance department performs a compreheansive infarast rate nsk management. The Company is not exposad to
significant Interest rate risk as ot the respective reporting dates,

IV MARKETRISK- FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange sk towards honouring of export/ import commitments. Management evaluates

exchange rate exposure in this connection In terms of its establishad risk management policies which includes the use of derivatives

ke foreign exchange fornward contracts to hedge risk of exposure in foreign cumency. The company is not exposed fo forelgn
currency risk al the respective reporting dates.
v COMMODITY RISK

‘Principal Raw Material for Company’s products is Crushed bone, HCL, Lime and Coal as a fuel. The Group sources its major raw

material reguirement from domestic suppliers located in various part of India.

The Group effectively manages with avaliability of material as well os price volaflity cosed on the following:

e Rowmaoterials are procured from different sources at competitive prices.

s Alfemnative sources are developed for uninterrupted supply of raw matericls.

« Demand and supply are external factors on which company has no control; however the Company plans ifs production and
sales from the experience gained in the past and on-going study and appraizal of the market dynamics, compeatition, economic
policies and growth patterns of different segments of users of company’s products.

s Specific stepstoreduce the gap between demand and supply by expanding its customer base, delvery mechanisms, etc.
Proper inventony confrol systems hove been put in place. The [[Risk committee of the Company comprnsing memibers from Board
of Directors ond the operations hos developed ond enacted a risk management strategy regording commodity Price risk and its
ritigation.”

45 FINANCIALRISK FACTORS
(a) Capital risk management
s TheGroup'sobjectives whenmanaging capitalare to:
e sofeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and
s maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
(b} Term loan are secured by a first ranking pari-passu hypothecation/ Exclusive charge on the assets created out of the term loan.
Cash Credit Primary Security-Exclusive charge on entire current assels (present and fulture) & fixed deposits referred in Note 18
and 21.
{c) Dividends
The Group follows the policy of Dividend for any financial year as may be decided by Board considering financial performance
of the company and otherinternal and external factors.
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47

49

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

On Equity Shares
Dividends not recognised ot the end of reporting pericd

since year end, the directors have recommendead the payment of a final
dividend of T 10,00 per fully paid up equity share, The proposed dividend is
subject fo the opproval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general
meeting. &04.96

Luring the year, the Parent Company had received a whistle blower complaint alleging certain unethical practices concemning the
operdtions of the Parent Company. On enguiry with the support of an external agency, it was found that the allegations were mere
surmise and devoid of any sulbstantial evidence which are legally tenable, A formal report from the agency s awalted including their
suggestions tostrengthen the internal control measuras, betterment and smooth functioning of the Parent Company.

Certain financlal assets and financial llablities are subject to formal confirmation and reconcillations. The Management, however,
s confident that the impact whereof, it any, for the year on the financial statements will not be material,

The Prasident has given his assent to the Code on Social Security. 2020 "Code™) In September 2020, On 13th November 2020 the
Ministry of Labour and Employment released draft rules for the Code. However, the date on which the Caode will come into effect
has not been notified. The Group will assess the Impact once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact 1o ifs
fincncial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective,

Other statutory information:

) The Parent does not have any benami proparty, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
halding any benami property.

iy The Paren! does nol have any fransaclions with companias struck off.

iy The Parent doas not have any charges or salisfaction whichis yat to be registerad with ROC beyond the statutory panod.

) The Parent hasnot traded orinvestedin Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v) The Parent has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other personds) or entity(ias), including foreign antities
{ntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall (a) direclly or indirecHy lend or invast in other parsons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever oy or on behalf of the company (ulimate beneficianas) or (L) provide any guarantee,
sacuwity or tha like to or on behalf of the ultimate banaficiaries.

viy The Parent has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in wiiting or otherwlse) that the Group shall: a) directly or indirectly lend or inveast in other
persons of enfifies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or b) provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

vil) The Parent does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed asincome duning the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 19461 (such as, search or surnvey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 194 1.

viil} The Parent has complied with the numiber of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Secfion 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction onnumber of Layers) Rules. 2017,

) The Parent is not deciored wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or lender during the year,

¥} The guarterly returns or statements of current assets filed oy the Group with banks of financial instifutions are in agreement with the
bocks of accounts

x) The Parent has used the borrowings from banks and financlal institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken as ot
Balance sheet date.

The Group is engoged in the monufacture and sale of Ossein ond Gelatine. Since all these segments meet the aggregation criteric os
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 on 'Cperating segments’, the management considers these as a single reportable segment.
Accordingly, no further disclosure is required fo be furnished.

Signatures to note 1 to 50 For and on behalf of the Board
5. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur
Chairman Maraging Cirector
DiM: 000071387 DIM: 00126807

Plaoce : Jabalpur Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patkar

Date : 24" May. 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Sacratary
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-* NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

MNotice is hereby given that the Sikty-fourth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Narmada Gelatines Limited will be held on Monday,
22" 5eptembear, 2025 at 11.00 a.m. {151}, viavideo conferencing/ other audio visual means (VC/OAVM ) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
31" March, 2025 including the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this respect fo consider and if thought fit,
to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resclution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31" March,
2025, Including the Balance Sheet as ot that date and the Statement of Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended on that date together with the Reporfs of the Directors aond Audifors thereon as l0id before this Meeting be and are
haraby approved and adopted.”

To declare dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 317 March. 2025 and in this respect to consider and if thought fit. to
pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Orainary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in cccordance with the recommendation of the Boord of Directors, dividend @ 100% i.e. $10.00 par Equity Share of
T10/- each fully paid-up. be and is hereby declared in respect of the financial year ended 317 March, 2025 and that the dividend be
paid fo those Equity Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Eguity Shareholders as on 15" Septernber, 2025 or to their
mondatees.”

To approve revision in the Remuneration of M/s Lodha & Co, LLF, Chartered Accountants, (FHrm Registration No, 301051E), Statutory
Auditors of the Company, lor the remaining tenure of their exisling term of five conseculive years, the lollowing resolution as an
Ordinarny Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 142 and other applicable provisions., if any, of the Companies Act. 2013 and the
ndlas made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof and in accordance with Regulation 18(3) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 2015 read with Part-C of Schedule-l for the fime belng in force),
andin furtherance to the resolution passed by the Members gt the Annucl General Meeting held on September 22, 2022, with respect
to re-appointment and remunearation payable to M/s Lodha & Co. LLP. Chartered Accountants. (Firm Registration No, 301051E).
Statutory Auditors of the Company, and pursuant o the recommendafion of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, the
remunaration payable to the Stafutory Auditors be and i hereby modified. with the authority fo the Board of Directors (including its
committes) to alter and vary the terms of their remuneration during the remaining tenure of their appointment at such remuneration
as may be mutually agreed betweaen the Board of Directors of the company and the Statutory Auditors’,

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT" the Board of Directors of the Company be and hereby authorised to alter and/or vary the terms and
conditions of the appointment including the remuneration payable during the terms of his fenure as may be mutually to be agreed
upon between the Statutony cuditors and the Board of directors.”

To approve re-gppointment of Shri 5, Annarnalal (CIN: 00001381) as a Non-Executive & Non-Independsnt Director of the Company
ond in this respect fo consider and, ifthought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESCOLVED THAT consant of the members be and is hareby accorded, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152(8) of the Companies
Act, 2013, for re-gppointment of Shri 5. Annamaloi (DIN: 000013817, who ratires by rotation and being aligible offers himself for re-
appointmeant, as a Non- Executive, Non-independent Director of the Company. subjact to retirement by rotation,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions. If any, consent of the mambers be and s hereby abko accorded for reappointrent
and continudation of Mr. 5. Annamalal, who has attained the age of /8 years. 3 a Non-Executive Directar of the Company as long as
he confinues in the office of the Director of the Company

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be andis hereby authorzed to delegate all or any of the powers to any committes of directors with
power to further delegate to any other officer(s) [ cuthorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and
take allsuch steps as may be necessary, proper ar expedient fo give effect to this resalution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.

To consider and approve, Appointment of Dr. Asim Chattopadhyay, Company Secretarles in Practice, as the Secretarial Auditor fora
perod of Syears and in thisrespect to consider andif thought fit, fo pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolufion:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 20401 ) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule 2 of the Companies (Appointment and
Rermuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, If any of the Companlas Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Cbligotions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with circular issued
thareunder to the extend applicable, other applicable regulations framead by the Securities and Exchange Board of India in this
regard, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for appointment of Dr. Asimn Chottopadhyay (FCS. No. 2303) (COP Mo,
820y Company Secretary in Practice as Secretarial Auditor of the company for o period of five years i.e. from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-
2030 at a remuneration fo be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Dirsctors and Secretanial Auditor.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby cuthorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and fake all such steps as may be
neceassary, proper or expadient to give effect 1o this resolution and for matters connected therawith or incidental therata,”
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT" the Board of Directors of the Company be and hersby authorised to alter and/or vary the terms and
conditions of the appointment Inciuding the remuneration payable during the terms of his tenure as may be mutually to be agreed
upon betweaen the Secretarnal auditors aond the Boord of directors.’

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Narmada Gelatines Limited

Mahima Patkar
Company Secratary

Flace: Jabalpur

Diate:

13" August, 2025

Registerad Office:

CARAVS, Room No. 28,

15, Civil Lines, Jobalpur - 482001
Notes:

Virtual Meeting:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular Mos, 14/2020 dated Apdl 8, 2020 and 17 /2020 dated April 13,
2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 9/2024 dated September 19, 2024, (collectively referred to as
*MCA Circulars”) has permitted the compaonies to held their Annual General Meeting (" AGM™) through Video Conference ("VC ™) or
through Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM ™), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue, In compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations™), and Secrataricl Stondard-2 on General Mestings (*55-2°)
issued by The Institute of Cornpany Secretaries of India and MCA Circulars, the 44 AGM of the Company is being held through
VCOAYM on Monday, Sept. 22, 2025, at 11:00 a.m. {5T). The procesedings of the AGM are deemed fo be conducted at the
Ragistered Office of the Company situated ot CARAVS R Mo 28 CIVIL UNES, JABALPUR, Madhya Pradash, India, 482001,

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, A MEMBER ENTITLED 1O ATTEND AN WOTE Al THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING I3 ENTITLED TC APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM |5 BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC/OAVM, PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF
MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH, ACCORDINGLY. THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE
AVAILABLE FOR THE ANNUAL GEMNERAL MEETING AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT
ANNEXED TO THE NOTICE.

Authorized Representative:

Corporate [/ Institutional members intending to send their authorized representatives fo affend and vote at the AGM pursuant to
Saction 113 of the Act, are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authcrizing their representative to attend and
vote on their behalf at the Meeting or to vote through remote e-voting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution
to the Scrutinizer by e-mall of jainadinath@grail. com

SuonIm:
The Members attending the AGM through VC/CAVYM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the guorum under Section 102 of
fhe Act,

In case voling by joint holders, voling by such joint helders who is higherin the order of the names as per the Register of Members of the
company as of the cut-off date, willbe counted for the purpose of this meeating.

Dispatch of Annual Report:
In cccordance with the MCA Circulars and the Circular Neos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD /CIR/P2020/79 daoted May 12, 2020,

SEBI/HOSCFDJCMD2/CIR/P2021/11T doted January 15, 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022,
SERI/HO/CFD/ PoD2/P/CIRF2023/4 doted January &, 2023, SEBIf HO/CFD/ CFD-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 and
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-Pol-2/P/CIRf2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (collectively
referred fo as "SEBI Circulars™), the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for FY 2024-25 is being sent only through electronic
made to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participants ("DPs"). Additionally. in
accordance with Regulation 34{1)o) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is
also sending a letter to shareholders whose e-mail addressas are not registered with Company/Registrar/DP providing the weblink of
Company s website from where the Annual Report for FY 2024-25 canbe accessed.

Thosa Members who are holding shares in physical form and have not updated their e-mall ids with the Company, are requestad to
update the some by submitting a duly filed and signed Form I5R-1 along with self-attested copy of the PAN Card, aond self-attested
copy of any document as address proof (e.g. Drhiving License, Voter Identity Card, Passport, Masked Aadhaar, etc). to the
Company’s RTA at the below mentioned address of by e-mail o fa@cbmmsl.com.

Process for oblaining physical copy of Annual Report

The Company shiall send the physical copy of Annual Report for FY 2024-25 to those Members who have made arequest for the same.
efther to the RTA or the Company. Additionally, any member who desires fo get a physical copy of the Annual Report BY 2024-25, may
requeast for the same by sending an email fo the company ot nglipp@rediffmail.com mentioning their Folic No, /DP 1D and Client 1D,
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In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ¢ MCA) Circular No 17/2020 dated 13" April, 2020, Members may also note that The Notice
of the &47 AGM along with Annual Report for the financial yvear 2024-25, is available on the website of the Company ot
hitps://narmadagelatines.com/annudl_report.ntml |, on the website of Stock Exchanges Le. BSE Umited www.Dselindia.com . The
AM Mofice s also disseminated on the website of CDOLL {(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-vofing system
during the AGM) L.e. https:/ f'www . evolingindia.com.

Details of Directors seeking appeointment/re-appointment:

Details as required In Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per
provisions menticned in clausa 1(1.2.5) of the Secretarial Standard - 2 on "General Meeatings issuad by the Council of the Institute of
Company Secretares of India and approved by the Central Government in respect of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the
AGM, are onnexedto this Motice and inthe Cormporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Repaort,

Explanatory Statement:
The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act in reéspect of the business under Item 4 and Item 5 set out above. are
annexed herewith.

Procedure for inspection of documents

Documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the 84" AGM and the Explanatory Statement shall be avoilable at the
Registered Office of the Company for inspection on all working days except Saturday, between 11:00 AM. 1o 01:00 PM. (ISTHuptc the
date of the Meating.

The register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under section 170 of the Act, the register of
Contracts of Arangements in which the Direclors are interested, maintained undear Saeclion 189 of the Act shall be made available for
inspection by the Mermbers during AGM.

Common Cnline Dispute Resolution Portal.

SEBl vide Circular MNos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ CIRf2023/131 doted July 31, 2023, and SEBI/HO/CIAE/ OIAE_|AD-
1/BfCIRS2023/ 135 dated August 04, 2023, read with Master Circular Mo. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/CIAE_ 1AD-1/P/CIR/2023/ 145 dated Juby 31,
2023 (updated gs on August 11, 2023). has established a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal®) for rescluticn of
disputes aising in the Indian Securities Market, Pursuant to above-mentioned circulars, post exhausting options to resolve their
grievances with the RTA/ Company directly or through existing SCORES plafform, the investors can initicte dispute resclution through
tha QDR Portal ot https: //smartadrin/login .

Green Initiative:

Mermbers are aso requested to Inform thelr correct e-mall address, If any, 10 the Depaositories (f shares held in demat form) and o the
Registrars and share transfer agents by visiting their website namely “www.cbsl.com/green.php® (if shares held in physical form) in
compliance of Green Inltiative as per circular No. 17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs to facilitate the company to send notice/documents through e-mail.

Dividend Ralated Information:
Dividend -Key Dotes

Record Date: Monday. 157 September, 2025
{for determining the entitlement of Members

to the finol dividend for the yvear

ended March31™, 2025)

Date of Payment: after Tuesday, 23° September, 2025

Dividend on Equity shares, if declared af the Meetfing will be cradited [ dispatched aofter 23rd Septemiber, 2025 subject to deduction
of tax at source (“TDS"), to those membaears whose names appear on thae Company’s Register of Membars as on 157 Seaptember, 2025
(Record Date). Inrespect of shares neld in electronic mode, the dividend will be pald to members whose nomes are furnished by the
National Security Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services {ndia) Umited (CDSL) as the beneficial owners on 15th
September. 2025,

Memibers holding shares in demaf form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered with their respective DPs, with whom
they maintain their demat accounts, will be used by the Company for the payment of dividend. Memibers holding shares in demat
form are reguested o infimmate any change in therr addraess and / or bank mandate to theair DPs only, as the Company or its 1A
cannot act on any request received directh on the some. The process for updating the aforesaid changes has been detailed under
Point Nos. 19 and 20.

Mota: SEBl vide its circular dated Movember 03, 2021 subsequently amended by circulars dated December 14, 2021 and
MNovember 17, 2023, has mandated that with effect from April 01, 2024, to make dividend payments only in electronic mode.
Members are once again reminded to update their PAN, KYC details, and Choice of Nomination by submitting the relevant ISR
Forms before the cut-off date to ensure timely credit of dividends.

In terms of the provisions of Section 72 of the of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital &
Dabanfures) Rules, 2014, the facllity for making a nomination ks avallable for the Members In respect of the shares hald by them.
Membears who have not yet registered their nominations are reguested to registar the same by subrmitting Form Mo SH 13, Fa Member
desires to cancel the earller nomination and record a fresh nomination, he may submit the same in Form 3H-14. Members who are
aither not desiring to register Nomination orwould want to opt out, are requested to fill and submit Form Mo, 15:-3. The sald forms can
be downloaded from the website of the company https:// www. narmadagelatines.com . The Members are requested to submit the
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said form to their OF in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form, quating
theirfolic no.

TDS related information:

According to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend Income will be taxable in the hands of the Shareholders w.ef. Aprll 1, 2020, and the
Compony is reguired fo deduct fox ot source (TDS) from the dividend paid to the Members at prescribed rates in the iIncome Tax Act,
1961 ("the [T Act’). In general. to enable compliance with TDS requirements. Members ars requested to complete and/or update
their Residential Status, FAN, and Cafegory as per the [T Act with thelr Depository Participants (DPs') or In case shares are held in
physical form. with the Company by sending documents befora 15" September, 2025 1ill 5.00 p.m. (I51). to enable the Company to
determine the appropriate TDS [ withholding tax rate applicable.

Resident Shareholders:
o Deductitle at Source for Resident shareholders

5.No. Particulars Withholding tax rate Documents required (if any)
{ay Valid PAN updated in the Company's | No document required
Reglster of Mambers (if NG exemption is sought)
(by No PANAalid PAN not updated in 20°% Mo document required
the Company's Register of Mambers (if no exemption s sought)
(c)  Availabiry of lower/nil tax deduction lkate specified Lower tax deduction
cerlificate issued by Income Tax in the cearlificate obtained from Income
Departrment ufs 197 of Tax Authority

Income [ax Act, 1961

Mo Tax Deductinle af Source on dividend payrnent fo resident shareholders if fhe Shareholders submit the docurments as menfioned
in the below table with the Company or the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents. M/s. CB Management Servicas Pvt. Ltd. before
15" Septernber, 2025 1ill 5.00 p.rm. {IST).

5.No. Particulars Withholding tax rate Documents required (if any)

(I} Submission of form 15&/15H il Ceclaration In Form MNo. 156 (applicable to any
person other thon o company or o firm) / Form
15H (applicable to an Individual who s &0 years
and above), fulfilling certain conditions.

(i Shoareholders o whom section 194 il Documentary evidence thaft the said provisions
of the Income Tax, 1941 does not are not applicable.
apply such as LIC, GIC, etc

(ily  Shareholder covered U/fs 196 of Income il Documentarny evidence for coverage u/s 196 of
Tax Act, 1961 such s Governmant, RBI, Income Tax Act, 1941

corporations established by Central Act
& rnutual funds.

Mon-Resident Shareholders:

Withholding tax on dividend payment to non-resident shareholders if the non-resident shareholders submit the documents as
mentlonead in the below table with the Company or the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB Management Services Pvt. Lid. on
or before 15" September, 2025, 1ill 5.00 pm (ST,

5r. No. Parliculars Withholding tax rate Documents required (if any)
(it Foreign Institutional Investors (Flis) / 20% (plus applicable FPI registration number / cerificate
Forelgn Partfollo Investors (FPIs), If any. surcharge and cess) To avall beneficlal rate of tax tredty 1olowing fax
documents would be required:
{(In  Other Non-resident shareholders 20°% (plus applicable 1. Tox Residency certificate lssued by revenus
surchorge and cess) guthorty of country of residence of
or tax treaty rate sharsholder for the year in which dividend
whichaver is beneficial is received,
2. PAN
3. Fom 10F filled & duly signed

4, Self - declarafion  for non - exlstence of
permanent establishment/ fixed base in India
(Mote . Application of beneficial Tax Treaty
Rate shall depend upon the completeness of
the documents submitted by the Non -
Resident shareholder and review to the

satisfaction of the Company)
(iy  Awvallability of Lower/NIL tax deduction Rate specified In Lower tax deduction certificate
carfificate issuad by Income Tax Dapt. Cerfificate obtained from Income Tax Authority

ufs 197 of Income Tax Act, 1961
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22,

23,

e Formatl tor the above mentioned Forms/documents are avallable for download on the website of the company -
hitps:/ fwoenw . narmnadogelatines.com

« [he Company will issue soft copy of the TDS certificate to its shareholders through email registerad with the Company or the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/5. CB Manaogement Services Pvt, Lid. post payment of the dividend. Shareholders will be
able to download the TDS certificate from the Income Tax Department’s website hitps: //incomeataxindiaefiling.gov.in {refer to
Forrm 26A5).

e Application of TOS rate |s subject to necessary verlfication by the Company of the shareholder details as avallable in Register of
Memizers as on the Record Dote, and ofher documents avallable with the Company / Regisfrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB
Management Sarvices Bt Ltd,

e IncoseTDS s deducted af a higher rate, an option is still available with the shareholder to file the return of income and clainm an
appropriate refund.
. In the event of any Income tax demand (including interest, penalty, etc.) arlsing from any misrepresentation, Inaccuracy or

omission of information provided by the Member/s, such Member/s will be responsible to indemnify the Company and also,
provide the Company with all information [ docurments and co-operation in any appellate proceedings.

s This Communication is not exhaustive and does not purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consegquences
inthe matter of dividend payment. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors for requisite action 1o be taken by them.

Members are regquested to nofify immediately:
e lotheir Depostory Participants (DP) in respect to their Electronic Share Account; and

« [othe Company ot its Registered Office or to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company in respect of their
physical share holdings In prescribed Form Mo, ISR-1format 8 avallable on the website of the company at
https./ fanene narmadagelatines.com) guoting theair folio number and enclosing the salf -attested supporting document (i) self-
attested copy of the PAN card and (i} cancelled chegue leaf,

any change of address and also particulars of thelr Bank Accounts viz. Name of Bank, Branch, complete addrass of the Bank and
Account Number for printing the same on the Dividend Warrants to avold fraudulent encashment,

Meaemibers holding shares in electronic form are heraby informed that bank particulars registered against thelr respective depasitony
accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend, The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received
directly from the Members holding shares in electronlc form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandares, Such changes are
to be advised only to the Depository Particioont of the Members, Members holding shares in physical form and dasirous of sither
registering bank parficulars or changing bank particulars already registered against their respective folios for payment of dividend
are requested fo wrlte to the Company in Form Mo, 15--1,

Further, to receiva the dividend, If any on fime, Members holding shares in ghysical form who have not updoated fheir mandate for
recaiving the dividands directly in their bank accounts through Electranic Clearing Sarvice or any other meaans are reguestad to send
the followlng documents to the RTA-M/s. CB Management Services Pyt Ltd., befare 15" September, 2025:

i. Form Mo, I5R-1 duly fillked and signed by the holders stating their name, folio number, complete address with pin code, mobile
number and following details relating to the bank accountin which the dividend is to ba recaived:

i, Name of Bank ond Bank Branch !

i, Bank Account Number & Type allotted by your bank afterimplementation of Core Banking Solutions: and

. 11-digit IFSC Code

v,  9digit MICR Code.

vi.  Criginal copy of cancelled cheque bearing the name of the Member or first holder, In case shares are held jointly.

vil. Self-aftested copy of the PAN Card; and

vill. Self-aftested copy of any document (such as AADHAR Card, Driving License, Election ldentity Card, Passport) in support of the
addrass of the Member as registered with the Company.

Further, please note that instructions, if any, already given by Members in respect of shares held in physical form. will not be
automatically applied to the dividend paid on shares held in electronic form,

SEBI mandate on KYC Compliance:

SEBI vide its Circular No, SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSDRTAMEB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated 3rd November, 2021 as amended, has mandated the
subrmission of PFermanent Account Number CPANT by every parficipant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic
farm are therefore, requested to submit thelr PAN to thelr Depasitory Participants with whorm they are maintaining thelr dernat
accounts, Members holding shores in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company or to the Registrar & Share Transfer
Agents, M/s. CB Managemant Serviceas Pyt Lid,

To prevent fraudulent transactions. members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in
address or demise of any memoer 4ds s00n as possible. Memioers are also advised nof fo leave their demat account(s) dormant for
long. Periodic statemeant of holdings should e obtained from the concamead Depository Paricipant and holdings should be verified.

Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents immedictely of:

a.  choangeinthe residential status onretum o Indioa for parmanant settlement. and
b. particulars of their Bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account fype, account no. and addrass of
the bank, if not furnished earlier,
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Information relating to unpaid or unclaimed dividends (Investor Education and Protection Fund):

24, Pursuant to the provisions of Section 206A(5) and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 (Section 124 of the Companles Act, 2013), the
Company has fransferred the unpaoid or unclaimed dividends upto the financial years ended 31" March, 2017, from fime to time, fo
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established under Section 205C of the Act. In accordance with the provisions of
Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of Information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the
companlas) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the datails of unpaid and unclalimed armounts ying with the Company as on
24" September 2024 (date of last Annual General Meeting) on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Members who
have not encashed their dividend warnmants are advised to wiite to the Company immeadiately claiming dividends declared by the
Company.

25, Adhering to the various requirements set outin the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2014 (Rules). as amended from time to time, the Company has, during financial year 2024-25, transferred to the [EPF
Authorty all equlty shares of the Company in respect of which dividends for seven consacutive years of morg remaining unpalid or
unclaimed as on the due date of transfer. Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividend transferred to IEPF Authority
can be claimed bock from them. Concerned members [/ Investors are advised fo wvisit the weblink:
hitp:/flepf.gov.in/IERPFA frefund.himil for lodging claim for refund of shares and / or dividends from the IEPF authorty, in Form Mo, IEPF-5
asavailable onwww lepf.gov.in,

SEBl mandate onissuance of securities only in demat mode

26,  The Members may further note that Pursuant to SEBI (amendment) Regulations, 2022 via Nofification dated 24th Jonuary, 2022, read
with SEBI Circular No, SEBI/HO/MIRSE/MIRSD_RTABM/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January 2022, the listed companies are reguired to
issue the securities in dematerialised form only while processing the requests for Issue of duplicate securities certificate, Claim from
Unclaimed Suspense Account, Renewal / Exchange of secunties cerificate, Endorsement, Sub-division / Splitfing of securities
cerfificate. Consolidation of securities cedificates/ folics, Transmission, Transpaosition. Also, in view of the Regulation 40 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, as amended with effect from 24th January, 2022, securities of listed companies can now be transferred only in the
demaot mode.

27,  Members holding sharas in physical form are therefore requested to convert thair holdings into the demat mode to avoid loss of
shares of fraudulent transactions and avail befter investor servicing. Accordingly. the members are requested o make service
request by submifting a duly filed and signed Form [5ie-4, the format of which 5 avallable on the Company's website at
http:/fwww.narmadogelatines.com.in in the download section of investor informaation,

28. Members can contact the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent, M/s. CB Management Services Pvi. Ltd, ot fa@cbmsl.com for
assistance in thisregarad.

Details of RTA:

29, Allthe work related to share registry in farms of both physical and elactronic. are baing conducted by Company's Registrar & Share
Transfer Agents, CB Management Services Private Limited, Rasol Court, 5th Floor, 20 Sir RN, Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 Phone:
(0:33) 4011 6700, Email: fa@cbmsl.com.

Procedure for remote e-voting and e-voling during the AGM:

30,  In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companles (Management and
Adrinistration) Rules, 2014 s amended up-to-date, and Regulation 44 of the Securtles and Exchange Board of Indla (Lsting
Chbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility to the members to cast
their votes electronically at the 64" Annual General Meeting (AGM) 1o be held on Monday, 22™ September, 2025 ot 11:00 q.m. The
Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services India Lid (CDSL) fo provide remote e-voting facilifies. The remote
e-voling facility is available ol the link www.evalingindia.com . Further, the company has entered into an arangerment with COSL for
conducting the AGM through WEBEX Meetings.

31, TheMembers canjoin the EGMAGM In the VC /OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement
of tha Maeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation atthe AGM through VC/ OAVM will be
made available 1o atleast 1000 membbers on first come firsl served basis. This will nol include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding
2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institufional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Choirpersons of the Audit
Committes, Nomination and Remuneration Committes and Stakeholders Relationship Committes, Auditars et who arg gllowed to
aftend tha EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

32. The Company has fiked Monday, 15" September, 2025 as the cut-off date for determining voting rights of shareholders entitled to
parficipafte in the e vofing process. In this regard, yvour demat account/folio numiber has been enrclled by the Company for yvour
participation in e-vating onresolutions placed by the Company on e-voting system.

The remote e-voling facility will be avallable during the following peried:

Commencemeant of remote e-voting End of remote e-voling

Friday, 19" September, 2025 at 10.00 a.m. Sunday, 21" September, 2025 at 5.00 p.m.

During this period, members of the company may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disatled for
voting thereafter. Memibers who have voted through Remofe e-\Vofing will be eligible fo aftend the AGM. However, they shall not
be allowed to cast their vote again during AGM,

The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the company as on
Monday, 15" September, 2025.
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The Board of Directors of the company has appeinted (M/s. Tapan Badkul and Associates), Mr, Tapan Badkul Practicing Cost and
Management Accountant (Meam. No, 23394), as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the Remote e-voling process as well os e-volting process
during the AGM in a fair and fransparent manner and they have communicated their willingness o be appointed and will be
available for same purpose.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediarely after the conclusion of votling at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through e-vofing {i.e. votes cast
during the AGM and votes cast through Remote e-Voting) and shall submit o consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast
in favour, against, abstalned, if any, to the chairman or any person authorized by him, who shall countersigned the same. The Results
will be announced not later than 2 working days from the conclusion of the AM. The result declared along with the acrutinizers
Reporl shall be uploaded on the website of the company: www.narmadagelatines.com, and also shall be communicaled to BSE,
where the Company's equity shares are listed and be maode avallable on theirwebsite,

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING, AND JOINING THE VIRTUAL ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The Remole e-Voling period begins on Friday, September 19, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (I5T) and ends on Sunday, June 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m.
(I5T). The Remote a-Voling module shall be disabled by CDS5L for voting thereaftar. The Members whose namas appear in the Register
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off date i.e. 15" September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of
shareholders shall be in proportion fo their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as of the cut-off date.

The details of the process and manner for e-Volting and joining virlual meefing for Individual shareholders and Members holding
shares in dematerialized form

. Shareholdars who have glready voted prior to the maeting date would not be entiled to vote at the meeting venus.

Il.  Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020. under Regulation 44 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremnents) Regulations, 2015, listed entfities are required to
provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that
the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/relail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently. there are muitiple e-voling service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to ksted entities in india. This necessitates
registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple userlDs and passwords by the shareholders,

In order 1o increqse the efficiency of the voling process, pursuant o a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-
voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login cradential, through their demat accounts/ websites of
Depositories/ Depaoasitory Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again
with the ESPs, thareby, not only facilitating seamiess authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating
ine-voling proceass.

In ferms of the above mentlonad circular, Shareholders are advised fo update their mobile number and emall |d in their demat
accountsin order fo access e-Vofting facility.
Theway to vote electronically on CLGL e-voting systermn consists of " lwo steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1 Accessthrough Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system

Login method for Remote e-Voting and joining the virual mesating for Individual shareholders holding securlties In Demat
mode

In terms of SEBl circular no SEBIHO/CFD/CMD /CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are dllowed to vote through thelr demat
account rmaintained with Depasitories and Depository Participants, Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number
arcd erncil Id in their demal accountsin order 1o access e-Voling facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL s given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1) Users who have opted tor COSL Easl / Eqslest facility, can login through thelr existing user Id and
holding se curities in password. Option will be made available to reach e-\Voting poge without anmy further
Demat mode with authentication. The users to login to Easi / Eosiest are reguested to visit cdsl website
CDSL Depository wiw'w! caslindla.com and click on loginicon & My Easi New (Token) Tab.

20 After successful login the Easl / Easiest user will be able o see the e-\oting option for eligible
companies where the e-voling is in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the e-voling option, the user will be able to see e-Vioting page of the e-Voling service
provider for casting your vote durng the remaote e-voling pernod or joining virfual meeting &
voting durng the meeting. Additiondally, there 1s also links provided 1o access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-\Voting service providers' website
directly,

3 If the user & not registered for Easi/Easiest, opfion to register s available ot cdsl website
whww/. cdslindia.com and click on login & My Easi New (Token) Tab and then click on registration
option.

4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number
and PAN No, from a e-Voting link available on wwiw cdslindia.com, home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Moblle & Emall as recorded in the Demat
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Account, After successful authentication. user will be able 1o s2e the e-Voling option where the
a-voling is in progress and abko able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service
Froviders.

Individual Shareholders 13
holding se curities in

demat mode with

NSDL Depository

43

If you are already registered tor NSDL IDeAS tacility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL
Open web browser by typing the following UKL https://eservices. nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on g mobile, Once the home page of e-Sernvices is launched, click on the
"Beneficial Owner” icon under "Login” which is availatle under "IDeAS’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter vour User 1D and Password, After succassful authentication, you
will be able 1o see e-Voting services. Click on *Access fo e-Voling " under e-Voting services and
vou will be able to see e-Violing page. Click on company name or e-Voling service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voling period of joining virtudl meeting & voling during the masting.

f the user B not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option o register s availoble of
hittps://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click at
hittps:/ feservices.nsdl.com/ Secure Web/ldeasDirectReg.jsp.

Vistt the e-\oting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
bttps:/ fwww . evoling nsdl.com/ eilher on a Pesonal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Voling system Is launched, click on the lcon "Login” which is ovailable under
‘Shareholder/Memoer” section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D .e.
vour sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verlfication
Code as shown on the screen, After successful authentication, yvou will be redirected fo MN5DL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote durning the remote e-\Voling period or jaining virrual meeting & vofing dunng the measating.
For OTP based login you can click on hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/fSecure
Web/evating/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP 1D B-diglt Client Id, PAN MNo.,
Varfication code and generate OIP. Enter the QOIF received on registerad emaill id/mobile
number and click on login. After successtul authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting poge. Click on company name or e-Voling
service provider name and you will be re-directed fo e-Voling service provider wabsilte for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting peried or joining virfual meaeting & volting during
the meeting,

Individual Shareholders
(holding securties in
demat mode)

login through their

Depository Participants (DFP)

You can ako login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depaository
Participont registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vofing facility. After Succeassful login. you will be
able to see &-Voling option. Once you click on e-Violing option. you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site affer successful outhentication, wherein you can see a-\Voting
featura, Click on company name or &-Voling sanvice provider name and you will be redirected
to e-Voling service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting penod or
joining virtual mesting & voting during tha meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Possword option
available at above mantionaed wabsite,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues relaled o login through Depository L.a.

CDS5Land NSDL

Logintype

Helpdesk details

Individu al Shareholders
holding se curities in Demat
mode with CDSL

WMembars facing any tfechnical issue in login can contact CREL helpdesk by sending arequest at
helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at foll free no. 18002109911

Individual Shareholders
holding se curities in Demat
mode with NSDL

Mermbears facing any technical ssue in login can contact N3DL helpdesk by sending areguest ot
avoting@nsdl.coinorcallat: 022 - 48846 7000 and (022 - 2496 7000

step2:Access through CD5L e-Voling system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual
shareholders in demal mode.

Il Login Method for sharehoclders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat medes and shareholders holding

securties in physicalmode

I Theshareholders shouldlog on to the e-voling website www evolingindia.com.
ii. Clickon "Sharaholders” module,

il. NowenteryourUser|D:

a. ForCRSL: 16 diglhts beneficiary 1D,
. ForMNSDL: 8 Character DP D followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
C. Shareholders holding sharesin Physical Form should enter Folio Mumber registered with the Company.
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. MNextenterthe Image Vedfication as displayed and Click on Login.

v.  Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www evotingindia.corm and voted on an earlier e-vafing
of any cormpany, then your existing password is fo be used,

vii  Ifyouare afirst-time user follow the steps given below:

For Members helding shares in Demat Ferm other than individual and Physical Ferm

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric "PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
clemat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e ohareholders who hove notupdated thelr PAN with The Company/Depositony Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (n dga/mm/fyyyy format) as recordad in your
Details OR demat account orin the company records inorder e login.

Bateafiuth {D8) s [T both the defolls are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the

mambearid / folio number in the Dividend Bank details fisld.

VL.
Wil

X,
X,
X1,

LALTS
FATS

After entering thess details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical forrm will then directly reach the Company selection screen. Howaver, sharaholders holding
shares Iin demat form will now reach "Password Creatlon” menu whereln they are required fo mandatonly enter thelr login password in
the new possword fiekd, Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are gligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platfarm. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential,

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the detalls can be used only for e-voting on the resolufions contained In this Nofice.
Click on tha EVSN for the relevant <Company Name: on which you choose 1o vole.

On the voting page. you will see "RESCLUTION DESCRIPTION and against the some the option "YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option
YES or NO as desired, Tha aption YES implies thot vou assent to the Resclution and aption NO implies that yvou dissant to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIOMNS FILE LINK® if vou wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution. you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT", A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirmn your vote, click on "CK, else fo change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vofe,

Onceyou "COMNHRM” your vote an the resolufion, you will not be allowed to modify yvour vote,
You con also take o print of the votes cost by clicking on *Click hers to print” option on the Voling poge.

If @ demat cccount holder has forgoftren the login possword thien Enfer the User 1D ond the ilmage verificafion code and click on
Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system,

Tharais also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploadsad, which will be made available to scrutinizer for vadfication,

Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -For Remote Voting only

¢ Nonindividual shoreholders {.e. other thon Indhiduals, HUF NRl efc) and Custodions are reguired fo log on to
www avatingindia.com and register themselvesin the "Corporatas” module.

e« A scanned copy of the Regiktrafion Form bedring the stomp and sign of the entity should be emaied to
helpdesk.evoting®@cdslindia.com.

¢ After recelving the login detalls a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance
Userwould be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
Thelist of accounts linked In the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.
it Is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Aftorney (POA) which they have Issued In favour of
the Custodian, if any .. should be uploaded in PLF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alrernatively Non Individual shareholders are required rmandatary to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.
togeaether with attested specimen signatura of tha duly autharized signatory who are outhorzed to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to
the Company at the emaill addrass viz: nglibp@rediffmail.com  (designated email address by company), if they have voted
from individual tab & not uploaded sarme in the CDEL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ONMN THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedurs for attending meeating & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-
vioting.

2. Thelink for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be ovailable where the EVEN of Company will be displayed ofter successful login as
per theinstructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who hove vored through Remote e-Voting will e eligible to oftend the meefing. However, they will not be eligible
tovote at the AGM/EGM.

4, Shareholders are encouraged fo jointhe Meeting fhrough Laptops / |Pads for better experience.

5. Furher shareholders will ba required to allow Camera and use Infernet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance dunng the
rmeeting.
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4.  Plegse note that Paricipants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecling via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network, it is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAMN Connecfion fo mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAYM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resoldtions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be gligible to vote through e-Voting
systern available during the EGM/AGM.

8. Ifany Votesare cast by the shareholdears through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the sarme sharsholders have
not participated In the meeting through VC/OAVM facliity, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid
a5 the facility of e-voting during the meeting s available only to the shareholders attending the mesting

MNotes:
In case the members have any gueries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voling rom the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an
email o helpdesk evoting®@cdslindio.com or contact af tallfree no, 180021 099171,

37, INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/MEMBERS TO REGISTER THEMSELVES AS SPEAKER DURING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

1. The Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request in advance mentioning their name, demat account number/foelio number, email id, mobile number at
mahima.patkar@narmadagelatines.comon or before 147 September, 2025,

2. Those Members who have registered themselves as o speaker will only be allowed to exprass thelr views/ask guestions during the
meating. The company resarvas the rnght to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availabiity of fime for the Annual
General Meeting.

3. The Members should allow to use Camera and are required to use Intermet with a good speed to avold any disturoance during
the meeating.

48, PROCESSFORTHOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE E-MAIL/MOBILENO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY /DEPOSITORIES.
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details ke Folio No., Nome of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
carfificate (ront and back), PAN (self -aftested scanned copy of PAN card). AADHAR (self- alfestad scanned copy of Acdhar
Card} by ermail to Company at nglibp@rediffmail.com /RTA ermaill id at ta@ctmsl.co.
2. ForDemot shareholders -, Please update your emall id & molblle no. with your respective Depository Pardicipant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Plegse update your emall id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(EF) which Is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virual meetings through Depaository.

If you have any queres or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voling from the CDSL e-Voling Systern, you can write an email to
helpdask.evoting@cdslindio.com orcontact attolifree no. 18002109911

All grievances connected with the facility for voling by electronic means may be aoddressed to Mr, Raokesh Dalvi, Sr. Manoager, (CDEL, )
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Foor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatial Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel
(East), Murmnioai - 400013 orsend an email to helpdesk.evoting@odslindia.com orcall ol freenc, 180021 09911,

By Order of the Boord of Directors
For Narmada Gelatines Limited

Mahima Patkar
Company Secretary

Flace : Jabalpur
Date : 13" August, 2025

Registered Office:
CARAVS, Room No. 28
15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur - 482 001
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIOM 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ltem No. 4

The following Staternent set out all material facts relating to the Ordinary Business (Special Resalution) mentioned in the accompanying
Notice:

Mr. 5. Annamclal (DIN: 00001381}, aged about 78 years, Is a Bachelor of Technology (Chem Engg.). He has vast experience In successfully
managing Chemical Industries over a perod of 5 decades. In 1973 he was appointed as the Managing Director of Pandion Chemicals Lid
(PCL). whichis the largest producer of Potassium Chiorate in India.

He is also on the Board of India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited, Pioneer Jellice India Private Limited, Sree Ayyanar Spinning and Weaving
Mills Private Limnited, Pandian Chemicols Umited, Mepco Industries Limited, The Metal Powder Company Limifed, Asio Matches Company
Private Limited. Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Private Umited. Miranjan Sankar Enterprises Private Limited. Pioneer NF Forgings India
Private Limited.

He doesnot hold any shares of the Comipany ason 317 March 2025,

As Mr. S, Annamalai has attained the age of 78 yvears, therefore in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of Securifies and
Exchange Board of India (Lsting Okligotions and Disclosure Requirenments) Regulations 2015, memibers approval s required by passing o
Special Resolution. for re- appointment of Mr. 5. Annamalai as a director liable to refire by rotation,

The Board ot its meeting held on 24™ May, 2025 is of the opinion that Mr. 5. Annamdlal has vast knowledge and varied Industry experence
wiil be of great value to the Company and has recommendead the Resolution at ifem Mo, 4 of this Moflce as o Speclal Resolution (since Mr. 5.
Annamalal has aftained the age of 78 vears) relating to the appointment of Mr. 5. Annamalal as o Non-Executive Non-independent
Director liable toretire by rotation, for yvour approval.

M. 5. Annamalai s not disqualified from being appointed as g Director in terms of Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013 and have given
his consent to act as Director of the Company

The other details of Mr. 5. Annamalai in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation and Secretarial Standard 2 are annexed fo this
MNotice.

Except Mr. 5. Maheswaran and Mr, 5, Annamalal, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or thealr relatives
are, inany way, concernad or inferested in the Resolution set out at iterm No. 4 of the Notlce,

ltem No. 5

The following Statement set out all material facts relating to the Special Business (Ordinary Resolution) mentioned in the accompanying
Mofice:

Pursuaint fo the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securlties and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirerments)
Ragulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regubkations”) ana provisions of 3action 204 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Rermunearation of Managernial Personnel) Rules, 2014 ("Rules™), the Audit Commiftee and the Board of Directors at their respective meetfings
helkd on May 24, 2025, have approved and recommended the appolntment of D Asim Kumor Chatfopodhyay (FCS Mo, 2303, CP No. BBO,
Paer Review Mo, 6375/2025), a Practicing Company Secretary as the Secretaral Auditor of the Company on the following ferms and
conditions:

g,  Termof appolntment: For aterm of 5 (Five) consecutive years frorm Agril 01, 2025 to March 31,2030,

. ProposedFees: At a Remuneration as mutually agreed between the company and the Secretarial Auditor plus applicable taxes and
relmbursemant of out-of-pocket axpenses for a term of five consecutive financial years commencing from the financial year 2025-24
to Financial Year 2029-30(.&.. from Aprl 1, 20250 March 31, 2030),

¢ Basis of recommendcations: The recommendations are based on the fulfiiment of the eligiblity criteria & quallfication prescribed
under the Act & Rules mode thereunder and SEEBI Listing Regulations. While recommending the Board of Directors hove also
considerad, experience of the individual, capakbility, independent assessment, audit expenence and also evaluation of the guality of
audit work done by him in the past.

d.  Credentials; Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay (FCS Mo, 2303, CP No, 880, Peer Review MNo. 6375/2025), a Practicing Company
sacrefary, is a seqsoned professional with over 40 years of rich experience, specializing in secretarial audits and corporafte
compliance across g diverse range of industrias,

Academically. he distinguished by aformidable sulte of qualifications including M.com. LL.E.. Ph.D. (Applied Economics), FCMA, FCS.
and D, Litt,

Dr. Asim Kurnar Chatftopadhyay has given his consent to act as Secretarial Audifors of the Company and confirmed that his
appointmeant, if approved would be within the prascribed lirmits and that he is not disqualified to be appointed as Secratarnal Auditor
interms of provislons ofthe Act & Rules made theraunder and SEBI Listing Regulations.

The: Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at item No. 5 for approval of the Members as an Ordinary
Resolution,
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Mone of the Director, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives are, in any way, concemed or interested, financially or
otherwise, inthe said resolufion.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Narmoda Gelatines Limited

Mahima Patkar
Company Secretary

Flace : Jabalpur
Dicrte : 137 August, 2025

Registered Office:
CARAVE, Room No. 28
15, Civil Lines. Jabalpur - 482 001

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 @



-#-‘r NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

ANNEXURE

Details of Directors sesking appointment and re-appointment at the 64" Annual Genearal Meaating

(Pursuant to Regulation 3&(3) of tha SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretanial Standard 2 on

Seneral Meatings)

MName of Director

Director ldentification Number
Designation/category of the Director

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment [ Re-oppoinfmeant In AGHM
Qualification

Expartise in specific functicnal areas and post experience

Terms and conditions of re-appointrment

Details of remuneration last drawn (FY 2024-25)
Detoils of remuneration sought to be poid
Directorship in other companies including
aquity listed companies (excluding

foreign companies) as on the date of this notice

"Membearships / Chaimnonships of
committess of other companies
(excluding forelgn companies)
As on dote of this Notice

shareholding

Listed entity from which the director

has resigned from Directorship in the
past three (3) years

MNo. of Board Meetings attended
Inter-se relationship with other Director &

Key Monagerdal Pesonnel

: 5. ANNAMALAI
! 00001381
] Chairman, Non-Executive, Non-Independeant Director
: 26.01.1947
14.07.2023
Bochelor of Technology (Chem. ENgg.)

S0 years of experience In managing Chemical Industries cver a

period of 5 decades. In 1973 he was appointed as the

Managing Director of Pandian Chemicals Lid (PCL), which is the

largest producer of Potassium Chiorate In Indic.

Director liable to retire by rotation
Sitting fees: ¥ 1.60.000/
sitting feeas as approved by the Board of Directors

i

ool N oo B oo

India Gelatines and Chemicals Limited

Pandian Chemicak Limited

The Metal Powder Chemicals Limited

Ploneer Jalice India Private Limited

Ashok Matehes and Timber Industries Limited
Asia Matches Company Private Limited

asree Ayyanar Spinning and Weaving Mills Pyt Ltd,
Ploneer NF Forgings India Private Limited

Miranjansankar Enferprises Privare Limited

10, Mepco Industries Limited

1.

Mil

Mil

Mominafion & Rermunaeration Committes: (Member
India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited

CSR Commiftes: (Chalrman)
India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited

& out of &

M 5, Maneswaran - Brother of b 5. Annamalal

"The above includes Memberships/Chairmanships of only Listed Companies.
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Information at a glance

Sr. No. Particulars

Details

1 Dote and time of AGM Monday, 22nd September, 2025, af 11.00 a.m, (57)
2 Maode of Conduct Video Conferencing ("WVC")/Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM®)
3 Link for Participating in the meeting www.evotingindia.com
through VC/OAVM (please refer e-voting procedure specitied In Notlce)
il Contact detalls of CDSL for assistonce Membears can connact with:
before or during the AGM Mr. Rakesh Dabvi, 5 Manager, (CDSL)
af helpdesk.evofing@cdslindio.com or call toll free no. 1800 21 09911
5 Record date for Final Dividend Monday, 15th September. 2025
& Dividend payment date After 23rd September, 2025
7 Cut-off date for e-Vating Monday, 15th September, 2025
8 e-Voting start date and time Friday 19th September, 2025 from 92.00 a.m.(I5T)
o a-Voting end date and time Sunday 2 1st September, 2025 till 5.00 p.m. (151}
11 Link to register E-mail oddress to receive notice www.clsl.com/green.pho
12 Date, E-mall address to submit the form for n or before 156th September, 2025 1ill 5.00 p.m, {IST)
TDS exernption
13 Registration for Speaker Sharsholder send e-mail to mahimao.patkar@narmadagelatines.com on or before
14th Septemioer 2025.
14 Name, address and contact detalls of CB Management 3endces Pvt, Lid
Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) Rasoi Court, 5th Floor, 20 Sir R.N. Mukherjees Road, Kelkata - 700001
Email: fa@clmsl.com
15 Live webocast of AGM wiww . evolingindia.com
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Narmada Gelatines Limited
Caravs, Room No. 28, 15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur - 482001




